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The cover piece of this year’s annual report is “Jiuzhaigou Series #8 : Residing” by Liu Kuosung,  Jiuzhaigou Series #8 . Residing
the master in Chinese painting. He was born in Anhui Province, China and lived in Taiwan during  (dated 2001)
youth. He was the chairman of the Department of Fine Arts of The Chinese University of Hong Liu Kuosung
Kong, and appointed teaching posts in renowned universities and art schools in the US, Taiwan
and China. Internationally, Liu gave numerous speeches and hosted exhibitions, and is named the ~ (LEBZRIIZ/\ | &)
Father of Modern Ink Painting and the Pioneer of Modern Painting of China. (20014:4F)
2B
Liu embraces new expressions in ink and even abandons the brush for alternate ways of using ink
and paper. Jiuzhaigou in Sichuan Province, China is a UNESCO world heritage site famous for the
mesmerizing pools of water. The painting captures the shimmering, flowing water which echoes
with the flexibility and determination of Gold Peak Group.
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GROUP PROFILE
KBS

Gold Peak Group is an Asian multinational group which owns high-
quality industrial investments via GP Industries Limited, its major industrial
investment vehicle. The Group has built renowned brand names for its
major product categories, such as GP batteries, KEF premium consumer
speakers and CELESTION professional speaker drivers.

The parent company, Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited, was
established in 1964 and has been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong since 1984. Currently, Gold Peak holds an approximately 85.59%*

interest in GP Industries which is publicly listed in Singapore.

The Group’s revenue for the financial year 2020-2021 amounted to
HK$6.7 billion and its total assets exceeded HK$8.7 billion. The Group

currently employs a staff force of more than 7,500 worldwide.

SIWTHEEAKENEHRESR  ZREFE
ERETH-GPTXERARFEELEREL
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GROUP STRUCTURE
- JEIEY

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited

ELWTE (KB ) BRAF

Hong Kong-listed &%

85.59%"

GP Industries Limited
GP TXHBRAF

Singapore-listed ¥713%_F

GP Batteries International Limited Electronics & Acoustics
2ILBHERERAA BrEmRBER

Other Industrial Investments
Bt T%RE

* Primary specialty
—RMEEED

e Primary cylindrical
—IRMEEELE

e Rechargeable & others
FEM R HAD,

* Percentage stated denotes respective shareholding held by Gold Peak as at 28 June 2021
BAXRASINTER20214568 288 FriFw ki
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

M RFARE
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss FSEER 2021 2020
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) HZE3IAHILEEE (5&ET)
Revenue | 6,706.2 6,051.5
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company AA TG AFEIL A 121.9 20.9
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) AR (B 15.5 2.7
Dividends per share (Hong Kong cents) SRS GBI 0.0 2.0
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position F&HEHKRE
At 31 March (HK$ million) M3A31H (B&EBT)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KNEGEB ANELER 1,598.8 1,300.9
Total assets BEE 8,764.2 7,238.1
Capital expenditure EAMZH 458.2 542.4
Ratios tbs
At 31 March M3H831H
Current assets : Current liabilities (ratio) REEE  R"EamE( 0.9 0.8
Inventory turnover period (months) FEmEE (8) 2.9 2.5
Net bank borrowings : Total equity (ratio) IRITIE S EE BB E (L)
— The Group — £E 0.98 1.03
— The Company — A 0.57 0.55
Other Information HingH
At 31 March M3F31H
The Company & its subsidiaries: RARKMEAR :
Number of employees EEAZ
— China — 5,100 5,620
- Hong Kong — BB 420 460
— Other countries — HitE=xR 1,990 2,040
7,510 8,120
Total area (sq m) HEERE (FAK)
- China — HE 273,900 301,300
- Hong Kong — BB 11,100 10,700
— Other countries — HitE=xR 136,200 114,200
421,200 426,200

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



Revenue by Business FERFZEREE

Year ended 31 March 2021 BHZE202143A31HILEE

I Batteries &
I Electronics &

Revenue by Location BHEZEEER K
Year ended 31 March 2021 BHZE202143831HLLEE
B Asia T

I curope XM
[ Americas ZEM
I Others Hfih

Total Assets by Location BHEZEEES M

As at 31 March 2021 R202143H31H

I Hong Kong & China &#&HE
I Rest of Asia EAhZEMEZR
[ Europe BN

I Americas =M

Profit before Taxation by FERFFZIRMATEF

Business Attributable to BZ20214E3 8310 IHEE
Gold Peak

Year ended 31 March 2021

I Batteries &
I Electronics &
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (conTD)
BERAARE @

Revenue
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Market Capitalization
At 31 March (HK$ million)

mi{E
M3A31H (B&EET)

I Gold Peak £ T3
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Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)

FREREABSLET
BE3IANALULFE (BEET)
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Earnings Per Share

and Dividends Per Share
Year ended 31 March (Hong Kong cents)
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
+EMEHRE

2021 2020
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss FelEaR
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) BEIAINHLEFE (BEBT)
Turnover e 6,706.2 6,051.5
Operating profit (loss) RERF (BE) 46.5 84.4
Share of results of associates FrihEteE AR & 241.0 133.4
Share of results of a joint venture Fribd—BEaahEEE - -
Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities before taxation MR B E MmN (BB18) 287.5 217.8
Taxation g (79.4) (126.5)
Profit (Loss) for the year 2EHR (BE8) 208.1 91.3
Attributable to: B
Owners of the Company PN/NETEZZ=DN 121.9 20.9
Non-controlling interests JEERRE R 86.2 70.4
208.1 91.3
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FSBEHBIKRR
At 31 March (HK$ million) M3A31H (B&®ET)
Investment properties wREME = -
Property, plant and equipment ME B 2,234.6 1,833.3
Right-of-use asset ERREE 282.4 177.2
Interests in associates Frih B /A B e 1,784.1 1,501.6
Equity instruments at fair value through other DIATHERT AR 2 EWES
o 60.1 58.4
comprehensive income & /N =
Interest in a joint venture Frib—RBaahEERss - -
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE = -
Investment in convertible note AHRREREE = -
Non-current receivables JEMENEWERIE 86.2 83.4
Intangible assets M EE 1.2 1.2
Goodwill [EES 79.1 79.1
Deferred taxation assets EERIEEE 27.8 20.8
Deposits and prepayments e RFANFIE 38.7 26.1
Current assets MENEE 4,127.8 3,413.6
Assets classified as held for sale DERFHEEE 42.2 43.4
Total assets REE 8,764.2 7,238.1
Bank and other loans SRIT R EMER 1,047.9 349.6
Notes =R = -
Deferred taxation liabilities IREBIEEE 59.9 41.1
Lease liabilities HEasd 215.6 94.6
Obligation under finance leases MBHEER = -
Derivative Financial Instruments mESBIT A - -
Provision for restructuring EwN 99.8 99.8
Current liabilities mEEE 4,856.8 4,537.3
Liabilities classified as held for sale NEAFHECZAE = -
Total liabilities RalE 6,280.0 5,122.4
2,484.2 2,115.7
Equity attributable to owners of the Company P /NEIE/ 2PN Y L 1,598.8 1,300.9
Non-controlling interests PlEudivg £ 885.4 814.8
2,484.2 2,115.7

Note: The financial information from 2012 to 2013 had been restated to reflect changes in accounting policies in 2014 resulting from adoption of the new Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards effective in that year.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(restated) (restated)

(EHHRT) (EHHRT)

6,767.7 6,316.3 5,822.6 5,795.5 5,855.7 5,849.3 6,020.6 5,810.5
129.5 60.3 67.6 76.6 203.8 (322.0) 42.2 (5.3)
135.5 137.0 142.6 128.2 96.3 109.5 14.6 31.4
- - - - - 16.5 52.4 74.5
265.0 197.3 210.2 204.8 300.1 (196.0) 109.2 100.6
(81.0) (87.3) (103.2) (86.5) (114.3) (75.6) (42.8) (69.0)
184.0 110.0 107.0 118.3 185.8 (271.6) 66.4 31.6
61.4 20.4 20.1 18.7 51.5 (127.9) 40.3 (25.0)
122.6 89.6 86.9 99.6 134.3 (143.7) 26.1 56.6
184.0 110.0 107.0 118.3 185.8 (271.6) 66.4 31.6
- - 9.9 9.6 9.9 411 58.4 74.2
1,594.7 1,755.1 1,400.8 1,393.4 1,409.2 1,495.5 1,601.5 1,676.5
1,484.3 1,489.8 1,403.7 1,333.5 1,318.9 1,346.0 1,298.7 1,308.8
77.4 - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - 265.8

- 87.5 64.0 62.3 61.1 75.8 69.9 73.1

- - - - - - 40.8 53.9

- - - - - - - 29.2

1.3 1.4 3.6 6.4 10.6 15.0 19.7 26.0
79.1 102.1 102.1 102.1 118.5 127.2 158.8 168.0
22.5 219 19.7 21.5 20.6 35.1 28.9 23.4
13.0 14.3 37.4 24.7 8.6 1.0 2.8 4.0
3,842.5 3,576.5 3,097.9 2,929.4 2,703.7 2,878.6 2,997.4 3,201.2
196.5 55.8 5.9 - 0.4 22.7 3304 -
7,311.3 7,104.4 6,145.0 5,882.9 5,661.5 6,038.0 6,607.3 6,904.1
1,167.6 1,037.5 882.2 832.6 524.9 503.7 708.0 674.9
- 119.0 - - - - - -

241 22.4 23.2 18.7 26.8 39.0 38.7 43.9
3.3 0.6 1.0 0.5 0.7 0.7 2.7 3.2

2.1 - - - - - - -
3,883.9 3,572.1 2,784.8 2,471.3 2,371.3 2,667.9 2,749.1 3,054.7
- - - - - - 7.8 -
5,081.0 4,751.6 3,691.2 3,323.1 2,923.7 3,211.3 3,506.3 3,776.7
2,230.3 2,352.8 2,453.8 2,559.8 2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0 3,127.4
1,412.5 1,519.9 1,268.3 1,323.5 1,406.0 1,380.9 1,505.5 1,508.2
817.8 832.9 1,185.5 1,236.3 1,331.8 1,445.8 1,595.5 1,619.2
2,230.3 2,352.8 2,453.8 2,559.8 2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0 3,127.4
Wit © 20122201 3FE M B EREREFRY - URRARBIN2014FE B2 M EBWBREEREL < FETBERE) -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRES

The financial year ended 31 March 2021
("FY2021") was the most challenging year for the
Group within the Group’s near 60-year history.
COVID-19 not only led to tremendous human
suffering, but also caused major disruptions to
global trade and business operations. Lockdown
measures implemented to slow down the spread
of the pandemic also interrupted material supply,
reduced factory output and shipping capacity. The
supply shortage also led to rapid and significant
cost increases which added further challenges
to the businesses. These supply and capacity
problems are still unresolved well into the new
financial year.

2021 AL F B B R BE N+ F LURATAE B
REFNFE FEMRXTERARERK
HMENEZ TREPHERERBESZREHSE
B o B ADIZ B B £ 45 5 e S MO (R R
T o Rl 2 K. s 3B B R D 0 FE X8 R S Al AN R
BMEA HEeBESHERKE FRHZXFRE
ERIENIE TR F EAFE -
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Demand for GP Batteries’ consumer batteries remained steady during the
pandemic. The project to rebalance GP Batteries’ manufacturing capacity
between China and South-East Asia helped the Group maintain a more
stable product supply despite material shortages and logistics capacity
issues arising from lockdown restrictions in various countries. With a more
diversified supply base, GP Batteries was able to win some business from
competition, who could be more severely affected by the pandemic and
logistic capacity problems, and recorded a 18.8% increase in sales when
compared to the previous financial year.

KEF maintained its strategy to continue investing into technology
innovation and product development. The new wireless music systems
launched during the financial year were very well received by the market
and contributed significantly to the 26.2% revenue growth recorded
for the financial year. On the other hand, demand for professional
audio products significantly reduced due to extended ban on public
performances in most key markets. As a result, revenue for the Group’s
contract manufacturing business and Celestion professional speaker driver
business was significantly impacted.

The Automotive Wire Harness Business was also affected by the shutdown
of automobile factories in China and the US during the first quarter of the
financial year. When demand started to pick up in the second and the third
financial quarters, shortages in component supply and shipping capacity
slowed down the recovery the business.

The Group’s Industrial Investments reported increased profit contributions
which included a HK$77.7 million disposal gain reported by Meiloon
Industrial Co., Ltd. for disposal of land and buildings in Suzhou, China.
Linkz Industries Limited also reported higher profit contribution for
FY2021.

Results

Consolidated revenue for FY2021 increased by 10.8% to HK$6,706
million. Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 483.0%
to HK$121.9 million. Earnings per share increased from 2.7 HK cents
reported last financial year to 15.5 HK cents this year.

In view of the volatile global business environment, the Board of Directors
has decided to conserve financial resources and proposed not to distribute
final dividend (2020: Nil) following a suspension of interim dividend (2020:
2.0 HK cents).

S B HEREMNE RIEE EREHERE
E o EEREHTER AN KRR EREMIET
HIEFEIB Rt IR ER » BIEmMEZEEHR
HRSWmEsh  SENEMEENERE
E o @IUEHUZ THERNESD  ERiE
EINZRERERBENHIHFNIE  ©
HEEF18.8% °

KEFE BRI ERRBAIMB R NER &R
MEHNERSERIIEX TSR X8
Rig EF26.2% ° EHRABBERDHHDR
BIEARKRE EXZTEERTREET
B - Ak - SR TAERH N CelestionE
BESRETNEXRNBAYE -

AERESREBEFANETIPRERELIY
& BERRES= OFHRMOT - B4
EEEEBMIEERIEISXIEET -

SENTERERSRAER  BEFETE
BAR T FR/A B B & TR AR B &R 1 #th SR ) 2E 69
77708 B T ERE - HATEBRARN
FRANBFIERING LF -

ES

R2NFHEE - SEEEBREFIZM
10.8%Z67.06/2HE7T ° AR REREMmEF®E
A [FEA3 11483.0% = 121,900,000 7T ° =&
BEARBF 15580 KF5R2.780L -

BENBRERTRAR  EFRAREBVBE

TR R ESRHEARR S (2020 1 2.058) B IR
EFIRBREARE S (2020 : O3#L) -

SUNTXEB)BERAT —FRE_F_—FFR

13



14

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (conT'D)
FEHESE @

Outlook

Despite the availability of vaccines, the emergence of new COVID-19
variants may prolong the pandemic and the business world may need
to learn to cope with it for a longer period. Consumers are picking up
new norms and different lifestyles amidst extended lockdowns and social
distancing measures. The Group is also taking prudent steps to cope with
such changes.

The US-China trade dispute with high import tariffs imposed on China-
made products will continue to affect some of the Group’s US businesses.
Rising prices for some raw materials and electronic components together
with fluctuations in exchange rates will also pose significant business
challenges to the Group. Global shortage of shipping capacity may
continue to affect the Group’s supply to key markets and exert pressure on
working capital.

During the pandemic, the Group’s strategic investments in its brands and
distribution networks proved to be crucial for sustaining its businesses.
GP branded batteries and KEF recorded sales growth despite the very
challenging business environment. The pandemic has accelerated the
change of consumers’ shopping habit and eCommerce has become a very
important trading channel. In fact, the Group’s online sales increased at a
very respectable pace during FY2021. We will continue with our strategy
to capture the fast-growing opportunities of online shopping.

KEF's positive results were contributed significantly by the very strong
market response for its innovative new products. The Group will continue
its strategy to invest in latest technologies and innovative product
development to win the purchase preference of consumers.

The automotive wire harness industry has been highly competitive in recent
years and contribution from the Automotive Wire Harness Business of the
Group has become less significant. In May 2021, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its automotive wire
harness operation. We consider the proposed disposal a good opportunity
to exit a non-core business and preserve resources for growing our core
businesses. Proceeds from the proposed disposal will enhance the Group’s
cash flow, including the funding of working capital.

To enhance the future competitiveness of the Group, new centers of
excellence are being set up in key cities including Singapore, Shenzhen,
Kuala Lumpur and London. The strategic plan is not only to expand the
Group’s talent base, but also enable the Group to be more responsive to
the latest consumer trends and technologies in the regions surrounding
these global cities. The newly expanded office in Shenzhen, China provides

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021
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the Group with a second headquarters, after Hong Kong, to benefit from
the fast development of the Greater Bay Area. The Innovation Centre in
Shenzhen has been running multiple programs with universities around
the world to develop better materials for enhancing the performance of
battery products.

The project to rebalance the Group’s manufacturing facilities between
China and South-East Asia is making good progress. This will significantly
strengthen the Group’s productivity, cost efficiency and competitiveness
making the Group better poised to cope with challenges ahead.

The Group has continued to push its green initiatives during the year.
Most of our battery factories in China gained Zero Waste to Landfill
validation from UL, a global certification body, for achieving approximately
95% waste conversion rate. A new project was initiated to install solar
equipment for green energy and to reduce carbon footprint. We are
also launching battery packs with new no-plastic packaging to facilitate
material recycling. Significant investment has also been committed for
promoting Nickel Metal Hydride rechargeable batteries to encourage
consumers worldwide to reduce their consumption of single-use batteries.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my gratitude to our staff
team for their hard work and commitments during the challenging
year. | wish to thank my fellow Board members and management for
their engagements and devotion. | also thank our customers, suppliers,
shareholders and bankers for their unfailing support and trust in this most
difficult financial year.

Last but not the least, Mr Leung Pak Chuen retired as Non-Executive Vice
Chairman from October 2020 after serving the Board for more than 20
years. Mr Richard Ku will retire as Executive Director from 1 July 2021 after
serving the Board for 31 years but he will continue to serve as a Director
of our Batteries Division. | would like to express our heartfelt gratefulness
to Mr Leung and Mr Ku. Their invaluable contribution and unswerving
devotion over the decades are highly valued and appreciated.

\ Q\
Victor LO Chung Wing

Chairman and Chief Executive

28 June 2021
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
FIEE R

Overview

In FY2021, COVID-19 continued to disrupt global economy, business
operations and normal daily routine. The lockdown policies for containing
the pandemic brought along serious interruption in production, material
supply and global logistics. The Group was faced with rapid cost increases
in some raw materials, electronic components and logistics. Despite the
challenges, the Group reported revenue growth of 10.8% for FY2021.

GP Industries

(85.5% owned by Gold Peak as at 31 March 2021)

Revenue of GP Industries for FY2021 was S$1,182.1 million, an increase of
11.3% when compared with the year ended 31 March 2020 (“FY2020").

Gross profit increased by 13.2% to S$316.3 million mainly due to the
increase in revenue and partly for the improvement in sales mix of KEF
products. Distribution costs increased by 16.0% due to increased revenue
and brand-building activities, as well as the surge in freight costs during
the second half of FY2021.

GP Industries’ profit after taxation attributable to equity holders for
FY2021 was S$31.7 million, an increase of $$12.2 million or 63.0% when
compared to the $$19.5 million reported in FY2020.

Batteries Business

Consumer demand for battery products remained strong during the
pandemic, amongst which were the increased demands from medical and
cleaning segments, computer peripheral products and home improvement
equipment. As a result, revenue for Batteries Business increased by 18.8%
to S$945.6 million. The strategy of diversifying the Group’s production
capacities across China and South East Asia has provided the competitive
edge of a broader supply base over most competitors, enabling the Group
to maintain a relatively steady supply during the critical periods.

GP branded products also resulted in a 12.0% increase in revenue, with
growth in all product groups and regions. Significant sales increase from
eCommerce was also recorded via various internet-sales platforms as
shopping behavior shifted to online during the pandemic.

Strong growth in demand for primary batteries was recorded in FY2021
resulting in a 21.2% increase in primary batteries sales, with sales of
Alkaline cylindrical batteries increased by more than 29.0%. Sales increase
of Nickel Metal Hydride (“NiMH") rechargeable batteries also brought
along a 5.4% sales increase in rechargeable batteries. Sales of Lithium
rechargeable batteries, which are customized and mainly for wearable
electronic products, decreased due to delay in some product launches by
customers during the pandemic. In key markets in the Americas, Asia and
Europe, the Batteries Business reported sales growth of 36.8%, 22.1%
and 5.1% respectively.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021
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Overall gross profit margin for FY2021 was comparable to that of FY2020.
Gross profit margin in the second half of FY2021 was lower than that of
the first half of FY2021 due to material price increases, and appreciation
of the Chinese Renminbi and Malaysian Ringgit against the US dollar also
resulted in an exchange loss for FY2021, compared to a gain for FY2020.

Distribution costs increased due to the surge in freight rates and
investment in eCommerce and brand-building activities.

Aggregate profit contribution from associates of the Batteries Business
increased by $S$4.8 million mainly from the associate which manufactures
Carbon Zinc cylindrical batteries as well as the associate which markets and
distributes the Group’s products in Eastern Europe.

Rationalization of the Group’s production facilities continued to make
progress despite the pandemic. Relocation of some of the production
facilities for NiMH rechargeable batteries to Malaysia resumed in FY2021.
Production at the new Malaysian factory has started during the second
half of FY2021. In FY2021, the Batteries Business leased a new factory
compound in Xiegang, Dongguan, China for relocation of the facilities for
NiMH rechargeable batteries and Carbon Zinc 9-volt batteries currently
located in Huizhou, China. The Vietnam factory for Alkaline cylindrical
batteries also started operation during the financial year.

Electronics and Acoustics Business

Sales of KEF products increased by 26.2%, with growth for both premium
loudspeakers and new media products despite the shortage in supply
of integrated circuits. The KEF LS50 Wireless Il sound system and KC62
subwoofer launched during FY2021 were very well received and recorded
increases in KEF's revenue by 31.0% and 37.2% in the American and
European markets respectively. Sales in the Asian market remained steady.
Revenue brought along by eCommerce also contributed significantly to the
positive sales increase during the pandemic.

The prolonged lockdowns and suspension of live performances in most
countries continued to suppress demand for the Group's professional
audio products. Revenue of the professional audio manufacturing business
and Celestion brand professional speaker driver business dropped by
40.3% and 26.6% respectively. However, improvement in sales mix due to
the positive revenue growth of KEF products improved gross profit margin.

Total revenue of the Electronics and Acoustics Business for FY2021
decreased by 11.9% to $$202.9 million.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (conTD)
EEEE @

Automotive Wire Harness Business

Revenue for the Automotive Wire Harness Business decreased by 6.1%
due to business suspension of automotive manufacturers in China and
the USA as well as component supply shortages and insufficient global
shipping capacity. Markets in the Americas remained weak with sales
declined by 21.3%, while sales in China increased by 6.3%.

Strengthening Renminbi and decreased revenue reduced gross profit.
The aggressive cost control measures adopted helped stabilize profit
contribution.

The Group has entered into a conditional agreement on 31 May 2021 to
dispose of the Automotive Wire Harness Business to Time Interconnect
Investment Limited, an effectively 24.35%-owned associate and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Time Interconnect Technology Limited (“Time
Interconnect”). Time Interconnect is currently a 63.85%-owned subsidiary
of Linkz Industries Limited (“Linkz"), which in turn is a 38.13%-owned
associate of GP Industries.

Other Industrial Investments

This business segment includes the Group’s investments in Meiloon
Industrial Co., Ltd (“Meiloon”) and Linkz. Revenue of Meiloon decreased
but its profit contribution increased from a gain recognized in FY2021
on disposal of its land and factory building located in Suzhou, China. GP
Industries’ share of such disposal gain amounted to approximately $$13.7
million. Profit contribution from Linkz increased for FY2021.

Financial Review

During the year, the Group’s net bank borrowings increased by HK$254
million to HK$2,440 million. As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate of the
Group’s shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests was HK$2,484
million and the Group’s gearing ratio (the ratio of consolidated net bank
borrowings to shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests) was
0.98 (31 March 2020: 1.03). The gearing ratios of the Company and GP
Industries were 0.57 (31 March 2020: 0.55) and 0.66 (31 March 2020:
0.66) respectively.

At 31 March 2021, 72% (31 March 2020: 90%) of the Group’s bank
borrowings was revolving or repayable within one year whereas 28% (31
March 2020: 10%) was repayable from one to five years. Most of these
bank borrowings are in US dollars, Singapore dollars and Hong Kong
dollars.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021
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The net current liability position of the Group as at 31 March 2021 was
due mainly to the Group’s strategy to consolidate some of the Group’s
older factories into new highly automated mega factories and to rebalance
the Group’s manufacturing capacity in Asia which led to a period of higher
investments in property, plant and equipment in the past few years.
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2021, the Group’s CAPEX amounted to
approximately HK$1,766 million in aggregate. These investments were
funded primarily by the Group’s internal resources, including cash and
short-term banking facilities.

Taking into consideration the Group’s internally generated funds and
available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient resources to settle its
current liabilities as they fall due.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currencies arises mainly from the net
cash flow and the translation of net monetary assets or liabilities of its
overseas subsidiaries. The Group continued to manage foreign exchange
risks prudently. Forward contracts, borrowings in local currencies and
local sourcing have been arranged to minimize the impact of currency
fluctuation.
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EVENTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
SBAE

Batteries

GP Batteries received the “CSR Advocate Mark” from Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency for the sixth year to acknowledge its dedication and
fulfillment as a social responsible organization.

GP Batteries was awarded “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partner (Supply Chain)” while two factories in China were awarded “Hong
Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent Partner (Manufacturing)”
by the Environment Bureau of Hong Kong and the Department of Industry
and Information Technology of Guangdong Province, China.

GP Batteries and three factories in China were named “EcoPartner”, “3
Years+ EcoPioneer” or “5 Years+ EcoPioneer” of the BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards by Federation of Hong Kong Industries
to recognize their contribution and effort in environmental protection and
minimizing pollution in the Pan Pearl River Delta region.

Eight battery products received Environmental Claim Validation (ECV) for
containing a minimum of 10% of recycled content.

Two plants in Malaysia received UL Zero Waste to Landfill (ZWTL) Gold
Validation and two factories in China and Malaysia got Silver Validation to
acknowledge their achievements in maximizing production waste diversion
and energy recovery as well as its ongoing commitment to sustainable
operations.

A plant in China was named the “Cleaning Production Enterprise
in Huizhou” by Bureau of Ecology and Environment of Huizhou of
Guangdong Province, China.

GP Batteries was awarded “Privacy-Friendly Awards Gold Certificate”
by Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data (PCPD), Hong
Kong to recognise its efforts in promoting the protection of personal data
privacy.

Nielsen’s MarketTrack Report ranked GP as the No.1 brand in sales volume
in the Alkaline battery segment as well as the rechargeable battery

segment in Hong Kong for the seventeenth consecutive year (2004-2020).

GP ReCyko Pro Charger was presented the “Red Dot Award: Product
Design 2021" by Red Dot Design Museum, Germany.
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Electronics and Acoustics

KEF LS50 Meta loudspeaker was named “Product of the year 2020 — Best
Stereo Speakers” and “Best Standmount Speaker £750-£1,500" by What
Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision, UK. Its Metamaterial Absorption Technology was
also named “Innovation of the Year 2020” by the same organization.

KEF launched Mu3 noise cancelling true wireless earphones, designed by
visionary designer Ross Lovegrove, to deliver pure and accurate sound.

KEF LS50 Wireless Il was named “Product of the year 2020 — Best Systems”
and “Best All-in-one System over £1,000” by What Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision,
UK. It was also presented a number of international awards in Europe and
Australia.

KEF Reference series received the “VGP Summer 2020 Award” from Home
Theatre File Plus in Japan.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSHREEEBN

Executive Directors

Victor LO Chung Wing GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 71, joined Gold
Peak Group in 1972 and has been appointed the Chairman and Chief
Executive since 1990. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of GP Industries Limited and GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Lo
is the chairman of M Plus Museum Limited under the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority in Hong Kong and a member of the board of
directors of Hong Kong Design Centre. In addition, he is a director of PMQ
Management Company Limited and the chairman of board of directors
of Hotel ICON Limited, which is the teaching and research hotel under
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”). Mr Lo graduated from
Institute of Design of Illinois Institute of Technology, US with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Product Design. He also holds an Honorary Doctorate in
Design from PolyU. He is the father of Ms Grace Lo Kit Yee.

Richard KU Yuk Hing aged 73, joined Gold Peak Group in 1978, Mr Ku
will retire as Executive Director with effect from 1 July 2021 after serving
the Board for 31 years, but he will continue to serve as Co-Vice Chairman
of GP Batteries International Limited. He has over 40 years’ experience of
international marketing in the batteries industry. Mr Ku graduated from
Sophia University, Japan with a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics.

Brian LI Yiu Cheung DBA, aged 68, has been appointed an Executive
Director since 2015. Dr Li joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and is currently
Executive Vice President of the Company and will be appointed Vice
Chairman with effect from 1 July 2021. He is also an Executive Director
and the Executive Vice President of GP Industries Limited. He has been
engaging in the electronic engineering and manufacturing industry
internationally and in China for 35 years. He is the vice chairman of The
Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association, a council member of the
Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council and a member of the Innovation
and Technology Development Committee of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries. He is also the member of SME’s Manufacturing Partnership
and Investment Task Force of HKTDC Belt and Road & Greater Bay
Area Committee. He currently serves as a member of the Co-operative
Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong. He is also a member
of the Industrial Advisory Committee for the Department of Industrial
Engineering and Decision Analytics of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, a member of the Advisory Committee for the Department
of Electronic Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a member of the Electronic and Information Engineering Programme
Board of Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education. Dr Li is a fellow of
The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from The University of British Columbia, Canada, a
Master’s degree in Global Business with Dean’s Honour from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from City University of Hong Kong.
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Michael LAM Hin Lap aged 60, joined Gold Peak Group in 2014 and
has been appointed an Executive Director since 2019. Mr Lam is currently
the General Manager of the Company and will be appointed Managing
Director with effect from 1 July 2021. He is an Executive Director of GP
industries Limited and will be appointed Vice Chairman and Executive
Vice President with effect from 1 July 2021. He is also a Director of GP
Batteries International Limited. He first joined Gold Peak Group in 2001,
and was transferred to a global energy management group following
the disposal of the Group’s electrical business in 2007. He has been in
senior management positions for 20 years. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from The University of New South Wales, Australia.

Brian WONG Tze Hang aged 58, joined Gold Peak Group in 1993
and has been appointed an Executive Director since 2019. Mr Wong is
currently Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also a Director of
GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Wong has 35 years’ experience in
the accounting field and is a fellow of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the UK. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of London, UK.

Non-Executive Directors

Karen NG Ka Fai CFA, aged 40, has been appointed a Non-Executive
Director since 2015. Ms Ng managed transactions in Asia for global
financial institutions, and possesses more than 10 years of experience in
investment in the region. She graduated from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, US with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science. Ms Ng is the daughter of the late Mr Andrew Ng,
an Executive Director of the Company from 1984 to 2014.

LUI Ming Wah SBS, JP, PhD, aged 83, has been appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director since 1995. Dr Lui is currently an
honorary chairman of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association,
an honorary president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong, an honorary chairman of The Federation of HK Shandong
Community Organizations and an advisor of Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre. He is also a fellow of the The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Dr Lui is currently the managing director of Keystone Electronics
Co. Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of AV Concept
Holdings Limited, L.K. Technology Holdings Limited and Asian Citrus
Holdings Limited, all of which are companies listed in Hong Kong. He
obtained his Master's and Doctoral degrees from the University of New
South Wales, Australia and the University of Saskatchewan, Canada
respectively.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cont'p)

EEREREEEGEN @

Frank CHAN Chi Chung FCCA, FCPA, CPA, aged 67, has been appointed
an Independent Non-Executive Director since 2004. He is currently a group
executive director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic Industries Company
Limited. Mr Chan is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He is qualified to practise as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong.

CHAN Kei Biu PhD, aged 74, has been appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director since 2005. Prof Chan is an honorary chairman of
The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council of
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He is also an honorary president
of both the Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science
and Technology and the Hong Kong Mould and Product Technology
Association. In addition, he is the professional advisor and committee
member of the Hong Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies and
Manufacturing Industries. Prof Chan is currently the chairman and senior
managing director of Surface Mount Technology Limited.

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung PhD, FASME, FHKEng, JP, aged 68, has
been appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director since 2019. Prof
Tong is also Non-Executive Independent Director of GP Industries Limited.
He has over 30 years of teaching, research and administrative experience
in universities in the US and Hong Kong. Prior to serving as president of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University from 2009 to 2018, he was the
dean of the School of Engineering and Applied Science at The George
Washington University, US. Being an expert in the field of heat transfer,
Prof Tong is dedicated to addressing issues concerning energy use and
sustainable development. He is a fellow of the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers, the Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences
and the International Thermal Conductivity Conference. Prof Tong’s
public engagement includes being chairman of the Citizens Advisory
Committee on Community Relations as well as member of the Advisory
Committee Commission on Corruption of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption, and member of the InnoHK Steering Committee.
Additionally, he has been appointed member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He is also the chief executive
officer of AMTD Foundation and chairman of AMTD Digital Inc.. The
former is a charity organization set up to assist AMTD Group in fulfilling
its corporate social responsibility. Prof Tong is currently a non-executive
director of Freetech Road Recycling Technology (Holdings) Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Xiaomi Corporation, Gravitation
Fintech HK Limited and Airstar Bank Limited. Prof Tong holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Oregon State University,
US, and holds a Master's and a Doctoral degrees in the same discipline
from the University of California, Berkeley, US.
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Senior Management

Victor CHONG Toong Ying aged 56, joined Gold Peak Group in 2016
and will be appointed an Executive Director with effect from 1 July 2021.
He is currently Director, Co-Vice Chairman and President of GP Batteries
International Limited. He has 30 years’ working experience in electrical
energy management, and has held senior management positions in
strategic leadership and international operation and business development
covering China, Asia Pacific, Europe and the Middle East. Mr Chong
is a member of Australian Institute of Company Directors. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from Royal Melbourne Institute
of Technology, Australia.

Waltery LAW Wang Chak aged 58, joined Gold Peak Group in 2018 and
will be appointed an Executive Director with effect form 1 July 2021. Mr
Law is currently Senior Vice President, Group Finance Management of the
Company. He is also Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer and Senior Vice President, Finance and Corporate Development
of GP Industries Limited. Mr Law has over 30 years’ experience in global
fund raising and floatation exercises, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
financial advisory, corporate restructuring, investors relations, financial
due diligence, and financial audit. Mr Law is a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is currently registered as a certified public accountant
with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds
a Bachelor's degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in Financial
Economics, both from the London School of Economics and Political
Science, the University of London, UK.

Grace LO Kit Yee aged 50, joined Gold Peak Group in 2002 and is
currently President of KEF Audio Group under GP Acoustics International
Limited. She will be appointed as Deputy Managing Director of the
Company and Executive Director of GP Industries Limited with effect from
1 July 2021. She graduated from Northwestern University, US and holds
a Master of Design degree from lllinois Institute of Technology, US as
well as an MBA degree from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. She is the daughter of Mr Victor Lo Chung Wing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) in Appendix 14
to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Code, except for the deviations from A.2.1 of
the Code, details of which are set out below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board of directors (the “Board”) is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprised five executive directors (one of whom
is the Chairman), one non-executive director and four independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of all directors of the Company are set out on
pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)

Richard KU Yuk Hing (will retire with effect from 1 July 2021)

Brian LI Yiu Cheung (Vice Chairman (will be appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)
& Executive Vice President)

Michael LAM Hin Lap

Brian WONG Tze Hang

Non-Executive Directors:

LEUNG Pak Chuen (Non-Executive Vice Chairman)
(retired on 1 October 2020)

Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days
has been given to all directors for all regular board meetings and the directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and
accompanying board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent in full to
all directors within reasonable time prior to the meeting.

The Board's primary function is to assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. The directors are collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. Other duties of the directors include but not limited to
maintaining effective control of the Company, giving specific strategic direction to
the Company, reviewing, approving and monitoring the fundamental financial and
business strategies, plans and major corporate actions, ensuring that the Company
complies with the relevant laws, regulations and codes of business practice,
ensuring that the Company communicates with shareholders and the relevant
stakeholders transparently and promptly and monitoring the overall corporate
governance functions of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Although the Board may and has delegated some of its responsibilities and functions
to various committees and principal divisions, it acknowledges that it remains
ultimately accountable for the performance and affairs of the Company.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by the
company secretary and copies of minutes are sent to the directors for their records.
Each Board member is entitled to have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary and, upon reasonable request and in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, five board meetings and two general
meetings were held and the attendance of each director was set out as follows:

HEBTESER
EEXH
Number of board

HEBITRRER
KERH
Number of general

ESlRE Name of director meetings attended/held meeting attended/held
ZEfES Victor LO Chung Wing 5/5 212
FRE Richard KU Yuk Hing 5/5 212
TR Brian LI Yiu Cheung 5/5 212
MBS Michael LAM Hin Lap 5/5 2/2
=¥I8 Brian WONG Tze Hang 5/5 2/2
Az LEUNG Pak Chuen 3/3* 1/1*
(FA2020E 108 1HRE) (retired on 1 October 2020)
= ARz LUI Ming Wah 5/5 212
BREER Frank CHAN Chi Chung 5/5 2/2
BRELSR CHAN Kei Biu 4/5 12
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 5/5 2/2
EEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 5/5 212

* EHIRSETERRE

SRR AT - AR OELEENT
BNZIESIERES  UBREES NEELER
RAHHE LR FIRE RS L HRA R
BB EIE - BRI DA R IR
FrEEE - DB RNER A ER LA EFA
AL -

FrEEELI2 MENREBMEXE BRI
SUARBEENIETRHESRRE - RAESHF
ERN - FAARAEFELHER LHRRNEESEIIR

e

*  Total number of meetings held during tenure

In respect of continuing professional development, the Company will provide
an induction package including necessary information and briefings for newly
appointed directors and directors are encouraged to participate in professional
development courses and seminars to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. Ongoing
professional training had been and will be offered to all directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as directors of a listed company.

All the directors have participated in continuing professional development by
attending seminars or perusing materials relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate governance. During the year under review, a professional training course
was organised for the directors by the Company in relation to update on the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The corporate governance function of the Group is collectively performed by the
Board. The Board acknowledges overseeing the corporate governance function
of the Group collectively and agreed to comply with a specific written terms of
reference. During the year under review, the Board has performed the following
corporate governance functions:

— reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
made recommendations;

— reviewed the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

— monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; and

— reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company. Although A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual, the Board considers that the present structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the Group as
the Group’s principal businesses are separately listed and run by different boards of
directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the needs of the
business of the Company.

The Company has entered into a letter of appointment with each of the non-
executive directors and the independent non-executive directors pursuant to which
they are appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the articles of association of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The main duties and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
composition of the Board at least annually, to make recommendations to the
Board on the changes of the Board, including the appointment or re-appointment
of directors, to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive directors, provided that no
directors being involved in fixing his own terms of appointment and no independent
non-executive directors being involved in assessing his own independence. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee follow the guidelines set out in the
Code and have been posted on the Company’s website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman)

LUl Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

LEUNG Pak Chuen (retired on 1 October 2020)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

HE BITEERE

Number of meeting

REXRRE Name of member attended/held
AL Victor LO Chung Wing 11
=R LUl Ming Wah 11
BREEE Frank CHAN Chi Chung 11
BRELSR CHAN Kei Biu 11
2Raz LEUNG Pak Chuen 0/0*

* EHIRSTEERE

NEE2021F3A31HILEFE  RREEQDERE
BIRNEERZ TR  EFREER - BFN
B LERRRE  RENAER 5 ()TEBIIIER
TEFZEMLNL (NNEFRUEFCRENENE
ERHER - RvWvEEEFREETHE -

REBERIPIME RENREREELATESNE
AIREF - REEZEEEVEBFRIEFH/VER -
c BEABEBRE
FIRRFER  LHEERFEEEARRES
B EFRNETRS M2 ZENEFEREER
i o ZARRREST EHARR « ARGRERAARABE
AR - RREESEMRFRBERABREN

EFERRAZITEER BT PEREFRAKE
LML - TEEFNERHRIEEACRE -
REZENRE (BEERRINEEE - M# » BXEL
B UERFBEES M FRERBER) - XU
EEEERMAATFR—EREEREFNETE
BYLUER - AAABREEFREMA RS IR
XHFBERAFEMESRNAFERRNEEZEAR -

*  Total number of meetings held during tenure

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
March 2021 included (i) reviewing the board diversity policy, the nomination policy,
procedures and criteria for nomination of Directors and the structure, size and
composition of the Board, (i) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and (iv) considering the Board succession plan.

The nomination policy sets out the criteria and procedures for the selection,
appointment/re-appointment of directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee reviews the composition of the Board at least annually and makes
recommendations to the Board on the changes of the Board. Proposed candidate(s)
will be asked to submit the necessary information in order for the Board to assess
their suitability. The Board shall ensure that the procedures of nomination, selection
and appointment/re-appointment are in compliance with the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance and the Company’s Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee reviews the nomination policy on a regular basis so as to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity
of members of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit, and
candidates will be considered by objective criteria, including but not limited to
skills, knowledge, professional experience, cultural and educational background,
gender, age and length of service, for their potential contribution to the Board and
the Company as a whole in order to achieve board efficiency. The Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and to review the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee comprised:

LUI Ming Wah (Chairman)

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

LEUNG Pak Chuen (retired on 1 October 2020)

Karen NG Ka Fai (appointed on 1 April 2020)

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung (appointed on 1 April 2020)

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in technicality, business and
accounting in the Audit Committee. The composition and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines set out in the Code
and have been posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, two Audit Committee meetings were held

REZE - BAREZHEEBREFIANT - and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:
HE BITEERY
Number of meetings
mE%SE Name of member attended/held
=Rz LUl Ming Wah 212
PRAAER Frank CHAN Chi Chung 212
BRELSR CHAN Kei Biu 172
YN LEUNG Pak Chuen 1/1*
RKRE Karen NG Ka Fai 2/2
BEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 212

* EEIRSETEERE
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*  Total number of meetings held during tenure

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2021
included reviewing the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2020, with recommendations to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee met with the external
auditor twice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review and endorse
the remuneration policy of the directors and senior management, to approve
the directors’ service contracts and to make recommendations to the Board for
the remuneration of the directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee has taken sufficient measures to ensure that no director is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprised:

Frank CHAN Chi Chung (Chairman)

LUl Ming Wah

CHAN Kei Biu

Victor LO Chung Wing

LEUNG Pak Chuen (retired on 1 October 2020)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the
Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one Remuneration Committee meeting was
held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

HEBITEERY

Number of meeting
MEKE Name of member attended/held
BREEE Frank CHAN Chi Chung 11
= hRZE LUl Ming Wah 11
PR EL 5 CHAN Kei Biu 11
e Victor LO Chung Wing 11
YIS LEUNG Pak Chuen 0/0*

© ERNETRERR

WHE2021463A31 BILEE - FHESSEARE
FEREFREREEE S FHEAR LW T
-

EREZESHRS

FARCHEFETHESRKS  FRER LHRR
i+ T EHBTABERETESFIZNRESTAL
(MREESTRIL) (FTASTR) - RAAATMAESRN
FEAE  AATEERMABEESCETRETH
FTARERYZERY

BERE%

EERBRAAERT  MREEREEEELAT
i R AAS BRI B - EFERALAHE
BERMERSHNER AT EARAFECLNE
e Hit  EFRERFELEEEREAQATNYG
B -

EFRBERERAEARTER - PHIRE - A6
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*  Total number of meetings held during tenure

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
March 2021 included reviewing the remuneration policy and the remuneration of
the directors and senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, the Company confirmed that all directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue in business.
Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports,
announcements, financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to the regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted annual review on the system of risk management
and internal control of the Group and its effectiveness covering the financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management functions and considered
them effective and adequate. The Board is committed to implementing an effective
and sound risk management and internal control system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, external auditor

of the Group, for services provided during the year ended 31 March 2021 were as
follows:

2 ErER

BRFFE Services rendered Fees paid/payable
:F/%E

HK$'000

EETIRE Audit services 10,528
JEEFT RS (Fi5E) Non-audit services (note) 1,434
ast Total 11,962
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Note: Non-audit services were mainly tax management and consultation.
COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Louis WONG Man Kon is the company
secretary of the Company and he has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
by obtaining no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
under review.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy (the “Policy”) which
aims at promoting and facilitating effective communication with its shareholders.
The objective is to ensure that the Company provides timely, clear, reliable and
relevant information for its shareholders in exercising their rights. The Policy includes
how shareholders can convene a general meeting, the procedures by which
enquiries may be put to the Board and the procedures for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meeting. Sufficient contact details for the above can also be found
in the Policy. A procedure for election of directors was also adopted to provide
guidelines on how shareholders can nominate an individual as director of the
Company. The Policy and the procedures for nomination of directors are published
on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no change to the articles of

association of the Company. The articles of association of the Company has been
posted on the Company’s website.



ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

RIBHERR R

AEBRNBOHBRENTERHAEECEE B
FREZERMSET - REIE20219F3831HIEF
B AEEETEERE H2MEREEMNTEE
BEENEIR © 20208 202 1 EEE2IBE ~ #EM
ERWE  BIEAA BB FTAL DB M

=R

AREE o TIE/NER Rt B SORE R =) M BE
MO WRARHIEEMESENZZRET
KRB EREZY - M5 - REBRTIEWFES| fMat
BILURREER BRI EREIR

REBH B BERERE - REHRIRE(CHFE -
MAHEEERR  BOHT RIS X&)
BENBETEA R AZR « EANMK » DUERBRM
BRHVEF - AEBARESERBE - LURDAHR
EHE  FEREHRRNTE -

AEERETENMEREEGEDEREERE
= WARZIHER 2L EDINE TR ERALE
A—ENEEEEEREMERE  #F  BRIR
R EEERNER

AEB-BLURERE2NREERHEE  BVET
FrEBBERNRB 2 EREERZDANER - REEAL
REBEREUERETER  LUSERSHERMR
¥ o

ANER

AEEHE—ZFMBEDNE TR » B NEEEB
HPIERIRIEEALNT7,510A - AEBBNAETIE
M2 REENTIERER @ RiFRREATEERSE
RS - W E AR E N BUR M e iE - U
TERAEEEEKEXEBER R SBMISRT —BUK
o

FEEEBBERASTERENET @ #IHBMZR
IR e TAFRES] - RBSER RAIT MR - £ B
T2EBEEERER - EEMAEETT  PUKFEX
BB S B ILIEHAEENIE -

FEBHHETERNRESERIIER  WHRIEH
REZBRY - RESRREMER K EIIESAL
ERRERNL - SIEMSNETESERATS -

REEGE T —HEREGE - RFFERNABBRER
BRERRAEXNKRETR  LREERAL

e

ER—FeBHtEEEMNhE  AREEETHEER
BEEENL  YRAFEBRBBERNFHRE
FhELE - AMEEC2HEE RS THENES
SIREHEL B F 0 Y ERZ EAERENEMSIT
E o AEEEE1OFETBHSMBM SRR AR
REAIRIREE - W RAEE-—BERFRRIFEE
NRZEE -

The Group is committed to reducing the impact on the environment and being
socially responsible to its employees, customers and the communities. During
the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations relating to environmental, social and governance issues. The 2020-2021
Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be published separately on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL

To effectively monitor and minimize waste and emissions, task forces have been set
up. Policies are in place to cut down hazardous and non-hazardous wastes as well
as to properly handle industrial waste water and hazardous wastes. There are also
recycling guidelines and programs to reduce wastes and for more efficient use of
resources.

The Group strives to reduce energy consumption to alleviate effects on global
warming. Green building concept has been employed to reduce energy
consumption in its factories. Air-conditioning, electricity and water conservation
have been closely tracked and reviewed to maintain a lean and an efficient
operation. Product packaging is constantly reviewed in order to reduce material
usage and minimise the impact on the environment.

The Group maintains a well-established supply chain management policy to monitor
the quality of suppliers. Random audits at suppliers’ production sites are conducted
to ensure their continual compliance with the technical requirements and quality of
products, health, safety and environment standards as well as business ethics.

The production of safe and quality products has always been the top priority of the
Group. The Group strives to comply with all regulatory requirements pertaining to
the health and safety of its products and services. Appropriate channels have been
set up to receive customer feedback for continuous improvement.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is supported by a motivated workforce of approximately 7,510
people worldwide. The Group strives to provide its employees with a safe and
healthy workplace and offer them fair and competitive remuneration packages.
Remuneration policies and packages are reviewed regularly to ensure that
compensation and benefits are in line with the market of each territory.

The Group invests in employees through development programs to enhance their
soft and hard skills as well as work competence in preparation for their career
development. Employees participated in various workshops and training sessions on
laws and regulations, management and leadership skills, as well as language and
communication during the year.

The Group is committed to compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws and
regulations. It prohibits its employees from offering, making or receiving any bribes
or kickbacks for the purpose of securing an improper business advantage, or
otherwise engaging in corrupt activities or practices.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing policy that allows anyone to report
misconduct or malpractice without fear of reprisal through a confidential channel.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group nurtures a caring culture among
employees in the workplace and reciprocates to the community through
participation in various community events during the year. The Group has joined the
Community Chest’s Corporate and Employee Contribution Program for decades.
It is also an active supporter of many community events throughout the year. In
recognition of its continuous commitment in good corporate citizenship, the Group
has been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for 19 consecutive years.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are investment holding and development,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of batteries, electronics and acoustics
products, and automotive wire harness, which are set out in notes 44 and 45 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. Further discussion and analysis
of these activities, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
the Group is facing and an indication of likely future developments of the Group’s
business, can be found in the Review of Operations set out on pages 16 to 19 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 47
and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. No interim
dividend (2020: 2.0 HK cents per share) was paid to the shareholders during the
year. To preserve the Company’s financial resources, the board of directors does not
propose a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil). On the basis
of 2.0 HK cents (2021: nil) per share, being the interim dividend for the year ended
31 March 2020, total dividends for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$15,694,000 (2021: nil).

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
ten financial years is set out on pages 10 and 11.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$458,245,000 to expand its business. Details of movements in
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March
2020 were represented by the retained profits and the dividend reserve totalling
HK$4,833,000 (2021: nil).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$154,000 (2020: HK$224,000).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)

Richard KU Yuk Hing (will retire with effect from 1 July 2021)

Brian LI Yiu Cheung (Vice Chairman (will be appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)
& Executive Vice President)

Michael LAM Hin Lap

Brian WONG Tze Hang

Victor CHONG Toong Ying (will be appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)

Waltery LAW Wang Chak (will be appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)

Non-Executive Directors:

LEUNG Pak Chuen (Non-Executive Vice Chairman)
(retired on 1 October 2020)

Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs.
Michael LAM Hin Lap, Brian WONG Tze Hang and Frank CHAN Chi Chung are
due to retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. In accordance with Article 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs. Victor CHONG Toong Ying and Waltery LAW Wang Chak
who will be appointed by the Board as directors with effect from 1 July 2021, shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors have been
appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director
or other officer shall be liable for any loss or damages which may happen to or be
incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation
thereto. The Company had arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and other officers of the Group for the year
under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") ) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
Appendix 10 “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
contained in the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

(a) Interests in shares of the Company (long positions)
As at 31 March 2021, the interests of the directors and the chief executive in
the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

BeTERmHE
Number of -
ordinary shares ARECHT
held 3V A= s e
Percentage of
EPN issued share
Personal capital of
E=E Name of director interests the Company
%
R Victor LO Chung Wing 199,415,289 25.41
B8 Richard KU Yuk Hing 2,629,684 0.34
ey Brian LI Yiu Cheung 300,000 0.04
MREESL Michael LAM Hin Lap - _
=¥IE Brian WONG Tze Hang - -
=R LUI Ming Wah - _
BREE Frank CHAN Chi Chung - -
BRELH CHAN Kei Biu . -
EEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung - -
RERE Karen NG Ka Fai 40,646,524 5.18
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated corporations (long
positions)
As at 31 March 2021, the direct beneficial interests of the directors and the
chief executive in the shares of GP Industries Limited (“GP Ind”), an 85.5%
owned subsidiary of the Company, were as follows:

FETERMBBERAECHT
BiZERL
Number of ordinary shares
and percentage of their
issued share capital held

GPI %
BEE Name of director GP Ind
#E

Number %
ZEfPEE Victor LO Chung Wing 300,000 0.06
RN Richard KU Yuk Hing 340,000 0.07
R Brian LI Yiu Cheung 1,465,000 0.30
REBIZ Michael LAM Hin Lap - _
=FIE Brian WONG Tze Hang - -
=R LUI Ming Wah - -
PRASER Frank CHAN Chi Chung - -
PRESE CHAN Kei Biu - _
BEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung - -
S8 Karen NG Ka Fai 94,603 0.02
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the directors, the chief
executive or their associates had any interest in the securities of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as defined in SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the directors, chief executive, their spouses or children under the age of 18
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or the chief
executive of the Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are in the opinion that due to the excessive number of subsidiaries
and their directors, disclosure of the names of all subsidiaries and their directors
in this Directors’ Report would be made by way of reference to the information
on the names of subsidiaries and their directors under “Investor Relations” at
www.goldpeak.com.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under section 336
of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company:

FATCHITRS
ZERL

Percentage of

FEEERME issued share
B =T Number of capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held the Company
REB A 81,888,764 (note 1) 10.44%
TO May Mee Beneficial owner (Fg5E1)
REE @A 40,646,524 (note 1) 5.18%
Jessica NG Sheen Fai Beneficial owner (BFzE)
Ring Lotus Investment Limited SEHIAT RS 60,288,143 (note 2) 7.68%
(“Ring Lotus”) Interests of controlled corporation (f¥EE2)
HSBC International Trustee Limited FEA 60,288,143 (note 2) 7.68%
("HSBC Trustee"”) Trustee (FF5E2)

UG

1. BREBAEIRRBEZLIDHARARZFIMTEER
SME L L BHRBRER

2. REMELZEFEREERING LotusFHSBC Trustee s Bl
{EHRAYVEA » HSBC Trustee IR 25 AMI B DR (E
JEE#EH 60,288,143 &I #eat » IBLE MR 1D AHSBC
Trusteez 2 & FEAE/AFRING Lotus U2 E /AT RS
BFTHS -
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Notes:

1. Madam TO May Mee and Ms. Jessica NG Sheen Fai are the mother and sister, respectively,
of Ms. Karen NG Ka Fai, a non-executive director of the Company.

2. According to the two corporate substantial shareholder notices filed by Ring Lotus and
HSBC Trustee respectively, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be interested in 60,288,143
shares in its capacity as the trustee of these shares, which were in turn owned by Ring
Lotus, a company wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee, as interests of controlled corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company) who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of any class of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or other
similar rights as at 31 March 2021 and there had been no exercise of convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a stable dividend payment to its shareholders whilst retaining
adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s future growth. The Board of Directors of
the Company determines the interim dividend and recommends the final dividend
which requires the approval of shareholders of the Company. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is subject to any restrictions under the Companies
Ordinance and the Company’s Articles of Association. In deciding whether to
declare any dividend, the Board will take into account a number of factors,
including the financial results, the distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, and the current and future development plans of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy of the Company as appropriate from time to
time.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

A brief discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance during
the year under review is set out on page 33 of this annual report which forms part
of the Directors’ Report. The 2020-2021 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will be published separately at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the applicable laws and regulations.
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 7.17% and 22.66% (2020: 7.55% and 23.79%)
respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 1.45% and 4.99% (2020: 1.44% and 5.31%) respectively
of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (which to the

knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE, AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are set out in note 47
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-

appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Victor LO Chung Wing

Chairman & Chief Executive
28 June 2021
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TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gold Peak Industries
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “the Group”) set out on pages 47 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables to the
Group's consolidated financial position and the involvement of
subjective judgement and management estimates in evaluating the
expected credit losses (“ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net trade receivables amounted
to HK$1,209 million and represented approximately 13.8% of the
Group's total assets.

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL of trade receivables based on collective basis through grouping
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
internal credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.
In addition, trade receivables that are credit-impaired are assessed for
ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of the trade receivables
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows with the
consideration of expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group recognised a net amount of HK$2.6 million of impairment
of trade receivables in the profit or loss for the current year and
the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$26.5 million.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021

BN E T BERHRAZEFEE
o THEREGHEBWETRKABRBRRA T

o WMEAAEEETREREMAENZAEN - BIER2021
FIANBZIRWDHNT > TTERAGERIHTIRE LLEHEH &
T HEE R LA XS

s EREBEEEEN2021F3831BRKNEREERAHEE E
B BEEHREERERKES G - BEEE/H
HENERD B EEREENFRANCAERE - LLSES
BREEERER AHRAREE (SRERENER RAEME
B K

o EHEVMIEHRERMT 23 EISAMEEKETRET G HES
=

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

e Understanding key controls on how the management estimates
the loss allowance for trade receivables;

e Testing the integrity of information used by management to
develop the collective basis including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 March 2021, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sales agreements,
sales invoices and other supporting documents;

e Challenging management’s basis and judgement in determining
credit loss allowance on trade receivables as at 31 March 2021,
including their identification of credit-impaired trade receivables,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping of the remaining
trade debtors into different categories in the collective basis,
and the basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category in
the collective basis (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and

e Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment assessment
of trade receivables in notes 23 and 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Allowance for inventories
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We identified the allowance for inventories as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance to the consolidated statement of
financial position and significant estimate involved by management
in the assessment process. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has
inventories of HK$1,192 million and recognised an allowance for
inventories of approximately HK$5.5 million during the year.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, there
are significant judgement and estimates involved in assessing the level
of inventory allowance required in respect of slow moving inventories
and the net realisable values of inventories at the end of the reporting
period with reference to the current market demand and future
sales plan, aging analysis and the estimated selling prices, less the
estimated cost of completion.
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Our procedures in relation to allowance for inventories included:

e Understanding management’s process over the assessment of
allowance for inventories, including identification of slow-moving
inventories and determination of the net realisable value;

e Assessing the net realisable values of inventories and evaluating
the appropriateness of the level of inventory allowance required
in respect of slow moving stock, by considering the current
market demand, ageing analysis and the estimated selling prices,
less the estimated cost of completion;

e Testing the integrity of the inventory ageing prepared by
management, on a sample basis, to the corresponding goods

receipt documents or production reports; and

e Testing the subsequent sales or usage of inventories, on a sample
basis, to the supporting documents.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report
is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

o~ =
retasR
For the year ended 31 March 2021  #/ZE2021F3831HIEFE
2021 2020
R Fi&nx FHBIT
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bxm Revenue 5 6,706,177 6,051,511
SHERA Cost of sales (4,912,014) (4,459,427)
EF Gross profit 1,794,163 1,592,084
E A R AR Other income and other gains 111,798 384,779
HERDHEZH Selling and distribution expenses (836,547) (770,799)
TBEE Administrative expenses (768,426) (749,516)
Hihsz H R EAESE Other expenses and other losses 6 (117,501) (191,411)
BESERA Finance costs 7 (136,982) (180,821)
RN E S Share of results of associates 240,960 133,435
FR¥REu i Profit before taxation 8 287,465 217,751
RIg Taxation 10 (79,409) (126,454)
2EEF Profit for the year 208,056 91,297
2ERNEER Profit for the year attributable to:
ZN/NEIEZ Z=PN Owners of the Company 121,862 20,902
JEIE R R Non-controlling interests 86,194 70,395
208,056 91,297
SRR Earnings per share
B (&) Basic 12 15.5 HK cents 2.7 HK cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HRERERHMEEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #ZE2021F3831HIEFE

48

2021 2020
FiE&n FHBIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
2EFRF] Profit for the year 208,056 91,297
Hit 2wt (i) : Other comprehensive income (expense):
PELZ AJBEERT R 185 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
IEH - profit or loss.
BNEBINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising from translation of
[ERZ=%E foreign operations 120,957 (90,222)
AIENBARRDFER (BR) B8 Net translation (surplus) deficit reclassified to
B EZRERS profit or loss upon deregistration of subsidiaries (21) 31,817
BEMENN T E 2 S5 Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges 4,136 (2,078)
& AR EMM2E Share of other comprehensive income (expense) of
Wk (S2ih) associates 73,902 (59,580)
198,974 (120,063)
PEETF S EX D ET I Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to
IEH profit or loss.
DIAFEF AR MR Z Fair value gain (loss) on equity instruments at
AT Rz /A EWE (B518) fair value through other comprehensive income 8,090 (18,962)
2EHEMBEUE (ZH) Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year 207,064 (139,025)
2EXEME () @5 Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year 415,120 (47,728)
2EWE (ZH) RERRER ¢ Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to:
KATHEBA Owners of the Company 264,944 (77,115)
JEFE R Non-controlling interests 150,176 29,387
415,120 (47,728)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBRRR

At 31 March 2021 72021438 31H
2021 2020
R Fi&nx FHBIT
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
EiRBEE Non-current assets
Wz~ B R Property, plant and equipment 13 2,234,627 1,833,304
EREEE Right-of-use assets 14 282,447 177,177
Frb & AR R Interests in associates 15 1,784,099 1,501,587
DA ERT AR 2Rz Equity instruments at fair value through
i /N=E other comprehensive income 16 60,065 58,413
B ERE Intangible assets 18 1,170 1,247
e Goodwill 19 79,066 79,066
FERENEWERIE Non-current receivables 21 86,179 83,392
IEmENRE Non-current deposits 23 38,749 26,086
BRI EE Deferred tax assets 31 27,787 20,867
4,594,189 3,781,139
MENEE Current assets
T7E Inventories 22 1,192,082 914,157
FEWE TR B EL A W AR TE Trade and other receivables and
LIBNFRIR prepayments 23 1,557,618 1,197,047
FEMRE = Dividend receivable 24,826 26,723
AU IR Taxation recoverable 27,308 25,001
PIATHEST AIB#R Equity instruments at fair value through
BATER profit or loss 17 7,455 -
IRITHT B AS Bank balances, deposits and cash 25 1,318,468 1,250,672
4,127,757 3,413,600
DERGHEEE Assets classified as held for sale 26 42,214 43,385
4,169,971 3,456,985
mENEE Current liabilities
FEFIRIBENE R Creditors and accrued charges 27 1,953,572 1,303,249
aRas Contract liabilities 27 51,451 43,573
FE(SFIE Taxation payable 61,579 34,857
mESRTE Derivative financial instruments 24 7,122 6,554
HEAE Lease liabilities 28 72,339 61,803
IRITER ~ BEEERAMER Bank loans, import and other loans 29 2,710,704 3,087,259
4,856,767 4,537,295
mENEERE Net current liabilities (686,796) (1,080,310)
BEEREREGE Total assets less current liabilities 3,907,393 2,700,829
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (contD)
GEMBERRR®

At 31 March 2021 22021438 31H

2021 2020
R FiE&n FHBT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FEiRENEE Non-current liabilities
HE&E Lease liabilities 28 215,585 94,568
RITREMER Bank and other loans 30 1,047,933 349,644
BRI IEEE Deferred tax liabilities 31 59,898 41,062
EAREE Provision for restructuring 32 99,810 99,810
1,423,226 585,084
BERE Net assets 2,484,167 2,115,745
BEXRiEE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 33 921,014 921,014
&1 Reserves 677,760 379,884
P N/NCIE 2PN - L Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 1,598,774 1,300,898
JEE R RER Non-controlling interests 885,393 814,847
EmiEEE Total equity 2,484,167 2,115,745

FATEEFISSHATRZ AT HERE » ER20214  The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 155 were approved and

6A28HMEEF®G » WAL TESAKRES authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2021 and are signed on its
behalf by:

g gt Victor LO Chung Wing Brian LI Yiu Cheung

= E=E Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeERgER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & ZE2021F3831HIEFE

FRNAATERA
Attrbutable to owners of the Company
S RE sk
Bl i 5
BE EERR  Popty BERE  RERE  hestet  REEE  WHRE  REEA Non-  BHER
Share legal  revaluation  Translation Captal  revaluation ~ Dividend ~ Hedging  Retained 15T controling Total
capital surplus reserve Teserve reserve Teserve Teserve reserve profits — Subotal  interests equity

TEr TER TEn T TER TEn T TER TEw TEr TR TR
HKJ000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKF'O00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000

(K&t (K&t
(note) (note)
201954818 Balance at 1 April 2019 921,014 13,601 37804 (302264) 277,161 16,112 19617 (1767) 417341 1398679 815904 2214583
24 Prftfor theyear . . - . . - . Soam AWM 0 9w
BENHELERER Exchange differences arising from tranglaton of
foreign operations - - - (53327) - - - - - (53327 (36895 (90.222)
SENBATREELEESHARE  Netrandlation defict redlassied to proft or loss
B upon deregistration of subsilaries - - -9 - - - - -0 4508 31817
BenHRLATE RS Net change in fair value of cash low hedges - - - - - - -1 N (] 300 (0m)
DIATEFALIAENRZRATE S  Fairvelue loss on equity instruments at fair value
ATEEE through other comprehensive income - - - (3,590) - (14267) - - - (g (105 (18,962)
i Share of other comprehensive expense of associates - - - (52309 - - - - 3 (52274) (7306)  (59,580)
2R () hB8E Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year - - - B0 - (14260) -8 09T (s 9381 (@)
E)\E Transfer of reserves - - - - 20441 - - - (0441 - - -
BEEAVMERBATEMER  Acguistion of additionaliterests in a subsidary through
(Histaab) capitalisation (note 44(0) - - - - (440 - - - - an 440 -
SEMEAR (HH4db)) Deregistration of subsidaries (note 44(3) - - . - 3% . - B Y] 190 (5703 (6651)
—BRBEATELRRENLESE  Capital contrbution from non-controling shareholders of
(Risea4b)) asubsidiary (note 44(b)) R R - R R _ R B _ S TATTRN K
[ FHEARARRTRE Dividend paid to non-controllng shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - (3629 (3629
ERBRE (K1) Dividend paid (note 11)
-WI9ERERS - 2019 final dividend - - - - - - (19617) - - (19617) - (19617)
- 0005 HERS -2020 interim dividend - - - - - - - - (15,694)  (15,694) - (15,694)
- - - - 8,665 - (19617) - (9.714) 20,666) (30,444) (51,110)
12020538310 At31 March 2020 921,014 13,601 37804 (384271) 285806 1,905 - (3545) 428564 1300898 814847 2115745

SNTXEB)ERAT —FRE"F”_-FF% | 51



52

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (conT'D)
GERSEE R®

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #ZE2021F3831HIEFE
BERSLTREA
Attributable to owners of the Company
% b HHER
] Ef5RiE s
RE  itERH  Popety  BERE  RABE  estment  HARE  REREA Non-  FEHEE
Share Legal  revaluation  Translation Capital  revaluation ~ Hedging  Retained NGt controlling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Subtotal interests equity
Tin TiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn Tén Tin Tin Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(hist) (W3t
(note) (note)
202054818 At 1 April 2020 921,014 13,601 37,804 (384.271) 285,826 1,905 (3,545) 428564 1300898 814847 2115745
2 Prfitfor theyer - - - - N . S mgR s 81% 20805
BERNSHELERER Eichange differences arising from tranglaton of
foreign operations - - - 68,850 - - - - 68,850 52,107 120,957
HSHHBARSEZREETARE  Netrandation surplus relasified to proft or loss
i upon deregistration of subsiaries - - - (18) - - - - (18) 3) )
ReTUnATE 48 Net change in fair value of cash low hedges - - - - - - 3545 - 3505 591 413
DIATEF ALY RATES  Fairvalue gain on equity instruments at fai value
ATERE through other compreensive income - - - 3784 - 3698 - - 748 608 8,090
FEBENT AT k) Share of other comprehensive income (expense)
of associates - - 2309 60,956 - - - @) 63,23 10,679 73902
2ERANARER Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2309 13351 - 3,698 3,545 121,820 264,94 150,176 415120
FiEBEAREETREY Share of change in net asset value of an associate - - - - 32,840 - - il 291 6,674 39,585
W Transfer of reserves - - - - 406 - - (406) - - -
EBEALUERBATZEMES  Acouision of addltonal nterestsn a subsidiary
(HEtad) through capitalisation (note 44(3) - - - - 19 - - - 19 (367) (348)
SENBAT (F4db) Deregistration of subsidaries (note 44(3) - - - - (2.453) - - 2453 - - -
HENATENAEMATARY Transfer of resrves pon disposalof equity
BATARE\GE nstruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - - - 6,893 - (6,893) - - -
[THBAREEERERS Diidend paid to non-contrling shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (85,938) (85,938)
AHERE Undlaimed dividend - - - - - - - 2 2 1 3
- - - - 30812 6,893 - 41m3) 32,932 (79,630) (46,698)
2021536310 At31 March 2021 921,014 13,601 40,113 (250,699) 316,638 12,49 - 545611 1,598,774 885393 2,484,167
WWEE @ BB EIEAEMMAEESIEC ISR TUWE & Note: Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between the amount of non-controlling

E—-FENBEAR DR KRR RSN
A WEIRECAFEB DR R R E AR
("hE,) WBARRBEARRENMOBT - ZE
WEMOBANF S ERTEEERERER A ET

2EC

EERBBEAEEFMENREK L WEAR A
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interest adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid/received on partial
acquisition/disposal of a subsidiary without losing control and the capitalisation of
profits of subsidiaries and associates established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") that were available for appropriation after the approval from the relevant PRC

authorities.

Legal surplus comprises the Group’s share of statutory reserves of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #/ZE2021F3831HIEFE

2021 2020
Fi&rx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR Operating activities
FRELAE A Profit before taxation 287,465 217,751
A Adjustments for:
Pkt AR ZEE Share of results of associates (240,960) (133,435)
F BUA Interest income (14,343) (18,826)
BITREMEFTZFE Interest on bank and other loans 125,482 174,383
HESENER Interest on lease liabilities 11,500 6,438
TR ER R EMERARIE Impairment loss recognised on trade and
RERSE other receivables 2,635 6,720
ERBE AR BEEE Impairment loss recognised on an associate 611 598
TERZE ~ BB K&l Impairment loss recognised on property,
NERIEL: SE=! plant and equipment 13,400 -
R EAEEECREEE Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use
assets 7,600 -
FEEE Allowance for inventories 5,505 2,016
& e Amortisation of intangible assets 77 77
M~ BB ECITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 153,532 154,856
FREEECITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 91,511 70,279
BA—BEBS AR I Discount on acquisition of an associate - (148)
HEME ~ BELERERDER Gain on disposal of property, plant and
FHEEE W& equipment and assets classified as
held for sale (14,022) (277,799)
LS ~ BRI KRB Property, plant and equipment written off 14,084 -
JEE B E B L /AR Gain on deemed partial disposal of an associate (165) (9,285)
B AR R ES, Net translation (surplus) deficit reclassified to
(BfR) B8 profit or loss upon deregistration of subsidiaries 21 31,817
BHEEE Provision for restructuring - 99,810
KEME (ENERFLHEERE)Z Fair value gain on investment property, classified
ANFEW as held for sale (21,464) -
HEDAFESAERZBATEZ Realised gain from disposal of equity instruments
EER K at fair value through profit or loss (43) -
PATHESt NiBsR e RAT R Unrealised fair value loss on equity instruments
REENTERE at fair value through profit or loss 3,428 -
eSS T AEZESE Realised (gain) loss on derivative financial
(fzt ) Eia instruments (4,441) 27,160
A TR A FERSRESSR Unrealised fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments 5,241 2,598
FE AR AE B HERR Rent concession related to COVID-19 (4,406) -
REIFIME R RSB 2 Effect of unrealised foreign exchange rate
-2 changes (19,861) (41,191)
REEEESEFHICEHE Operating cash flows before movements in working
BenE capital 402,345 313,819
BFEz (8m) B (Increase) decrease in inventories (270,539) 136,973
FEMUEE TR B ELAth FE UM AR TE % (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables
TENFRIEZ (38 00) i and prepayments (407,015) 58,762
FEATBRIE K B =238 b0 O ) Increase (decrease) in creditors and accrued charges 530,813 (41,505)
ER&EZEM Increase in contract liabilities 7,878 27,738
REXBEEZRS Cash generated from operations 263,482 495,787
EAEB UMb [E RIS Taxation paid in other jurisdictions (61,380) (118,528)
ENEBFNER Taxation paid in Hong Kong (476) (10,466)
BEMWEBIINEL b E R TER TR Taxation refunded in other jurisdictions 17,031 10,149
BEWEBBIERR Tax refunded in Hong Kong 1,177 -
REXBEECRESFE Net cash from operating activities 219,834 376,942
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conTD)
GRS RER®

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #ZE2021F3831HIEFE

2021 2020
FiE&n FHBIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEER Investing activities
HEWE - BEREEREIZ Proceeds and deposits received from disposal of
FERET® property, plant and equipment 132,510 109,025
BEME AT KRE Dividends received from associates 81,999 77,692
EW—REREMREARDEREBEK Compensation received for relocation of property
HEMERFHEEE of a PRC subsidiary and disposal of assets
classified as held for sale 81,840 -
[l ES Interest received 8,199 14,157
HEDAFEF AR MK Z Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at
AT B FEIE fair value through other comprehensive income 6,439 -
tHELX/\y{Eu‘I')\?EﬁZ Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at

AT B rigsiia fair value through profit or loss 820 -
BA—RBNBEARZEIMER Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (348) -
BB AN B REIME R Acquisition of additional interests in associates (1,637) (17,084)
BT —REBE AT Loan to an associate (6,996)
BALIATERAE#G Purchase of equity instruments at fair value

BATE through profit or loss (11,628) -
5%7\%% #RIE BT Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

Pk plant and equipment (12,152) (44,596)
BADZE ~ BB L&A Purchase of property, plant and equipment (434,035) (527,599)
BRTF—RERBARZKE Loan to a shareholder of a subsidiary - (36,985)

BEERFERC RS 5 Net cash used in investing activities (154,989) (425,390)
RbE Financing activities
FERITETR New borrowings raised 1,295,745 1,010,649
RBEE Unclaimed dividend 3 -
HEAaENS Interest on lease liabilities (11,500) (6,438)
BEEEaE Repayment of lease liabilities (70,298) (62,572)
ENMEARIFE KR Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
pd-=y of subsidiaries (85,938) (36,292)
EATERIT REMETZF S Interest on bank and other loans paid (129,189) (163,898)
EBIRITREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (1,075,215) (868,294)
ENrRE Dividends paid (830) (34,471)
—HNE AR IR RN &R Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary - 27,144
BE—EEEREARRAT Repayment of capital to the non-controlling
FEIEAG AR shareholders of a deregistered subsidiary - (6,651)
REFTFERACIREFRE Net cash used in financing activities (77.222) (140,823)
REREEIREBAFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (12,377) (189,271)
FHzReRFERS Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,250,672 1,448,715
NI T M R ) o 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 80,173 (8,772)
FRZRENEFBERS Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
BITHE  TRkIRS bank balances, deposits and cash 1,318,468 1,250,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREIRE MG

Year ended 31 March 2021
1.
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REE -

BE2021F3831HLEEE
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 44 and 45, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year
In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) has applied the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions” and the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-
Related Rent Concession beyond 30 June 2021".

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
“Definition of Material”

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 for the first
time in the current year. The amendments provide a new definition of material
that states “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions” and Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-
Related Rent Concession beyond 30 June 2021”

The Group has early applied both amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments introduce a new practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to assess whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.
The amendment of HKFRS16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021" extends the availability of the practical expedient described below
so that it applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the Covid-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease
payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it would account
for the changes applying HKFRS 16 “Leases” if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as
variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of both amendments had no impact to the opening retained
profits at 1 April 2020. The Group has benefited from waiver of lease payments
on several leases in leasehold building. The Group has derecognised part of
lease liability that has been extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments
using the discount rates originally applied to these leases respectively,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liabilities of HK$4,406,000, which has been
recognised as variable lease payments in profit or loss for the current year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

2w oN -

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 24

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

The directors of Company anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is considered as material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group in light of the fact that the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$687 million as at 31 March 2021. The
Group's current liabilities as at 31 March 2021 included bank loans, import
and other loans of approximately HK$2,711 million that are repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Taking into
account of the internally generated funds and the available banking
facilities of approximately HK$1,542 million as at 31 March 2021, the
directors of the Company are confident that the Group will be able to meet
their financial obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future and
be able to operate on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments, that are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2" Share-based Payment” (“HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions that are
accounted for accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” (“HKAS 36").
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that an initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income (“OCI") are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in OCI
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9") or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate.
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Effective from 1 April 2020, the Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets,
and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to investment properties which are subsequently
measured under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities at
the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date;

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired
leases were new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or group of CGUs) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinations, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).
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Year ended 31 March 2021

3. REFAUBRRZEERTEEHBR ») 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the group of
CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in OClI
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in OCI by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of electronics and batteries
products is recognised at a point in time. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from these sales is recognised when
customer acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time
when the goods are delivered based on the agreed shipping terms and
the location specified by the customers, and when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of these products and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of these products.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019 or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of leasehold building, machinery and equipment and others that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.
the date the underlying asset is available for use).

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and
are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied that practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied
the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to
use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentive receivables,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient
not to assess whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease
payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it would account
for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions
The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sale and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a sale, the Group as a seller-
lessee measures the right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback at the
proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset and recognises any
gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor only.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 and
investment properties, which continue to be measured in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid
or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of that asset) is included in the
profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than asset under construction and freehold land as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or
fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at
revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no further
revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September
1995, the revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these assets
was credited to the property revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in
value of these assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that
they exceed the balance, if any, on the property revaluation reserve relating
to a previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.

Freehold land is not depreciated and is measured at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the
extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets
other than asset under construction and freehold land less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method or
reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(a) Intangible assets acquired separately — Trademarks and Technical
know-how
Trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are
estimated to be twenty years.

The cost of acquiring rights to technical know-how for the production
of new products is amortised on a straight-line method, over a period
of three to five years from the date of acquisition or over the licence
period, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and development
expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful live, not exceeding ten years,
commencing in the year when the product is put into commercial use.

(c) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination — Customer
relationship
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date, which is regarded as their cost.

The customer relationship is amortised using straight-line method, over
a period of five years. Subsequent to initial recognition, the customer
relationship is recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the
relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a
detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation
in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by
it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that
are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with
the ongoing activities of the entity.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OCl if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(0}

(iii

=

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCl and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other income
and other gains” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other income and other gains” or “other expenses and other losses”
line item.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
(“ECL") model on financial assets (including non-current receivables, non-
current deposits, trade receivables, bills receivables, other receivables,
dividend receivable, bank deposits, bank balances and amounts due
from associates) and financial guarantee contracts which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually and/or collectively using a collective
basis with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(i) Definition of default

(iii

(iv

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(0)

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other
party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective interest
rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount rate that
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent
that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate
instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s non-current
receivables, trade and other receivables, dividend receivable, bank
deposits, bank balances and amounts due from associates are each
assessed as a separate group);

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case

interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continuea)
For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are recognised
at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including creditors and other payables, bank loans,
import and other loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

EMTH =) Financial instruments (continued)
EREERBAK @) Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
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A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on
an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument
is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when
the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness
requirements:

e there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument;

e the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result
from that economic relationship; and

e the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting
from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges
and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity actually uses
to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective
for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the
hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other
qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in OCl and accumulated under the heading of hedging
reserve, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item
from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the
“other income and other gains” or “other expenses and other losses” line
item.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. Furthermore,
if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash
flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only when the
hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria
(after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. Discontinuing hedge
accounting can either affect a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a
part of it (in which case hedge accounting continues for the remainder of
the hedging relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit
or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting
from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are
not subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in OCl or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in OCl or directly in equity
respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will accept
the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using
either the most likely amount or the expected value.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005 are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in OCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific bank and other
loans pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Government grants relating to compensation of expenses are deducted
from the related expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income and other gains”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is
treated as a government grant, measured as the difference between
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market
interest rates.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plans, including state-
managed retirement benefit scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, are recognised as expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.



4. HETAEEEREERE

FER M RE3FT A A S B S S BURE - EEER
HRBEEMZORMBASANEE X & ERAE
TEHFVER ~ fhaT RARRR o fEaT RRARRTILUE
R ER BRI R R R KR - B
RABEB AR FEET

REEFERTZEMHTMEBRRR - BEgs

EETHIERMERT B IER S At BT HIRE (4
ZFEEREZNR) NE BT R AR
A (M FERT AR KRR T LR -

RREHEER  FRERNARAREENR T8
BEEHEE,AERBEFEERAZRNERHA
RERNERBRRMAEFTAHEBARRNEMERRK
R ©

BN Sk Z TRERS IR K IR (E
BREBRLEEXBNERER G ERIEITRY
EERANG - AEBEREREEFERTH
BRERNTRIEERA - BAXKERRNEE
S5 BEBRLGEERRESEMSERLIR
AR RRAR - SEREENAEENELENER
i WEERSBEAFREREEEFTILENR
ARERNAESHRIELEER - E8REH
H > @EFNTMHATERRIMNEBNE  WEEH
WM E RS -

R2021E3831H BEWERKEER
1,209,361,00055 7T (E 1B T HA (5 E 18 L B i
26,478,00077T)( 20204 : 811,066,00057T (B
IR TE R (5 &8 5 4%25,7 12,0005 7T) ) » TEHA
EEBABEHMGTESEHKNRIE - BEITEH
EEBAEAEFEKERNERN 355423
WEE -

GERE
FETRERANAEIFE_EPIREEBEA
iR ASEEEETHNEEFERRBEARES
B TNEERSHEEANEEETES - N
BREHEHEER  BEEEESFENREE
SRR S EET R AT SRR - 2R
FEIEEREGETHEEERBEEANET
FREREE - Itoh - AEEEEESEFEZR
RBARIEEE - WARKR B BIAYHIERE RAAREK
HISHEEIREEFENHERS - LURERE
WRERTE - SRS AUERFEERRAR -
AREEEHE— S RIRE

REZE2021F3831HIEFE  AEEHRAZ
FE B8 55,505,0005% 7T ( 20204F : 2,016,000
BIT) o R2021E3831H ERAES
1,192,082,000 3% 7T ( 2020 4E : 914,157,000 i
JT)°

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the management of the Company is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired balances are
assessed for ECL individually. The Group uses collective basis to determine ECL
for the remaining trade receivables. The loss rates are determined based on
internal credit ratings for each grouping of debtors that have similar credit risk
characteristics. The collective basis is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable, and available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$1,209,361,000 (net of provision of ECL of HK$26,478,000) (2020:
HK$811,066,000 (net of provision of ECL of HK$25,712,000)). The provision of
ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables are disclosed in notes 35 and 23.

Allowances for inventories

Inventory is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The management
of the Group reviews regularly the suitability of the Group’s allowance policy for
inventories and carries out review of the inventories at the end of each reporting
period. At the end of each reporting period, management carries out the
assessment of determining allowance for inventories by comparing the carrying
amounts of inventories with their net realisable values. The net realisable values
are primarily determined with reference to estimated selling prices, less the
estimated cost to completion, as appropriate. In addition, the management of
the Group identifies slow-moving inventories with reference to aging analysis
and determines the net realisable value for inventories by considering the
saleability of inventories based on current market demand and future sales plan.
When the expectation of the net realisable value is less than the cost, further
allowance may arise.

Allowance for inventories of HK$5,505,000 (2020: HK$2,016,000) was

recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2021, the
carrying amount of inventories was HK$1,192,082,000 (2020: HK$914,157,000).

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR

89



90

Year ended 31 March 2021
4. HHAEEEREERE @

HEtEEREE

HEEHERSIELRER A EE/EmE
RERESEAEM(R—HRESEEE M) 2 EH
BEE - stEFEREER » AEEEGTEREIER
SEABM(KX—HBSELENM) TEZEREK
RERE  WENABZMEXRAERE - 4
EEReRELNTER S AIJEELSE
KIBREEE - 2021938310 EKRAEES
79,066,000 7T ( 20204F : 79,066,000587T) ° 1
HE2021F3A831BILEFE  AEENERERRE
BiEE (20204 : T8T) - BRI EISEC
HRIBERMIEE20 -

B ARIRE
RERBENTRSEATRER  TEHBE
AT Z A E S REETEET - A M EISBEIH
EEBENATEREHERALFERER (B
BEARE)  BEHEERKE LAGHHMEKRECT
W ESBEETIE  RRABERFELEHRER
& - MELE20214E3A31AILAEE » AEEER
HUBsE /A BRI E 518 4 611,00058 7T ( 20204F -
598,0003&7T) °

e

BEREBEAKRANBERNS REXG
It SEEBERELEASHE - LBEERSREH
EEENBEEHMELRGEE  SHURTEE
BARERERING  UNZEENSERSE
BEEEAUSHGEE - EBEIRBEAEETERE
IHEME S ISR EAE R - 120214
3A31H  AEEERBEARE#599,810,000
#9T (20204F © 99,810,0005 7% ) (FEIEHH A M sE
32)-

ATEEE
RMBRAMS - AREETEERATE
8 - BEEERNELFVEERATE B
B ERRMARE -

AEBFRBNEERMTEELIFEN AT ERETS
FENWARYE - DEEREYZE - LATER
ARt ERGCRAT AL ETRISHTA
BATE (FEIED BN HIEE16 ~ 267135) ©

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021

BE2021F38318LELEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU (or a group of CGUs) and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$79,066,000
(2020: HK$79,066,000). For the year ended 31 March 2021, no impairment
loss on goodwill was recognised (2020: nil). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 20.

Impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the associates. Recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Management has evaluated the
recoverable amount of the investments and recognised sufficient impairment
allowance, where necessary. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
recognised impairment loss on investment in an associate of HK$611,000
(2020: HK$598,000).

Provisions

Significant estimates are involved in the determination of provision related to
restructuring cost. Accordingly, management exercises considerable judgment
in determining whether there is a present obligation as a result of a past event
at the reporting date, whether it is more likely than not that such restructuring
will result an outflow of resources and whether the amount of the obligation
can be reliably estimated with reference to the relevant correspondences. The
management estimates the cost for restructuring with regard to the Group’s
experience in addressing such matters. As at 31 March 2021, the Group
recognised restructuring provisions amounting to HK$99,810,000 (2020:
HK$99,810,000) of which details are set out in note 32.

Fair value measurements

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The directors have a designated team to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on
observable market data to estimate the fair values of investment properties,
equity instruments at FVTOCI and certain types of financial instruments of which
details are set out in notes 16, 26 and 35 respectively.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement is
involved in determining the group-wide provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Inland Revenue Department (“IRD")
issued a preliminary profits tax calculation for the years of assessment 2006/07
to 2013/14 (the “Preliminary Tax Calculation”) based on the information
provided by one of the subsidiaries of the Group for a preliminary assessment.
The Preliminary Tax Calculation was prepared by the IRD for discussion purpose,
thus, the final tax amount may be subject to change when further information
and explanation are provided to the IRD. Taking into consideration of the
Preliminary Tax Calculation, the Group provided HK$19 million of income tax
expense in the year ended 31 March 2020 (2021: nil) which represented the
Group's estimation of the potential tax liabilities and the related penalty. The
final tax amount may be different after finalisation with the IRD.

SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
executive directors, who are the chief operating decision makers (“CODM"),
assess profit or loss of these operating divisions using a measure of operating
profit which exclude: interest income, other expenses, finance costs and
unallocated expenses.

The three main operating divisions of the Group, each of which constitutes an
operating and reportable segment for financial reporting purpose, are:

Electronics — development, manufacture and distribution of electronics and
acoustic products, automotive wire harness and other businesses.

Batteries — development, manufacture and distribution of batteries and battery
related products.

Other investments — holding of other investments which are mainly engaged in
selling and distribution business.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group’s revenue represents sales of electronics and acoustics, automotive
wire harness, batteries and other products.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
5. DEAEN/E%E W

BE2021F38318LELEE
5.

REEZRE RREDRBRALEEDI T

SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by these
operating and reportable segments:

BFE2021F3A31HILLEE Year ended 31 March 2021
BE
et
Hitnig & Total
gF Eith Other  reportable i Bt
Electronics Batteries investments  segments Eliminations Total
Figx Fign Figx Figx Figx Figx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEE REVENUE
HIMEE External sales 1,341,562 5,364,615 - 6,706,177 - 6,706,177
EEHE Inter-segment sales 18 41 - 59 (59) -
ESptE ] Segment revenue 1,341,580 5,364,656 - 6,706,236 (59) 6,706,177
ES RESULTS
EBEE Segment results 136,028 407,530 (52) 543,506 - 543,506
AESYON Interest income 14,343
HitERREMEE Other expenses and other losses (117,501)
IERA Finance costs (136,982)
e ER Unallocated expenses (15,901)
BB RIER Profit before taxation 287,465
#ZFE202053831HILFE Year ended 31 March 2020
HEDE
st
HiiE Total
Ea Bt Other  reportable i) A%
Electronics Batteries  investments segments  Eliminations Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
54 REVENUE
HHMEE External sales 1,515,562 4,535,949 - 6,051,511 - 6,051,511
EBBEE Inter-segment sales 16 36 - 52 (52) -
EBEET Segment revenue 1,515,578 4,535,985 - 6,051,563 (52) 6,051,511
ES | RESULTS
EIFEE Segment results 345,100 277,469 (68) 622,501 - 622,501
FEWA Interest income 18,826
HihERREMEE Other expenses and other losses (191,411)
R Finance costs (180,821)
TEENEZER Unallocated expenses (51,344)
BREL R0 R Profit before taxation 217,751

DEFEARESEIENEE - RERAAEEER
EEARERELAFERDBMEKEFE - A
B ~ BB AR EMES - BHEA PR
THERNEEHFNREIREDIEE -V
% BELRERMEREEECERBIEREN
HHRADBEEDBEE  HHEEEHEESD
HEE -

EBREEDH2ETGERMEE -
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Segment results represents the results from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other expenses and other losses, finance costs, central
administration costs and directors’ emoluments. Impairment loss recognised
and written off on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are not allocated to segment result which the related assets are allocated to
segment assets. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are made by reference to market prices.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

AEERED I cEERBEANTAT The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by reportable
segments:
Hithig &
EF Eit Other ait
Electronics Batteries investments Total
FiEx TiEx TiEx FiEx
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
1#2021€3H31H At 31 March 2021
EE Assets
XEBFEE Segment assets 2,397,650 4,826,945 48,704 7,273,299
REEDHEE Unallocated assets 1,490,861
REBEE Consolidated total assets 8,764,160
B&E Liabilities
e =L Segment liabilities 573,259 1,785,861 41 2,359,161
TR fEEE Unallocated liabilities 3,920,832
Py =L Consolidated total liabilities 6,279,993

Hihig &
BF £ Other a5
Electronics Batteries investments Total
FHT FHT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

7202043A31H At 31 March 2020

BE Assets

XBEE Segment assets 2,037,123 3,732,465 44,824 5,814,412

TN EE Unallocated assets 1,423,712

RarRERE Consolidated total assets 7,238,124

=t Liabilities

xxaE Segment liabilities 417,004 1,141,003 41 1,558,048

RN EEE Unallocated liabilities 3,564,331

raras Consolidated total liabilities 5,122,379

BB BRI L EES < BNERDE For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources

between segments:

o BREE - REHIBEEE - AWEIFIE © 81T e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than goodwill, deferred
R BREReMREEBHRAGRANE tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank balances, deposits and cash and
th&EE  MEEESREREEK & assets used jointly by operating segments; and

o [RYBMBIE ~ RITER  BEEEREI e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than taxation
B BITREMER  BEXHREEBERK payable, bank loans, import and other loans, bank and other loans,
BEBHLEAENEMESE  TEEEDE deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which operating segments are jointly

liable.
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Year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3A31HILFEE
5. EEH/EE£E = 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

94

Hith&gHt Other information
BY Bit ARE by
Electronics Batteries Unallocated Consolidated
FiER FiERT FiET FERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE20215F3831ALLEE Year ended 31 March 2021
BEANBEER Amounts included in measure of segment
DERAHE B 2E assets and segment profit or loss
FritBE A E s Interests in associates 1,443,299 340,800 - 1,784,099
EARZH Capital expenditure 14,013 442,334 1,898 458,245
M~ BERREITEREY Depreciation of property, plant and
BEEY equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets 25,225 126,587 1,797 153,609
FEHEEEZIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 34,048 45,842 11,621 91,511
i NEIE= Share of results of associates 193,895 47,065 - 240,960
FEEE Allowance for inventories 2,384 3,121 - 5,505
HENX  BENRRERDE Gain on disposal of property, plant
FHEEE WG and equipment and assets classified
as held for sale 129 13,893 - 14,022
fEE L EBMBE AR WS Gain on deemed partial disposal of
an associate - 165 - 165
FEMmAEEASRE Rental concession related to COVID-19 - 2,917 1,489 4,406
EREUEREEMENRE Net impairment loss recognised on trade
FREBE and other receivables 124 2,511 - 2,635
ERBLEARRETIESE Net impairment loss recognised on
investment in an associate - 611 - 611

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



5. EEN/EEE =)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

Eith&# 2 Other information (continued)
BT Bt ROE o)
Electronics Batteries Unallocated Consolidated
FET FHT FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HBE2020F3A31HILFE Year ended 31 March 2020
BREANBEER Amounts included in measure of segment
DERAHE B 2R assets and segment profit or loss
PGB & AR R Interests in associates 1,214,090 287,497 - 1,501,587
EARZH Capital expenditure 56,238 484,842 1,301 542,381
W%~ BERREZITEREL Depreciation of property, plant and
BE#H equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets 27,046 122,641 5,246 154,933
FEREEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 27,447 33,674 9,158 70,279
BN U NGIE = Share of results of associates 113,280 20,155 - 133,435
FERE Allowance for inventories 108 1,908 - 2,016
HENE - BERSERAE Gain on disposal of property, plant
FHEEE WG and equipment and assets classified
as held for sale 277,059 803 (63) 277,799
EE L EBNBE AR 2 W Gain on deemed partial disposal of
an associate - 9,285 - 9,285
([2)%8) FER R ST M E b REWERIE  Net impairment loss (reversed) recognised
ZERERRE on trade and other receivables @) 6,727 - 6,720
ERBEARCKREPRESSE Net impairment loss recognised on
investment in an associate - 598 - 598
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Year ended 31 March 2021
5.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

Geographical information
The Group’s manufacturing and marketing functions are carried out in the PRC
and certain other Asia-Pacific, Middle East, European and American countries.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external
customers based on location of customers and information about its non-
current assets other than non-current receivables, non-current rental deposits,
equity instruments at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets by geographical locations
of assets:

BREE JEimENEE
Revenue Non-current assets

2021 2020 2021 2020
FiEx Tt FER FHIT
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

lE The PRC
—&55 — Hong Kong 295,529 353,102 424,089 418,071
— A — Mainland China 2,361,621 1,891,931 2,900,048 2,373,095
HABEEMER Other Asian countries 486,156 411,842 983,942 731,693
B Europe 1,906,627 1,838,344 87,018 65,913
E Americas 1,555,831 1,468,546 13,802 18,658
EHith Others 100,413 87,746 - -
6,706,177 6,051,511 4,408,899 3,607,430

REEZIREFEXANIRBDEE 2B E
B RERERERDME - WHIRHEMIENET
o BN~ ENREMZ DT > ERERAE—
SIS ERERNRABRR - 2R EAIN
B, 2 EXENFERBEETRRAAE ~ H0
R RS ARFED » TROM, VB EBRNSERB S EE
ZRWBNEE - T SN, NEEBRNIEREE
ERFEZRILEM -

FEEMEREA
UTRASEEIREREFERZEXRES
#r

The geographical information of the Group’s revenue from external customers
and non-current assets by individual significant countries in other Asian
countries, Europe, Americas and others is not available and management
considers the cost to obtain the information would be excessive. The revenue
and non-current assets classified as “Other Asian countries” mainly represents
Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia, revenue and non-current assets classified as
“Europe” mainly represents United Kingdom and Germany and revenue and
non-current assets classified as “Americas” mainly represents North America.

Revenue from major products
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue recognised at a point in time
from its major products:

2021 2020
Fi&rx T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BFOE: Electronics segment:
BT RZEFER Electronics and acoustics products 1,150,987 1,311,762
JAEBCARE SR Automotive wire harness products 190,575 203,800
1,341,562 1,515,562

BHAEL - Batteries segment:

B LEMIEREER Batteries and battery related products 5,364,615 4,535,949
BREFANEECEER Revenue from contracts with customers 6,706,177 6,051,511

ERFANEACEXRUENEX
6,706,236,00035 7T ( 20204F : 6,051,563,0003%
TCREZ 2 Bl A 4R 45 & 59,0005 7T ( 20204 :
52,000/87T) °
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The difference between revenue from contracts with customers and segment
revenue amounting to HK$6,706,236,000 (2020: HK$6,051,563,000) is inter-
segment sales of HK$59,000 (2020: HK$52,000).
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from major products (continued)

The Group sells all products directly to customers. Revenue is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customers’ specific location and customer acceptance has been
obtained. The Group’s revenue is recognised at a point in time, which is the
point of time when the customer has the ability to direct the use of the goods
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the goods. Payment of
the transaction price is due ranging from 30 days to 120 days, at the control of
goods has transferred.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

HihZ H R E &S 6. OTHER EXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES
2021 2020
TFi&x FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
eSS T REEEIREE Realised loss on derivative financial instruments - 27,160
e T EC AT ERERESE Unrealised fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments 5,241 -
DAFESANERZBATEZ Fair value loss on equity instruments at fair value
NHEEE through profit or loss 3,428 -
HIENB AR FEAEEENNE Net translation deficit recognised to profit or loss
ki upon deregistration of subsidiaries - 31,817
B SARB A (Fi5E) Closure and relocation costs (note) 28,101 32,624
FHEERE (MEE32) Provision for restructuring (note 32) - 99,810
TERBYZE ~ BB RRERESE Impairment loss recognised on property, plant and
(F&E13) equipment (note 13) 13,400 -
BREAREEBESE Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use assets
(f45E14) (note 14) 7,600 -
M ~ BN Property, plant and equipment written off 14,084 -
RINEIE Exchange loss 45,647 _
117,501 191,411

M RIEBEENEE202143831HILFE - A%
PALR BINFIR SR FE B A B R B S AT IR IR

Note: Amount included the closure and relocation cost incurred for relocation of the

LGB ARA (20204 © REEGERERBERE
BB AR EE R R B 55 — 3 75 T S (9 H B R A i

rechargeable batteries manufacturing factories located in Huizhou and Dongguan
(2020: relocating the Group's factories from Dongguan to Malaysia and another
location in the PRC) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

BEA)

BAFER A 7. FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
TiEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITREMERAEER Interest on bank and other loans 125,482 174,383
HEaENEER Interest on lease liabilities 11,500 6,438
136,982 180,821
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

ZEIRBM @

Year ended 31 March 2021
8. BRMBuEF

BE2021F38318LELEE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2021 2020
TiEx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B AL A 2R TR Profit before taxation has been arrived at after
charging:
EEME (F5E9) Directors’ emoluments (note 9) 27,441 30,558
Hih 8 T 285 48R Other staff's salaries, allowances and welfare 1,183,298 1,153,667
ETwMNERES (FEkb) Total employee benefits expenses (note b) 1,210,739 1,184,225
M~ BEEREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 153,532 154,856
FREESEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 91,511 70,279
FERE Allowance for inventories 5,505 2,016
IR & S Amortisation of intangible assets 77 77
AN Auditor’s remuneration
KEE Current year 13,090 11,269
EFERBCEE Underprovision in prior years 54 65
BRRIHZFERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 4,912,014 4,459,427
mESs TR ATEEE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 5,241 27,160
HEREW SR N EAb RN BRIE S FER?E  Net impairment loss recognised on trade and
other receivables 2,635 6,720
RS AR FREBE Net impairment loss recognised on interest in
an associate 611 598
ABEEERAHEAETE2PEEH Expenses in relating to short-term leases, leases
HE - REEEERENAIZHEENK of low-value assets and variable lease payments
BBEzEHR not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities recognised in respect of
HEWE Rental premises 8,545 12,511
Hith Others 1,893 3,751
MEREAZH (BEETERER) Research expenditure incurred (included in
administrative expenses) 75,632 78,786
PSECS AN and after crediting:
HEME « BRI RIBENMDEREHERE  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
ZWak (Fyata) and assets classified as held for sale (Note a) 14,022 277,799
SRATHER R EMAET 2 R BWA Interest income from bank deposits and balances 13,201 16,547
it YN RN PN Interest income from associates 1,142 2,279
FERREDERSWAHREZ L Rental income from investment properties,
136,00077T ( 20204 : less outgoings of HK$ 136,000
134,00057C) (2020: HK$134,000) 677 668
BUSfBh Government grant 21,132 28,276
WEMZE (ELBERFHEEERE) 2 Fair value gain on investment property, classified
N FEW S (F5E26) as held for sale (note 26) 21,464 -
B ARRFEL R Net translation surplus reclassified to profit or loss
BN EREG upon deregistration of subsidiaries 21 -
mESR T BN FERS Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments 4,441 -
FRFERASERACHE TR Rental concession related to COVID-19 4,406 -
A (BEEEMBAR) Exchange gain (included in other income) - 18,995
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8. FRMAIEF =)

CEX

(a)

R2021E3831HILEEFE - HEKGEEER—FEH
EMIBAR HEWZE ~ MR Re&ime Wa - 122020
FIAHILEFE  —HFRERBEARHEMRH
HEINNET TR THEGAERNE(THEDEL)
FBULE=T - RIEXA265,800,000 A B (£
302,200,000 7T) » B #& 1% [E$ 12,700,000 A &
5 (%914,400,0005%8 7T ) - i #2 &5 (£49110,000,000
AR (49125,100,000587T) BT AT © 122019
F3831H  HEVESBAHFHEESE  RAE
#%150,900,0005% 7T * BRI & 7%% 17,700,000 T #9
MEEB AR ETEHE - HERERIZPEN
BT E2020F6 8 2024 F6 AN AFENESE
HEAASmMALEEFERZEEYE  WHIRSR
BiREE RIEEEEGIMEERERS
EFERE020F68 F2022F6 A HEWXMAS
ThEER @A EE36,600,0008 7 » LUEAHE
WEREGEANTEHAES - EsHEREME - £
B IR R GE B3R A4 B £ 58 546,400,000587T © I
BE—FRKE > D EAIEREEKIRE (BT
21) - kb RPEEEE S BRRZEERD
7%47,700,000587C © ZHE EREER—EEEKRE
35 » WM EE HEWE£277,000,00078 7T122020
F3A31 Bz EMMBRAFRER -

2021F3A31HILFE - AEERERH TG
SRBE BT/ EE/249,115,0008 7T EXRETH
SRR -

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the disposal gain mainly represents the gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment of a PRC subsidiary. During the year ended
31 March 2020, a PRC subsidiary disposed of certain land and building of industrial
complex located in Huizhou, PRC (“the Disposed Property”) to an independent
third party. The consideration was approximately Renminbi (“RMB™) 265.8 million
(approximately HK$302.2 million) including the value added tax of RMB12.7 million
(approximately HK$14.4 million). The relocation compensation of RMB110 million
(approximately of HK$125.1 million) was offered by the buyer. The Disposed Property
was classified under assets classified as held for sale with the carrying amount of
HK$150.9 million as at 31 March 2019. The related machinery and equipment with
the carrying amount of HK$17.7 million was also disposed of. The disposal agreement
allows the PRC subsidiary to continue to use the Disposed Property without paying
any rent for a period of five years from June 2020 to June 2024 with early handover
incentives. Based on the intended removal date estimated by the management, the
Group recognised right-of-use assets of HK$36.6 million for the expected rent free use
of the Disposed Property with reference to the market value of rent of the Disposal
Property from June 2020 to June 2022. In return, an early relocation subsidy in the
amount of HK$46.4 million was expected to be compensated by the buyer and will
be received after one year and classified as non-current receivables (note 21). In
addition, legal, consultancy and professional fees of approximately HK$47.7 million
were incurred for the transaction. The disposal agreement formed a sale and leaseback
transaction and resulted in a disposal gain of HK$277.0 million recognised in other
income during the year ended 31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised the COVID-19-related

government subsidies amounting HK$49,115,000 which was deducted from staff
salaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

Year ended 31 March 2021 & ZE2021F3A31HLEEE

9. EEREFTFHNRABRSITMES 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

ESRETFN R ES HM Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments
EERER Directors and chief executive
ENSREMNFT+—2 (2020 +—R)EEK The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2020: eleven) directors
B2 FE T and the chief executive are as follows:
2021
B=RicEo|

Other emoluments
FIRER BiKiEs
EES ETEIMTR
#i£K Performance  Retirement

H{thigFl related benefit
#% Salaries and incentive scheme ait
Fees other benefits  payments contributions Total
FiEn TFign Fign TiEn Fign
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
(BHEEi)
(note i)
WITES Executive directors:
s (FfaEi) Victor LO Chung Wing (note ii) 10 7,551 1,583 518 9,662
FEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 1,855 544 157 2,566
T Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 4,070 1,101 335 5,516
WRERIZ Michael LAM Hin Lap 10 2,985 1,173 205 4,373
=¥IE Brian WONG Tze Hang 10 2,933 860 232 4,035
ERTES Non-executive directors:
2{az (&) LEUNG Pak Chuen (note i) 104 - - - 104
REKE Karen NG Ka Fai 219 - - - 219
BIERTES Independent non-executive directors:
BiAE LUl Ming Wah 269 - - - 269
B Frank CHAN Chi Chung 259 - - - 259
PRECE CHAN Kei Biu 219 - - - 219
EEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 219 - - - 219
1,339 19,394 5,261 1,447 27,441
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9. EERESFHROBSEEHFMES @

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

ESREHFHRESTHM Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)
EEREH ») Directors and chief executive (continued)
2020
H itz
Other emoluments
FIRAEEE IRIRTER
B FES
#& Kk Performance Retirement
Hithfg R related benefit
& Salaries and incentive scheme B
Fees other benefits payments  contributions Total
T FHT T T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Bry=Ei)
(note i)
WTES Executive directors:
R8s (ByEFii) Victor LO Chung Wing (note i) 10 8,465 2,335 611 11,421
AR Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 2,022 435 173 2,640
TR Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 4,402 1,934 368 6,714
MEBL Michael LAM Hin Lap 10 3,116 927 216 4,269
"wYE Brian WONG Tze Hang 10 3,180 597 257 4,044
FHITES Non-executive directors:
2Ez LEUNG Pak Chuen 230 - - - 230
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 230 - - - 230
BIFRTES Independent non-executive directors:
=l LUI Ming Wah 280 - - - 280
R Frank CHAN Chi Chung 270 - - - 270
BRELEE CHAN Kei Biu 230 - - - 230
EBREE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 230 - - - 230
1,520 21,185 6,228 1,625 30,558
e Notes:

() FREEEBIHDREZEEEERE  @ArlX
BNA LRSS BTEE

(i) ZEMEEFEERFRARNTRE - 1 LR E 2
BRI IR -

(i) RARKLEN2020F108 1 HRIEMTES ©

(iv) DAIEFTEATESTM  TEZRRERBAATR
AEEEBCEEER - LEMBBIIFATES
FIFMTESFM  TERREFLRATDERZR

%o

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The performance related incentive payments were determined with reference to the
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics for both

years.

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief

executive.

Mr. LEUNG Pak Chuen was retired as non-executive director on 1 October 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ and non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as directors of the Company.

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR
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Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

9. EEREFFHNRABRSTMES = 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

ESREMFHRESTHM o Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)

/-] Employees

AEERAFERS TN AR EEBEMA The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included two

(20204F - MA) ANRAESHEE (S o+ 15 (2020: two) directors or the chief executive of the Company, details of whose

M ERTEL) - HAR=4 (20206 : =&) AEEER emoluments are set out above. The emolument of the remaining three

S IERNREREE ZFMAT ¢ (2020: three) highest paid employee of the Group, not being a director of the

Company, are as follows:

2021 2020
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e REMER Salaries and other benefits 8,874 9,159
FIRAERISRE Performance related incentive payments 6,759 6,602
IRIRERIFTRI ALK Retirement benefit scheme contributions 241 254
15,874 16,015
IV ENETEIZN T ¢ Their emoluments were within the following bands:
EEHA
No. of employees
2021 2020
4,500,0017%75—5,000,00075 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1
5,000,00177T—5,500,000/8 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
5,500,001 —6,000,000/& 7T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -
PWMEFEER > WEE TR hRES No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors,
(BFEESE BILEES) MSFEREKIIARE chief executive and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
IMAREE T2 RENS A ERBA < FE - W@ Group or as compensation for loss of office during both years. None of the
FER  BRESSEABETAME - directors or the chief executive has waived any emoluments during both years.
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10. 18 10. TAXATION
2021 2020
TFi&grx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE The charge comprises:
EBERER Hong Kong Profits Tax
—AREERIE — charge for the year 11,173 10,450
—FFEZRNEEE — underprovision in previous years 2,945 21,168
14,118 31,618
BB R IR Taxation in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong
—RFERIE — charge for the year 57,252 82,873
—EFEREINERE — overprovision in previous years (4,025) (6,270)
53,227 76,603
67,345 108,221
IRIERIIAS B (M9RE31) Deferred taxation charge (note 31)
—ARFE — current year 12,064 18,233
79,409 126,454

EBLSME TR ABE T EHR B ATEH
AR (TEEMERE) IEEATME
Bt DRI Z25%M19%HE o

AEEETHEPEKETETEMEXERD
MBAR AR 15%EEMERE  StEZEH
BARPEMEMEHEEFD T NELHBE
=

202053831 HILFE » AEBWEIRIEBMN
AL FETE - BT AN AR IE R A
FAEH 19,000,000/ 7T (20214 © FiETT) #E
(FHIEE2EMTL) -

Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong mainly arose from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and United Kingdom corporate income
tax was calculated at a rate of 25% and 19%, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC eligible as High and
New Technology Enterprise are entitled to preferential income tax rate of 15%.
Enterprise Income Tax of the PRC of these subsidiaries has been provided for
after taking these tax incentives into account.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group provided HK$19 million
(2021: nil) for the estimated underprovision of Hong Kong Profit Tax in previous
years and the related penalty after receiving an IRD preliminary tax calculation,
see note 4 for details.
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Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

10. MIE =) 10. TAXATION (continued)
Bl #HERFTANT - A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
2021 2020
TiEnT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRECRD& A Profit before taxation 287,465 217,751
BB SR E16.5%(20204F : 16.5% ) Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
FTEZBIAS 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 47,432 35,929
Frb S AR RIS 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates (39,758) (22,017)
RERBRAS B2 HHELE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 37,204 51,066
BRI AZ BT L Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (12,256) (14,189)
REBBIBBECRETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 35,783 49,192
FRTEERERVIEGE B E Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (9.691) (6,156)
BRBLSM @ RRB R & Effect of different tax rates in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong (4,002) (7,660)
BB AR B 2 TBIFTEH Withholding tax on distributed and
undistributed profits 25,777 25,391
FEE (FAN) RN EE (Over) underprovision in previous years (1,080) 14,898
KEERIR Taxation charge for the year 79,409 126,454
11. &2 11. DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
TiEnT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F3A31HIEFEHERZ Dividends recognised as distribution during
IS the year ended 31 March 2020:
EIREE2019F RIS — 2019 Final dividend — 2.5 HK cents
25800 (20204 FHEAL) (2020: nil) per share - 19,617
EIKEE2020FH KRS — 2020 Interim dividend — 2.0 HK cents
FR2.05841L (20214 © Z340) (2021: nil) per share - 15,694
- 35,311
RYRBATNYBEER  EFSFERREBE To preserve the Company’s financial resources, the board of directors does not
F2021FE3831HIEFERRIK S (20204 - propose a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).
ZB() o
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12. SEREFN 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BRAARHEE AZERERBATIRE TS The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
BAE Company is based on the following data:
2021 2020
Fi&rx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
&5 Earnings
BRAAREE AZ2E BT Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company 121,862 20,902
T +
‘000 ‘000
iavig (=] Number of shares

AEESREABANCERERHTRMEE  Number of shares in issue during the year for
the purpose of calculating basic earnings

per share 784,693 784,693
MR EZE202143831HM20204E3831H LM No computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
FERAAUEELBRY  RtESEESKES 2021 and 31 March 2020 is disclosed as there are no potential ordinary shares
SERFCE - in issue during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

13. Y% - B Bk 1R 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
XA
IHREE 9 HBERRE IERIR
Freehold HEnE EE®E  Machinery Moulds TREE
land and Owned  Leasehold and and  Asset under Hitr &kt
buildings ~ properties improvements  equipment tools  construction Others Total

ThAR TER ThAL TER ThAL THER ThAL ThAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(GRS
(note)

WA EE COST OR VALUATION
R2019%F4A1A At 1 April 2019 79,501 677,437 10 2,197,593 286,640 204,781 172,505 3,759,567
BHRE Currency realignment (4,928) (36,888) (3,254) (99,597) (14,627) (29,268) (7.240) (195,802)
i Additions - 7,082 13211 49,888 19,964 444677 7,559 542,381
it Disposals - (2415) (2,163) (74.924) (1,198) (3,765) (6962) (91427)
B8R Transfer - 19,579 132 3972 14,242 (84,185) 16,260 -
2020634318 At 31 March 2020 74573 664,795 14903 2,106,932 305,021 532,240 182,122 4014719
AR Currency realignment 4,012 53,008 4,339 97,871 17,831 40,709 7,195 224,965
Em Additions - 19,949 18,897 68,868 6,978 337,652 5,901 458,45
e Disposals - (261) - (45,049) (946) - (3,283) (49,539)
Bi Written off - (5,526) (10,851) (62,145) (3,959) - (16,506) (98,987)
B8R Transfer 3,082 1,239 1,975 101,020 85,363 (202,267) 9,588 -
R02153A318 At 31 March 2021 81,667 733,204 16339 2,267,497 410,288 708,334 185017 4,549,403
B Comprising:
WA At cost 49332 733,204 16339 2,267,497 410,268 708,334 185017 4,517,068
[BE-1994F At valuation - 1994 32,335 - - - - - - 32,335

81,667 733,204 163396 2,267,497 410,268 708,334 185,017 4,549,403
HERHE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
20195481 At 1 April 2019 18911 129,002 98,107 1,619,160 177,880 - 12743 2170483
Ewan Currency realignment (1271) (5,602) (2,280) (66,408) (7332) - (3,563) (86,458)
REEER Provided for the year 977 14,974 21,916 85,545 20,269 - 11,175 154,856
HERHR Eliminated on disposals - (89) (1,569) (49.392) (831) - (5,585) (57,466)
2020634318 At 31 March 2020 18617 138,285 16,172 1,588,905 189,986 - 12945 2181415
BHRE Currency realignment 1,100 12,786 3398 67,848 10,018 - 4,086 99,236
REEER Provided for the year 986 17,848 13,981 85,798 23,544 - 11375 153,532
e Impairment - - - 13,400 - - - 13,400
HEBER Eliminated on disposals - (191) - (43,575) (900) - (2822) (47,488)
BEE I Eliminated on written off - (515) (10,831) (57,067) (3.242) - (13,664) (85,319)
R01E3A31R At 31 March 2021 20,703 168,213 122,720 1,655,309 219,406 - 128425 2314776
REE CARRYING VALUE
R02153A318 At 31 March 2021 60,964 564,991 40,676 612,188 190,882 708,334 56,502 2,234,627
20206348318 At 31 March 2020 55,956 526,510 32,864 518,027 115,035 532,240 5,672 1833304
Mist - A IEER ERES - REED 544,146,000 Note: Others included furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles with carrying values of

T (20204F : 39,346,0007%7T ) #112,446,0005% HK$44,146,000 (2020: HK$39,346,000) and HK$ 12,446,000 (2020: HK$13,326,000),
It (20204F * 13,326,00057T) ° respectively.
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13. Y% - BMERRE =)

W~ R KRk (R EE MK AZER Lk
I0) 2 A E M E G E AT B E S R
HEEZUTITEXRDERENRREREEF
IrE N

L

KAFEBLIMBEE 2%E4%

7 ZSRYES 2%Z 5% E Bl H AR
HEFH (MBEE)
A EERE 10% %33/, %32 E 7
R E AR
(B E)
S 10%%33",%
IEETE 10%Z50%
Eith (RRE B 5%ZE33,%
RRE)

R2021F3B31HIEFE » AREEH —BRER
TEHEAEMERNRE < LY - ELRE
LERAEEENROEET YES  ZBERE
NEABIE - BMENAIKLESEIREFERER
HE GRHEAERESEEI e RFETEE
R TERReRE  RFATAIREI3%ERE -
At - B ZE2021F3831HLEFE » LW -
BEREELREREEERDBEEAD A
13,400,000/ 7T 52 7,600,00058 TG °

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of property,
plant and equipment, except for asset under construction and freehold land,
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method or the reducing balance method,
at the following rates per annum:

Straight-line method:

2% t0 4%

2% to 5% or over the remaining period
of respective leases where shorter

10% to 33'/,% or over the remaining
period of respective leases where
shorter

10% to 33',%

10% to 50%

5% t0 33"/, %

Freehold land and buildings
Owned properties

Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment

Moulds and tools

Others (representing furniture,
fixtures and motor vehicles)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group carried out a review of the
carrying amounts of certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of a plant engaged in the manufacturing of a particular type of battery
product which had incurred a loss during the year. The recoverable amount of
the plant was determined based on value in use calculation using the cash flow
projection from latest financial budgets approved by management with a pre-
tax discount rate of 13%. Accordingly, in the year ended 31 March 2021, the
impairment loss of HK$13,400,000 and HK$7,600,000 were recognised on
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively.

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR
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Year ended 31 March 2021

BE2021F38318LELEE

14. EHIERE 14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
R R
HERE Machinery
Leasehold and Hith =H
building equipment Others Total
Tt Tt Fitn Fitn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
12021538318 As at 31 March 2021
REE Carrying amount 264,319 14,581 3,547 282,447
1420206F3A31H As at 31 March 2020
REE Carrying amount 157,039 14,989 5,149 177,177
#E202153H31H1E For the year ended 31 March 2021
2ERE Depreciation for the year 86,501 2,946 2,064 91,511
RHHEER Expense relating to short-term leases 3,404
BEEEEREER Expense relating to leases of low-value
(NEREEEEEECRHHEE) assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value assets 187
AERENTER Expense relating to variable lease payments
(AEERHEAETECR) not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 6,847
FEREEEREEIEZHER  Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use
assets 7,600
HERSRHAR Total cash outflow for leases 92,236
FREEEEM Additions to right-of-use assets 194,535
#ZX202053R31H For the year ended 31 March 2020
2IEE Depreciation for the year 65,098 2,702 2,479 70,279
SRR Expense relating to short-term leases 9,738
BEEEEREER Expense relating to leases of low-value
(NEEEEEEECRHHEE) assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value assets 1,021
ERENTER Expense relating to variable lease payments
(FEERHEaREZA) not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 5,503
RERSRHESR Total cash outflow for leases 85,272
FEREEELM Additions to right-of-use assets 137,886

AEFHEREHERE « RE - BBAREN
MATRBLUMHIES - HESRNEEHRRS
1EE15F - HEGRREREER SR HEEE
0 - HREaSEARNGERMGN - AEEE
FEERE RN E N EHEARRE - KES
RIRYE R HEE & B A RBISATHIHR -
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The Group leases various leasehold building, motor vehicles, machinery and
equipment and office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 year to 15 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.



14. EREEE @)

15.

eoh - REEZEA — LB MBI AN HE0E
RIGEZAMEMNTE - NEERZEYXES
WEMAEBA - EEHELEMPTHIFRIR
RESV A SEDBCHY - AWM Tt ERD A H
= Pl

FEETEHAEERT B LEMRIBT IS
WIS - N2021438310 - EHHEMNHEAR
Byt IR ERE IR E B HABAEA M -

ETREHEEESAEEENT
HNBEERARDLAE -

N E

FRERAEEERRDBEBRNFIERNNE
13 ¢

TAERHIEH

A - R20214F3831H  BRBEEAE
287,924,000 7T ( 20204 : 156,371,0003# 7T)
KRR (i FAREE EE282,447,000% 7T ( 20204F
177,177,0005%70) - BRY HHAERENHEEELEE
FRRgIRIR RSN - FHEREEETMEMATE -
HEEERSRAEESER -

HEROBARS-BEHA-REA

BT B ERAEBNERNEENIRER R
REEEREH T LEERE T HEREIHE
T - EERFEEN AT BN BRELERFE1S
SRVER - NIRRT N EREE -

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

In addition, the Group owns some office buildings and several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for leasehold building,
machinery and other equipment. As at 31 March 2021, the portfolio of short-
term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-
term lease expense was related as disclosed in this note above.

Leases of certain warehouses only contain variable lease payments that are
based on the percentage of usage on warehouse over the lease term.

Details on the impairment loss recognised on right-of-use assets are set out in
note 13.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$287,924,000 (2020: HK$156,371,000)
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$282,447,000 (2020:
HK$177,177,000) as at 31 March 2021. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Sale and leaseback transactions - seller-lessee

To better manage the Group’s capital structure and financing needs, the Group
sometimes enters into sale and leaseback arrangements in relation to land and
building leases. As these legal transfer satisfies the requirements of HKFRS 15, it
is accounted for as a sale of land and building.

PGB E AT ER 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2021 2020
FiExT Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
BENTRERAE Cost of investments in associates
& Listed 230,841 228,161
JEET Unlisted 319,632 318,158
PR S e R S EoAth 2 TR MCAR Share of post-acquisition profit and other
TRERE MRS comprehensive income, net of dividends
received 1,217,956 945,983
1,768,429 1,492,302
i/ NCING Amounts due from associates 16,879 9,883
BEEE RS Allowance for impairment loss (1,209) (598)
1,784,099 1,501,587
S HR3B31EC A E Fair value of listed shares at 31 March 516,855 350,157

BEANRRRABELER LR EIRBEEER
B-REFTER  AEESIEEREMNEER
B+ ERRRHERER - Bt - ESERIIF
EREBEE

B NT i EHRIDIMA T ERIER 55
EBRER  FLDERATFERBREIR -

The amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free and have no
fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors, the Group would not
demand for the repayment within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current assets.

The fair value of listed shares of the associates are determined based on quoted

prices in active markets and therefore are categorised as level 1 under the fair
value hierarchy.

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR
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ZEIRBM @

Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

15. RGBS ABESR (») 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
FIT A& B &5 /A B 1 4 B3 45 7 22 120,308,000 7 7T Included in the interests in associates is goodwill of HK$120,308,000 (2020:
(20204F : 117,790,000/&7T) ° HK$117,790,000).
FEBENTZFBHNRE M5 - Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 45.
TEBEQNEZHBEEEE Summarised financial information of material associates
BRAEETIEBHE AR M BEEREERS A Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material associates is
T o I BERBERRES B B E2EL set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts
iR BB NTR R TSRS ° shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.
WETEBRAT (TE%)) MERETERNOBR Linkz Industries Limited (“Linkz") and Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Meiloon”)
AT (TR )) REREENERHE AT - BN are the material associates to the Group and are accounted for using the equity
FEMERREERAE - method in these consolidated financial statements.
HERHEMBAR Linkz and its subsidiaries
2021 2020
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 2,662,777 2,193,814
FRBEE Non-current assets 2,044,813 2,199,798
mENaE Current liabilities 1,911,320 2,150,730
FFRBEE Non-current liabilities 467,221 234,533
IR Non-controlling interests 225,957 222,179
B Revenue 3,516,530 3,210,901
2R Profit for the year 239,449 135,805
2EHMP RS () Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year 96,405 (74,103)
2EPEWRER Total comprehensive income for the year 335,854 61,702
Tl B ER R RN R A SRR e Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
R BENFRSIRAERROT ¢ amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Linkz recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
2021 2020
FiEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BN ELEB N B FEE Net assets of Linkz attributable to
owners of Linkz 2,103,092 1,786,170
REEEELHEE RS LA Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Linkz 38.13% 38.13%
Frb B EE Share of net assets of Linkz 801,909 681,067
G Goodwill 28,242 28,242
HAithFA%E Other adjustment (2,536) (2,536)
REEPTEEEEG ZREE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Linkz 827,615 706,773

110 | Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



15. PGB & AR (=) 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

EERHEMEBEAS Meiloon and its subsidiaries
2021 2020
TFi&x FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 1,915,451 1,027,151
FRBEE Non-current assets 688,698 593,099
mEIAE Current liabilities 792,905 407,391
FRBEE Non-current liabilities 507,957 303,064
JEFE RS e R Non-controlling interests 80,565 78,471
EES Revenue 816,156 985,055
2R Profit for the year 429,309 106,343
2EEMPERA (ZE) Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year 43,763 (17,376)
2 EXHEWERER Total comprehensive income for the year 473,072 88,967
FRUEEWEVZ S Dividends received from Meiloon
during the year 17,189 8,580
B ERMNREREEN RSB RENE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
R BENTRARAENRAT * amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Meiloon recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
2021 2020
TiEnx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RENEERE AN ERFERE Net assets of Meiloon attributable to owners of
Meiloon 1,222,722 831,324
AEEEEEETERD LA Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Meiloon 20.27% 20.27%
FHEEENFEE Share of net assets of Meiloon 247,846 168,509
mE Goodwill 41,131 38,402
HibFAE Other adjustment (276) (36)
AEEMEEERER Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
IREE Meiloon 288,701 206,875
EECHMBEEFEHAR12A31H - KEERA The financial year end date for Meiloon is 31 December. For the purpose
ZEEESHI-ENIANBEECHBHRERE of applying the equity method of accounting, the consolidated financial
TNERE - At - AEEGRAEELENE AR statements of Meiloon and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
B ZE20208 128310 (20204F 1 2019412831 2020 (2020: 31 December 2019) have been used as the Group considers that
B) L FEZHREVERJERER ST DL it is impracticable for Meiloon to prepare a separate set of financial statements
ZBRY - ER2020512 831 H 202143 A 31 as of 31 March. Appropriate adjustments have been made accordingly for the
AzBERRSZZE (UE) - ELMEFLE effects of significant transactions between that date and 31 March 2021, if any.

HhEE -
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Year ended 31 March 2021
15. FHGEE QB ()

FEREXHELTDNESEH

BE2021F38318LELEE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

2021 2020
TFiEx FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REE R EBEHAAEE The Group’s share of total
comprehensive income 115,139 38,237
AEEFTEBS /AR R REEERE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
interests in these associates 667,783 587,939

12021638310 @ FTGBEARRABREUT
EmgE -

() BR T {& 288,701,000 % T ( 2020 4 :
206,875,000 7T ) HI<ER D - =EREE
K HRDNEEEBSIZERNE
RAR L™ « REEFTLEER R 2021
F3H31HzmiBEER352,875,000/ T
(20204 : 204,731,00037T) ©

(i) BE ™ {E 79,214,000 # T ( 2020 4 :
78,754,000 70) HIFT R DRI KRB B RA
B (T ERANRERL) B - TERDRIEREE
ML ERMNEEESRZFRNE
FRATR L/ o AEBMATEI B DRI RSN
202143831 HZ 5 EE 122,050,000
7T (20204F : 114,579,000557T)

(iiy B ™ {& 30,793,000 # T ( 2020 £ :
29,462,000757T) fYHanoi Battery Joint Stock
Company(" Habaco ;) B3 ° Habacoi? kg
AR - B TIINESR ST L
AREEE AT {5 HabacofE 26 7220213 A 31H
2 T I5 & (8 541,930,000 3% 7T ( 20204
30,847,00057%) °

JE s it 8 A B SRR RO RUE AT i 2 R 1B BRI B aE
35°

16. MATESARMZERZRETH

Interest in associates as at 31 March 2021 included the following listed
investment:

(i) The shares of Meiloon with carrying value of HK$288,701,000 (2020:
HK$206,875,000). Meiloon was incorporated in Taiwan and its shares
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The market value
of the Group’s interest in Meiloon as at 31 March 2021 amounted to
HK$352,875,000 (2020: HK$204,731,000).

(i) The shares of STL Technology Co., Ltd. (“STL") with carrying value of
HK$79,214,000 (2020: HK$78,754,000). STL was incorporated in Taiwan
and its shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The
market value of the Group’s interest in STL as at 31 March 2021 amounted
to HK$122,050,000 (2020: HK$114,579,000).

(iii

=

The shares of Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company (“Habaco”) with
carrying value of HK$30,793,000 (2020: HK$29,462,000). Habaco was
incorporated in Vietnam and its shares are listed on the Hanoi Stock
Exchange. The market value of the Group’s interest in Habaco as at 31
March 2021 amounted to HK$41,930,000 (2020: HK$30,847,000).

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from associates are set out in
note 35.

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2021 2020

TFiEx Tt

HK$'000 HK$'000

RRE M RAES Equity securities listed in Taiwan - 5,882
I LR AE S /ATE (H5EDb) Unlisted equity securities, at fair value (note b) 60,065 52,531
60,065 58,413

Bt -

(@) LA ERMELHREDRFEEIZAE M
RHNRAREEBNEE - AATESRR
TERE LR E  BREBNATFEN RS PE
FEEFAELEREURNR BN RHBE
BREXEENNRBER BN RAIELR
EWFIRBUATFESARMEERSHIRAT
B o

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021

Notes:

(@) The above listed and unlisted investments are not held for trading. Instead, they are
held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company have elected
to designate these investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for
long-term purposes and realising their performance potential in the long run.



16. LATERARMEZERBZIREATE @

17.

18.

19.

Fst © (48)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) BIEFRIEA8,704,000# 7T ( 20204 : 44,824,000 (b)
BIT) RAREBEE49%( 20204 © 49% ) ik
—BERPEANI AT HEBEBAHERSD
8 - AEBASHZATMNABEBNBENRE

EEREAR

KRR - EFRRAEEREYH

RATETEATE » RILZATRIRBUA
FEFARMEmEENEATR -

Included an amount of approximately HK$48,704,000 (2020: HK$44,824,000)
represents the Group's 49% (2020: 49%) equity investments in a company
established in the PRC, which is engaged in selling and distribution business. The
Group does not participate in the daily operations and has waived its right to exercise
its voting power in the board of directors’ meetings of this company. In the opinion
of the directors, the Group cannot exercise significant influence over that company

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

and accordingly, such investment is classified as equity instrument at FVTOCI.

MAFEHABRZERATH 17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
TFiERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEE FheRAES Equity securities listed in United States 7,455 -
BREE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ERR#EZH
Product EERE ERRRE
&1 development Technical Customer A&t
Trademarks  expenditure know-how relationship Total
T TET FBT FET FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3% COST
20194818 - At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and
20204 [ 20214 31 March 2021
3H31H 85,205 129,461 103,616 10,026 328,308
BEHBSERAE ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
201944/ 1H At 1 April 2019 83,881 129,461 103,616 10,026 326,984
TEEERE Provided for the year 77 - - - 77
#20203A31H At 31 March 2020 83,958 129,461 103,616 10,026 327,061
TEEER Provided for the year 77 - - _ 77
#202143A31H At 31 March 2021 84,035 129,461 103,616 10,026 327,138
BREE CARRYING VALUES
2021438318 At 31 March 2021 1,170 - - - 1,170
#202053831H At 31 March 2020 1,247 - - - 1,247
[k 4 19. GOODWILL
2021 2020
TFERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Carrying value 79,066 79,066

BEMEORER R BENIRE 20 -

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 20.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
20. B ZEERE

P19 Bz P E D BCEE R BB AR RS
EABAERENR - FB0T

BE2021F38318LELEE

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 19 has been
allocated to each individual or group of CGUs as follows:

2021 2020
TFiERT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

GPT 2 GP Ind 33,775 33,775
BIEMAR () EMERAF GP Batteries Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co. Ltd 33,319 33,319
Hith Others 11,972 11,972
=1 Total 79,066 79,066

RAEE  AEERIBRSREBA ABEET
BRI - RS METEHIRIEAINR1ZE54 (2020
FNESF)NEHVEEEERLRZBEEERE
K-57%ZE40%( 20204 1 2.7%E4.0% ) » LIk
BRI IR 11.5% % 12.7%( 20204F : 13.9% &
18.9% ) 5THE »

BRFARSELEMNAIRESRUEREE
FTE - EREEAECEIZREAZER TR
K RRRLEXPEERIHENEHREE - T
HEERRRHSERT GEZEBEEERZ
BB BT MRS EL B BR RRTET
R - BREXZITETHERIBE - @B NE
B HMEERDERR MRS RRZE(L
FH - Hftst EEAEEN T RRIZBEENR
SELBUZBERELEREAD SR REAY
R ERENRENERZBESRANMRE
R - EEERAEMNELRRCPEASER
REBH I eEREELEMNRIERBER
W EIESER - A HE— BERRE -

21. FFRBNFEURARIE

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for goodwill, based
on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets of each of
the CGUs for the next 1 to 5 years (2020: 1 to 5 years) with reference to annual
growth rate ranging from -5.7% to 4% (2020: 2.7% to 4.0%) by using the
pre-tax discount rate ranging from 11.5% to 12.7% (2020: 13.9% to 18.9%).

The recoverable amount of each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The key factors for the
value in use calculation are discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to revenue and direct costs during the year. Management estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rate is based
on average industry growth forecasts. Changes in revenue and direct cost are
based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations included budgeted sales and
gross margins and their related cash inflow and outflow patterns, estimated
based on the CGUs' historical performance and management’s expectation of
the market development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to
exceed the recoverable amount of the CGUs thus no further impairment would
be recognised.

21. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
TiERx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
I EEMER (HEta) Variable-rate loan receivable (note a)
E—FUEEREBE=F In more than one year but not more than
three years 29,664 36,985
IERIRB B (FisEb) Early relocation subsidy (note b) 56,515 46,407
86,179 83,392
FfIEE - Notes:

(a) FEWEREENLHE=T7 » R202143A831HIZE
TS ERES5%:T 2 » WH2023F6 A EE - &
B RAEE—EMBEARMNRER - #F20214
3A31 B I FEMEKEFTURE T BH NN
350

REZFREEZNBE AT TR ERERER
HOIEAR -
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(@) The loan receivable was advanced to a third party and carries interests at prevailing
market rates of 5.5% per annum at 31 March 2021 and is repayable in June 2023.
That third party is a shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group. Details of impairment
assessment of loan receivable for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out in note 35.

The counterparty has pledged its interest in that subsidiary as a security for the loan
receivable.



21.

22,

23.

JERENFEURBRIE (=) 21.

FyEE * (4%)

(b) IRETRBRHIEAEEEEMNPREINN TR
FIFLE 1 0 1 = E T AS MR AR B TR R
wE  BEAAGAERNEE () - 5%
FHIERR—FRRE - A ERIERB EKHK
15 - 82202143831 HILEFE  ZBIEmER
EFHENEAAR RIS -

NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Early relocation subsidy represented the compensation offered by the buyer for the
early handover the control of the factory due to the disposal of certain land and
building of industrial complex located in Huizhou, PRC (note 8). The amount will be
received after one year and classified as non-current. Details of impairment assessment
of the early relocation subsidy for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out in note 35.

w78 22. INVENTORIES

2021 2020
TFiExT Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
BER Raw materials 342,223 240,310
EER Work in progress 344,463 277,242
By Finished goods 505,396 396,605
1,192,082 914,157

BEHREMEWIRIERTEFTHKIE 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

FEERTREEZEFEEY  —RA=ZTRE
—BHITRAE - BREFLERRER G0R(E
SEIREE) RRZARRREPREERZRER
DITAT

The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally ranging from
30 days to 120 days. The following is an ageing of trade and bills receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
TFERT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFRENZEWSHRER Trade and bills receivables from contracts
with customers
0-60K 0-60 days 923,161 580,168
61-90K 61-90 days 109,992 81,639
HBiBIOK Over 90 days 176,208 149,259
1,209,361 811,066
EfEUARIE ~ = LFENFRIE (EE) Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (note) 387,006 412,067
1,596,367 1,223,133
B IEmENES Less: Non-current portion of deposits
BEEYXE - REMSBEISZNzZS Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (27,490) (15,049)
FRBHEDES Non-current rental deposits (11,259) (11,037)
(38,749) (26,086)
1,557,618 1,197,047

R2019F4A31H  BREFPBNELCRKER
#5929,129,00057T, ©

Mzt : SRBE B EIETEEERRIE « AJUEIEER
TET R R — PR E AR NYZER20204F
3 A 31 B8 iz fE U 5 18 < %1 54,983,000 % T
(20214 - TBIT) ©

As at 1 April 2019, trade receivables from contracts with customers amounted
to HK$929,129,000.

Note: The amount mainly includes advance to suppliers, VAT recoverable, prepaid
expenses and the compensation receivable for relocation of property of a PRC
subsidiary amounting to HK$54,983,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2021: nil).

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR
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Year ended 31 March 2021
23. B ERHREEWERIER FEFTFRIE (=)

BE2021F38318LELEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

REWHER - A EEEREEER 2 ERE
HARERAERERZEER - EEBRFE
BEEBNERLEMBRIRZEERR -

R20214F38318 » REBENEREREERT
£+ B [ #8 (8 /5 253,739,000 7% 7T ( 20204
223,857,000/t ) FUFEMERTR » S LLFEIER SRR
W HEAH - EEHART - 564,288,000/
7T ( 20204F : 65,369,00037T) 2 HI90 KRS E
R REBEEEFNRIFENCHMNITEE
8 A2BHERELY -

FEU SR S B FE M IR R E R i e IS B Y
350

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess the
credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate credit limits.
The management also closely monitors the credit policy of trade and other
receivables.

As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group’s trade receivables balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$253,739,000 (2020:
HK$223,857,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$64,288,000 (2020: HK$65,369,000) has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default based on good repayment
records and the financial background for those customers.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in
note 35.

24, {TEEMTIR 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2021 2020
TiERx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
fTEEmas Derivative financial liabilities

ISR AR R A Foreign currency forward contracts 5,979 2,594
MZERH A Interest rate swap contracts 843 3,927
FmEAaH Forward commodity contracts 300 33
7,122 6,554

HEVBRERA TR Amount shown in the consolidated financial statements as:
2021 2020
FEx TFHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mENBE Current liabilities 7,122 6,554

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021




24. fTEEMIE =)

SMESEERSHY

#20214£3H531H

PR202153H3110 » SNEIRIIG 2 TR
g

BEREW

Notional amount

)] =)
Maturity

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency forward contracts

At 31 March 2021

Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at 31 March 2021 are as
follows:

RiRE

Exchange rate

170,200,000 7T
Sell USD 70,200,000

SHESEERS K

#20206F3H31H

202053 [31H » SNEEREIEA)Z E RN
T

20214548128 %2021411H30H
12.04.2021 to 30.11.2021

%5t/ AR#6.50%6.6190
USD/RMB6.50 to 6.6190

Foreign currency forward contracts

At 31 March 2020

Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at 31 March 2020 are as
follows:

BR=E HER RIAE
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
& +15,500,00037T 202044 H7HZE202045H29H %5t/ ARM6.9045%7.0224

Sell USD 15,500,000

MREREHPZFIESHEH
REEHEERFITRI LA REHEN - BBY
BRRERSEEMNE - SETINETY BRITE
R RENEBDREBREERE - ZAKZERK
R ERPTEDPIRTT EFU B — B (B AR £
RITERCASER  BERFEERAER) - 2
20203310 EERANEEHASNES
AP TR WREHEPGHEETEZFLAR
REREHPTE -

RN R EE RS RART=SES
R o B ZE202043A31HIEERE » LIRS RE W
¥R T B A EEE)EIE2,078,000/4TE
PEAREBESER RN REEANRET

BE2021F3A31BLEFE - REBEEETHM
POUFBIRITER » AL - #WihEahEELE - R
STE 4,136,000 8 T EFT AR ©

07.04.2020 to 29.05.2020

USD/RMB6.9045 to 7.0224

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with the commercial bank
to minimise its exposure to cash flow changes of its floating-rate Singapore
dollars bank loan by swapping floating interest rates to fixed interest rates. The
terms of this contract were negotiated to match with those of the hedged bank
loan with the same notional amount to principal amount of bank loan, currency
and interest rate index. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the directors
considered that the interest rate swap contract was highly effective hedging
instrument and had designated it as cash flow hedging instrument for hedge
accounting purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow exposure to interest rate
movements. Fair value change on hedging instrument in cash flow hedge of loss
of HK$2,078,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 had been recognised in
OCl and accumulated in hedging reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group repaid the floating-
rate Singapore dollars bank loan. As a result, the hedge accounting was
discontinued and the accumulated hedging reserve HK$4,136,000 was released
to profit or loss.
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Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

24. fTEEM IR @ 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
UREiREH 2SS ) Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges (continued)
RMEPFRURSREL A EE RSN E The major terms of the interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at
EEFAT ¢ the end of the reporting period are as follows:
F20216E3H831H At 31 March 2021
BEREEH EIEAH IWEZE XHER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
10,200,000% 03 7T ("N, ) 202145H24H FE T =1{8 B = HA R 2~ 2.155%
Singapore dollars (“SGD")10,200,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR*
10,200,00057 103 7T 2021458 24H FTINE T =18 B s EAA R+ 2.270%
SGD10,200,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR*
10,200,000FT 03 7T 2021458 24H N T =18 B = HA R & 2.110%
SGD10,200,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR*
F20205E3H831H At 31 March 2020
BEREH EIEAH IWEER ZHER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
17,400,000 103 7T 20214F5H24H FTINSE T =18 7 FEEAA R+
SGD17,400,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR* 2.155%
17,400,000% /03 7T 202145H24H FINBT =18 B 3= BAF &K+
SGD17,400,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR* 2.270%
17,400,000%7 hn3E 7T 202145H24H FTINSE T =18 B = HAA =+
SGD17,400,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR* 2.110%
* AR BRI *  SOR represents Swap Offer Rate.
HRIEHSH Forward commodity contracts
AEBERBRERENREBHERMAERIE The Group uses commodity forward contracts to manage the risk arising from
ENEERMERS - BELARINEEERNT - price fluctuation of its raw material. The major terms of these contracts are as

follows:
F20216F3531H At 31 March 2021
HE (AN)
=L [ Quantity Eab-] =] EmiEHAERE
Currency Commodity (in metric tonnes) Maturity Commodity forward price
EV" 8 40 20214581H S/\WE17,0003E7T
usb Nickel 1.5.2021 UsD17,000/metric tonne
F£20206F3531H At 31 March 2020
HE (AN)

=L [ Quantity Eab-] =] EmiEHAERE
Currency Commodity (in metric tonnes) Maturity Commodity forward price
EV" 8 20 2020128 1H B/AME11,695357T
usb Nickel 1.12.2020 UsSD11,695/metric tonne
e 8 20 202141 A1H HAWE11,710357T
usbD Nickel 1.1.2021 USD11,710/metric tonne
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25. [RITHEF  FRRERE

AEEFACRITAR  FRARSBERS
R={AR U TR M BB RTHEHRUER =X
0.001%%2.48%( 20204F : 0.001%%3.00% ) #
EUAIE

26. PEBFHESRE

25. BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH

Bank balances, deposits and cash held by the Group comprising cash and
short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less which
carry interests ranging from 0.001% to 2.48% (2020: 0.001% to 3.00%) per
annum.

26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

T

HK$'000

2019448 1H At 1 April 2019 196,493
=g s Currency realignment (2,254)
HE Disposals (150,854)
72020%3A31H At 31 March 2020 43,385
=gk Currency realignment 14
HE Disposals (22,649)
ANFHEG Fair value gain 21,464
7202143A31H At 31 March 2021 42,214

MEZE2018F3831AILERE » AEFEEBIIE
ZHEIVEERE  HERPREMN ST
REERZENE - 2202030310 » AHE
WENEE2020F3 831 HIEEERILE » K&
B IF 53)8 11 B R H E R {E19,555,000%
TR AT A R E N & T3 KLY R IR EY)
%o PEFE2021E3A3HILEE - AEELS
NEZENVEERS  HESMNZWERTEH
—FERTHRHE -

REZE2019F3A31HILFE - AEBEEBIE
=EINEEHE  HENPREEINEZERE
E4176,627,0008 2= THELI MR EE °
7201938318 » HRHERAKRTTA @ FIt -
TR2019F3831H » ZEEEREFINEDLER
FHESE - PNEZE2020463A31BEEE ' B2
HEBRT{E 150,854,000 T2 & T R EE
(MF&E8) » FA20204F3H31H » AN ETEH—
FRTER - HARRME(E/23,830,000 T2 3%
BWAEAFHESE - 1202006 3 HEFEHK -
AEREEFHEEERRE ZEREEKE
81,840,000 7T °

REZE2021F3831 B L FEEREWENNTE
HEEEREEEHHERHEERETHE -

HEWHEN2020F3831 BAFEREAEE
A FRAE B 2 I8 B2 EAD1T - K AATEHE
BERAERARMGE - ZEHEMEEANERR
FHEAE B R R AR AV ZE RIS -

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements with independent third parties to dispose of certain land
and building and investment properties located in Huizhou, PRC. As at 31
March 2020, the carrying amount of certain land and building and investment
properties of HK$19,555,000 located in Huizhou PRC (“Huizhou Properties”),
were in negotiation with potential buyers after the termination of the disposal
agreement during the financial year ended 31 March 2020. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Group entered into sale and purchase agreements
with an independent third party to dispose of the Huizhou Properties and it is
expected to complete the disposal within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements with independent third parties to dispose of another
certain of leasehold land and building located in Huizhou and Ningbo,
PRC with the carrying amount of HK$176,627,000. The disposals have not
been completed as at 31 March 2019 and therefore were reclassified as
“assets classified as held for sale” as at 31 March 2019. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, certain land and building with the carrying amount
of HK$150,854,000 were disposed of (note 8). As at 31 March 2020, the
remaining carrying amount of HK$23,830,000 was classified as assets held for
sale since the disposal was expected to be completed within one year. In June
2020, the disposal was completed and the Group received HK$81,840,000
for the disposal of assets held for sale and settlements of the compensation
receivable for relocation.

The fair values of investment properties at the year ended 31 March 2021 were
valued by management in consideration of the exit price according to the sales
and purchase agreement.

The fair values of investment properties at the year ended 31 March 2020 were
valued by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. The valuers have appropriate qualifications and
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
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26. HEAGSHEEE »)

TREHGHREVEATENFNEENER
(LEZRT R ESM AR - WA AFE
SFERATEFERAZSBNIREEESAAN
FEBR(1E38R) -

BE2021F38318LELEE
26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

RFEHBRARA -
FEERERENS TAERSHABIEH
Investment properties held BB RFEZRAR
by the Group in the AFEEE ATEER RIZHARE Relationship
consolidated statement Fairvalue Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) EENFIEZBARE of unobservable
of financial position assetsasat  hierarchy  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
2020
T
HK$'000
HEBENEE £33 BB Ei£2020F3R31H1 - THRNER - KA BYHIABREELAK
BYHAER MRERAELREE U RHNE SHRENEATER
ARX (PUIERERRNENNE) 875 B0 R4
K233 ANRMEE2,435 NRHE (I9E72,555%
TLE2,66257T) °
Factory building and warehouse in 12,944 Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market direct Assignificant increase

the PRC

TEfFT AL EP 2020331 HZREWENA
FER  AEERAREERUERTZEE - 1
WEBRNBABBENERT  AEERES
ZHRERMGEMAAREZREYRETH
B - RWEHNEER  AEEEEERGERI
B EMERA RN EEEA N A E R &
BAPMEIFPATFEBECBARIR - EREE
EIRTHISESUBENTSERE - AEERES
ERLEMAB22RBA - BREREE2HRBA
B ARERSRAEMGEERNT - APEEE3
HBN - EBENATEEERRBT - HIKE
HNRAERRESRSE - 2RIDBRRMEF K
B2 ERARE  SREAEEREYE AT
18 -
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with price per square metre

comparable and taking into account of location  of price per square
and other individual factors such as road meter would result
frontage, size of property etc., which isranged  in significant increase
from RMB2,337 to RMB2,435 (equivalent to in fair value of the
HK$2,555 to HK$2,662) per square meter for ~ investment property,
the year ended 31 March 2020. and vice versa.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31
March 2020, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs cannot be derived from observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
directors. Any changes in the price per square metre with reference to recent
transactions will affect the fair value of the investment properties of the Group.



27.

28.

EMREREARSHERE

FENIRIERBEZA RN REREE Q2RO
LU

27. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The following is the ageing of creditors presented based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
FiEnT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

FETETR Trade creditors
0-60K 0-60 days 1,030,043 648,813
61-90K 61-90 days 117,880 82,176
BHBI0K Over 90 days 79,513 66,342
1,227,436 797,331
HiteRERAER (M) Other payables and accrued charges (note) 726,136 505,918
1,953,572 1,303,249

HBE SR FIIEEHR60E120K °

i - SEPTEEFEEMCERS - —RPRENBEA
AHEMEZTANGIR » EBERRRE K EME
AHH -

M201964R81H » BHR(ER15,835,0007T ©
BNRETRETAREPFIA - RAFHE A

Iz BB ERRIIE 35 /A43,573,00058 70
(20204 : 15,835,000 °

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days to 120 days.

Note: The amount mainly includes accrual for operating expenses, receipt in advance from
sales of property of a PRC subsidiary, provision for relocation expenses and other tax
payables.

As at 1 April 2019, contract liabilities amounted to HK$15,835,000.
Contract liabilities are mainly advance payment received from customers. The

amount of revenue recognised in the current reporting period which relates to
brought-forward contract liabilities is HK$43,573,000 (2020: HK$15,835,000).

HE&E 28. LEASE LIABILITIES
2021 2020
TiEnx FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BfHEEEE - Lease liabilities payable:
—FREIHA Within one year 72,339 61,803
B —FE(ENE MRS Within a period of more than one year but not
more than two years 51,614 48,281
BEMEENERF Within a period of more than two years but not
more than five years 85,571 45,352
EBhE Within a period of more than five years 78,400 935
287,924 156,371
B 12 A NEEIARBIAE Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months shown under current liabilities 72,339 61,803
12{8 B &2 AFERE & 1E Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities 215,585 94,568

AEFT NI AAERZESELEHRE -
HEEEARKAWEEERANEL240%ZE
7.00%( 20204 : 4.00%%7.00% ) °

HEREEARNHESEC T EEBHENAEER
A °

No extension options are included in any of the lease agreements entered by the
Group. The incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities
range from 2.40% to 7.00% (2020: 4.00% to 7.00%).

Lease liabilities that are denominated in currencies which are same as the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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Year ended 31 March 2021

29. JRITHHK - BRERRAMEM

BE2021F38318LELEE

29. BANK LOANS, IMPORT AND OTHER LOANS

2021 2020
FExT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HAEHIRTT REM BT R HARR (5 Current portion of unsecured bank and other
(My5E30) loans (note 30) 546,180 293,060
RS HRITERKEEEE Unsecured short-term bank loans and import
GET)) loans (note a) 2,156,215 1,665,113
REAR S ER (MEb) Short-term interest free loan (note b) 8,107 -
BN ER ERERMEERERN Short-term portion of bank loans that are
SRITEFZIEHAENMD (M5E30) repayable on demand due to breach of loan
covenants (note 30) - 421,303
RN E R EFERMIEE REEN Long-term portion of bank loans that are
IRITEF REAEBMH (HIFE30) repayable on demand due to breach of loan
covenants (note 30) - 707,602
EIRREEH GG Current portion of secured motor vehicle loan
(M95E30) (note 30) 202 181
2,710,704 3,087,259

PRE - Notes:

a. AEE EIBRIGHBITERRBEXEEE a. The unsecured short-term bank loans and import loans of the Group are arranged
ST ENFIEWERA B o R SRS HRT at floating rates. The effective interest rates of unsecured short-term bank loans
ERNEECECERFNEEER1.18%E and import loans during the year ranged from 1.18% to 6.41% (2020: 2.28% to
6.41%(20204F : 2.28%%6.90% ) ° 6.90%) per annum.

b. REZE2021F3A31HIEFE » HFEX<RE b. During the year ended 31 March 2021, certain subsidiaries operating in the

ENNBARRETERE S (TFERRE
) BEIRITER  RNEE20214E3A318M
RIEBAEEEA8,107,0008 7T ("5 & R
7)) FERBHIENRBERRES
FERE B SR X EBUT A EH BB RS
SHENREE 2 —59 » Hit - REFS
R BEMNTHEAF I » MFEEE
HEERUBTER - CHBEERIVE  FE
REGREARFEEENRR B RE
HIVER T AT REE - HERE BB
KREA PRI /AMEELREREET - R2021438
310 - AEEFEREAN B ERNEREHRFBE
SR -
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United States were granted bank loans under the Paycheck Protection Program
(“PPP"), with an aggregate outstanding balance of HK$8,107,000 as at 31 March
2021 (the “PPP Loans"). The PPP Loans are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
The PPP is part of the COVID-19 relief measures established by the United States
government pursuant to which bank loans were granted to qualifying businesses
based on the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. Subject
to approval by the relevant authority, the PPP Loans are forgivable to the extent
the proceeds used for eligible purposes and the conditions for forgiveness are
met. The unforgiven portion of the PPP Loans is repayable to the relevant lender.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s applications for forgiveness of the PPP Loans
were pending for approval.



* ENESEERERMETRENTEEERAY -

RITREMER (NBRRBEAR) 7Y BB R
14,187 000,%7t (20204 : 8,826,000/ 7T) ° A
SECBRITERNBERER K &#HE (HE 2T
sl Hﬁ%) Ha1.57%:5.o9%(2020£ﬁ 3.07%
%£6.52% )

2021438310 @ EERAELEN—KIEB
NEKREEBETEMN MRS RIS F L EH (R
BB AS A65,713,000587T) w2 F LI IR
B AT BRI R &4 RaESEE 2021
FIANBUEMBEECRRE - KEEREE
202143 B 31 H st B HNESTATE At 515k

Eo
A °

202083831 @ IRIBEBASEEERCER
f#\ AEEREETRELGE IR (BAEE

B R AN R B E 202043 831 BAEE IHETT
FTE) - REZE2021F3831HIEFE » AEEE
ESSEESHTIMAARBRREILEENEIE
(MRARL) -

30. SRITREMER 30. BANK AND OTHER LOANS
2021 2020
TiEnx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
NIRRT R M BEFEN T IIFHNR The unsecured bank and other loans are
B repayable*:
—FRN Within one year 546,180 1,421,965
BB — e Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 567,482 172,139
BAMEE NS DT Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years 480,434 177,299
EIEMREEHREN N FRREE The secured motor vehicle loan is repayable*:
—FRA Within one year 202 181
HIB— B NARE Within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years 17 190
BIBMEERNE AT Within a period of more than two years but not
exceeding five years - 16
1,594,315 1,771,790
B —EREIESIAREIEE (FYEE29) Less: Amount due within one year shown under
current liabilities (note 29) (546,180) (293,060)
HARERES ﬂ%?ﬂﬁﬁ]@%ﬁﬁé%ﬁ’\] Short-term portion of bank loans that are
SRITEFR S HAER M (F95E29) repayable on demand due to breach of
loan covenants (note 29) - (421,303)
BHEAL)iﬁrA BT AR SREE MY Long-term portion of bank loans that are
SRITERZ RPEMD (FI5E29) repayable on demand due to breach of
loan covenants (note 29) - (707,602)
ERRE S E M (FiEE29) Current portion of secured motor
vehicle loan (note 29) (202) (181)
1,047,933 349,644

*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Bank and other loans are net of transaction cost of HK$14,187,000 (2020:
HK$8,826,000) arranged at floating rates. The range of effective interest rates
of bank loans (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group'’s
bank and other loans are from 1.57% to 5.09% (2020: 3.07% to 6.52%) per
annum.

As at 31 March 2021, a subsidiary operating in Malaysia was not able to
comply with certain financial covenants committed under certain loans
with aggregate outstanding principal of HK$65,713,000 due to two
financial institutions. The subsidiary had obtained letter of indulgence or
waiver for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 before the end of the
reporting period to waive such non-compliance. The Group complied with
all other financial covenants for the test period ended 31 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had not complied with certain financial
covenants (computed based on the Group's borrowings and earnings)
committed under certain loan and banking facility agreements (the
“Affected Loans”) for the test period ended 31 March 2020. The Group
has obtained the consents from lenders of the Affected Loans to waive such
non-compliance (the “Consents”) during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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30. SRITREMERR =)

31.

AR A2020F3 A31 HEREVERIEE » FIt -
Kt BRMEMERENT —EAREENS
S EEFIE HAER17421,000,00054 7T K2 722020
FIRNHRBREENSREERNEHITH
708,000,000/ 7T * I A—FRERETE
M FEEEREMERA RN ERGER
(R FIEE29)

IEFEFR IR

FEEERRELTHREEN AEEENT ¢

BE2021F38318LELEE

30. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

31.

As the Consents were not in place as at 31 March 2020, the short-term
portion of the Affected Loans amounted to HK$421 million which was
originally scheduled to be repaid within twelve months from 31 March
2020, and the long-term portion of the Affected Loans amounted to
HK$708 million which was originally scheduled to be repaid after 31 March
2020, were presented under bank, import and other loans repayable
within one year and repayable on demand as disclosed in note 29.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group are
as follows:

RAEER
BRERITE ZRMR
ZITERE  Withholding
REME  Accelerated taxon
Investment tax  undistributed RIEEE Hitr &t
properties  depreciation profits Tax losses Others Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEREEE Deferred tax assets
720194810 At 1 April 2019 - 9,798 - 2,872 9,818 22,488
B Currency realignment - (485) - 1) (397) (993)
REZETEA GNR) Credit (charge) to profit or loss - 735 - (1,290) 73) (628)
202063A318 At31 March 2020 - 10,048 - 1471 9,348 20,867
gHRE Currency realignment - 1,013 - 164 219 1,39
REBRFEA Credit to profit or loss - 563 - 448 4513 5,524
72021834311 At 31 March 2021 - 11,624 - 2,083 14,080 27,781
ERERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
7201954718 At 1 April 2019 909 6,602 16,587 - - 24,098
g Currency realignment - (46) - - (595) (641)
PERF GIA) 15k (Credit) charge to profit or loss - (1,779) 3,886 - 15,498 17,605
2020434318 At 31 March 2020 909 4,777 20,473 - 14,903 41,062
s Currency realignment - 4 - - 1,244 1,248
PESPHR GIA) Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1,239 1720 16,675 - (2,046) 17,588
2021438318 At 31 March 2021 2,148 6,501 37,148 - 14,101 59,898

20214638318 » "&EEFH1,820,271,000
7T (20204 © 1,658,429,0005 7T) 2 R 1& F
RIEBER THRERK RF - LZIBEXE
M SRR IE R4 T8 & 12,624,000 7T ( 20204 -
8,915,000/ 1) © AR ARIRAEF FIATEA - I
LT T8 B i8R %E1,807,647,0005% 7T (20204 :
1,649,514,00077T) (EHIRIERIBE ERR

RIFPFEARLNMBEPESRIE  AEEER
20085 1B 1HESRENTHEZMBATDZEIR
& S RIHE RS A 2 B A A TEIORL - AEEIDE
BREH2008FE 1 A1 HRAEER TR ET
MEARMS A EE e E2ERIEERIE
BiE > RAEEEEH SR EERDRREL
FEEIEEREN A RARKEE - 12202143 A 31
B AEBERRAECBENRNETRHER
ZHBARZ KD EAEDBILL20% F 5% I
RIEIRFEF VA B (548 28 537,148,00055 7T ( 2020
£ 1 20,473,00057T) ©
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At 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$1,820,271,000 (2020:
HK$1,658,429,000) available for offsetting against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$12,624,000 (2020: HK$8,915,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,807,647,000 (2020: HK$1,649,514,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, a withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable
to profits earned by the Group’s certain PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 March 2021, the amount of HK$37,148,000 (2020:
HK$20,473,000) represented the deferred taxation on undistributed profits arising
from a Taiwan associate being recognised at a taxation of 20% and undistributed
profits arising from certain PRC subsidiaries being recognised at a taxation of 5%,
respectively.



32.

33.

34.

S 32. PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING
2021 2020
TiEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

REHRENTAT Analysed for reporting purposes as:

FEREEE Non-current liabilities 99,810 99,810
SifEE
Provision for
restructuring
TFigx
HK$'000
2019448 1H At 1 April 2019 -
FRNEBIMNER Provision made in the year 99,810
72020%3A31HK&202143H831H At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 99,810

EHEBERAMNBPRENBNESERR (s
8) RAE Rl B —Hh B4 B — B AT A
E A5k 489,810,000 7T 52 10,000,000 7T 73 Bl

The provision for restructuring relates to the estimated cost of relocation of
parts of its operations from Huizhou, PRC (note 8) to Thailand and set up
another factory in a new location in PRC. The restructuring costs are related to

Rt 2 EEBERBRBRA - ZRIETEERR— estimated compensation to employees of HKD89,810,000 and relocation cost
FEBA - of HKD 10,000,000 respectively. The amount is expected to be utilised after one
year.
23 33. SHARE CAPITAL
R&E
Number of
shares
+ T
‘000 HK$'000
ERTRHELEK Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:
PR2019%481H » At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and
2020F3B831H K 31 March 2021
2021%3H31H 784,693 921,014

B 20214 % 202063831 B LLTBERR -
AAT 2 BBAT R R IR A B

ErRRER

RAREREER  DIERASEERR RS
BEBEERE  WEBBREB MRS
BEA NEREARH - ANEE 2 BREBRNE
FEMRFAE

REBECERERBEFES (BED BN
29 30FTIX R SRITER ~ FZEEE MEAMER
FETREMEFRBRERSFERS) MAAT
R AEGRED (BRGNS ERTFTIKE
ZEBITRA « REGN REMRER) -

FAREFEHRAEREE - FREMN—E
7 BEEEREARAREATRELABR A
% o ANAEFRHAEEBEB GRS
THR > BORoEBITHERNEOREE
B DITERRERGE -

34.

There were no changes in the Company’s issued and fully paid share capital in
both years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank
loans, import and other loans and bank and other loans disclosed in notes 29
and 30 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and
other reserve as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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Year ended 31 March 2021

BE2021F38318LELEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @
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Em e

2021 K20204F3 8310 » AEELISNE (B
ANAEB AR ZINEEER) STEIECEBE
EREEEE  SEBRETAEMERIRIE
FEWR B~ RITHTT B RIS« IERBEK
BRI~ FE(SERIB MR EMMEMIRIE « SRITERR -1
EEEREMMERIRITREMETAT ¢

35. ZMTH 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
=T EEER Categories of financial instruments
2021 2020
TFiErx Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS ATTEC SRIEE Financial assets at amortised costs
—EWE R K EAEIERIE — Trade and other receivables 1,283,340 931,994
— KRR - Dividend receivable 24,826 26,723
—RITHEF  GRERS — Bank balances, deposits and cash 1,318,468 1,250,672
/NI — Amounts due from associates 16,879 9,883
—IEMBEWARIE — Non-current receivables 86,179 83,392
DUAFHEST AR MK SRR TR Equity instruments at FVTOCI 60,065 58,413
MAFEFTAEBRNBRATAR Equity instruments at FVTPL 7,455 -
2,797,212 2,361,077
DU E AT IR R B E Financial liabilities at amortised costs
—FE{TERIE — Creditors 1,559,358 963,808
—RITERN ~ BEEELEHMER — Bank loans, import and other loans 2,702,597 3,087,259
— B EEMR — Short-term interest free loan 8,107 -
—RIT REMER - Bank and other loans 1,047,933 349,644
HE&E Lease liabilities 287,924 156,371
5,605,919 4,557,082
mESRITE Derivative financial instruments 7,122 6,554
=REMREERIEREER Financial risk management objectives and policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities,
representing trade and other receivables, dividend receivable, bank balances,
deposits and cash, non-current receivables, creditors and other payables,
bank loans, import and other loans and bank and other loans denominated in
currencies other than the respective group entities’ functional currencies at 31
March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

BE aE

Assets Liabilities
2021 2020 2021 2020
FiEx FETT Fi&x FiEoT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZETT usD 423,147 302,564 429,105 317,412
AR RMB 287,069 538,198 302,734 264,159
HThnsEoT SGD 84,266 4,339 4,365 7,143
BRIT Euro 28,462 36,720 20,135 13,022
822,944 881,821 756,339 601,736

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021
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=REREEBEREER @)

TG EE (&)

ErE g )
BEIMERRFERBEEEREE cEERE
& EEESLEELEEINERR  URNE
FFEREDNERIMERERR - ko REFEFTIE
HRX B RN RSO LIEEINER
o BERAAERNELTESRTENKRE
RER R EETBURNEDT -

BRED T
TRAMIHAEEEE MEN SRR RS
HEARHNEGRIMERI5%( 20204 © 5% ) 3N
TR 2 BURE » |FETTESE TN - FLtks
TABIRSETTAIBTTRZKE - CABREER
MEEERESEERREER > TREEEHI
BAMEBENSBHRE - PREITRAEBES
BEMEIE B AVIME AR - MR EER RIR5%
(20204F : 5% ) VB BRI - ZOITRBIEH
TMERIEEER BB ER5%( 20205 5% )
RENHEARIMNENTE - BRI ABRRFR
DERBEER - SOZ IR o B8 RIS R RN
EISHN BB RBEINEES55%( 20206 15% )RS -
HEEBERMEARNEE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Exposures to foreign currency risks are managed as far as possible by matching
assets and liabilities in the same currency denomination. The management
regularly monitors foreign exchange exposure and considers hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise. In addition, the Group enters
into short-term cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts to
manage certain foreign currency exposure. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group’s investments in those derivative financial instruments are insignificant,
therefore, no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%) increase
and decrease in the functional currency of the respective group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. The analysis excludes the fluctuation between
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars because Hong Kong dollars are
pegged to United States dollars. The rate mentioned above is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% (2020: 5%) strengthening
of the functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currency and a negative number below indicates a decrease in profit
before taxation and vice versa. For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite effect on the results.

2021 2020

TFiERx FiEoT

HK$"000 HK$'000

AEHE RMB 783 (13,702)

I TT SGD (3,995) 140

BT Euro (416) (1,185)
VB Interest rate risk

FEEmMYBARESHEAEBEECNEATE
[

FEFEHIRRTHSFFTENF X B AL
G55~ SRITESR (EE2125) ~ SFERITER »
PIE(EE R EABAETR (HEE29) SERIT M EME R
(F¥=E30) BENREREN AR o

AEEREFEB BRI ELBE IR FE
R - A ERERRIRZRBERERE - W
VEREFE—SEMZERR

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities
at fixed interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate
loan receivable, bank balances and deposits at prevailing market deposit rates
(notes 21 and 25), variable-rate bank loans, import and other loans (note 29),
and bank and other loans (note 30).

The Group entered into interest rate swaps to mitigate part of the exposure to

interest rate risk, if necessary. In addition, the management will monitor the
situation and consider further hedging such exposure should the need arises.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
35. EMITR =)

=hEREEEEREEER @)

MR (&)

FIFE Bz (1)
AEBCRERENXARFEEFNREELAER
EERITERCEBIRITRIZERS ~ FINERIT
REFREIREBIFER LS - SBERR B
RETBRITERCEPPRERE - EAEECE
BRITAEAFTE S A X B B A EK -

THIGURED T T SRS B RET SIRTE
FIEEE R EMER  MIRT &E{ﬁl’ﬁ N2
MEREBAELEMEE - ZOMHREZN|REH
Xﬂi UESR T ERDHARERE - 502 (2020
1 50EF) LR THARAEREREFERE
BRI E R EHRRESR SR -

BREDT

MBI ESR ~ RITER  HEEEREMERR
SRATIEFRAIE LA T B50E 2 (20204F : 50
H2h) > MATEEME SR RE  BIAREER
mau,m% YR K8 04919,012,00058 7T (2020
R HEH017,414,00087T) -

R ER R

AEETRAZREEREN EhlkAES LI

J:FEH&ZK B MAERRR - REEHEE—/)
AEREEER ST FTEREEH MPLE

'u%*e
AR

BRED T
TR ED T s S R 2 R E R A

HIZAFEFTAEBRN EHRERENER L
/ TFE5%(20204F 1 5% ) » AEEE BB AT A
0, J8A*373,00057T (20204 : FHIT) ©

HIZATET A2 ERISHIFE TR AE S
BB EF TRE5%( 20204F 1 5% ) » & HEH
(B 42 N Fi4> 3,003,000 7T ( 20204F © 1
0, EiA>2,627,00055T) ©
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank Offered Rate
or Prime Rate arising from the Group’s bank borrowings. The management
considers the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank balances to interest rate
risk is not significant as interest bearing bank balances are within short maturity
period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable-rate loan receivable, bank loans, import and other
loans, and bank and other loans. The analysis is prepared assuming financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

If the interest rate on loan receivable, bank loans, import and other loans and
bank and other loans had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would decrease/increase by approximately HK$19,012,000 (2020:
decrease/increase by HK$17,414,000).

Other price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to equity price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities and unlisted equity securities. The Group has a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the price of the listed equity investments at FVTPL had been 5% (2020: 5%)
higher/lower, the Group’s profit before taxation would increase/decrease by
HK$373,000 (2020: nil).

If the price of the unlisted equity securities at FVOCI had been 5% (2020: 5%)
higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$3,003,000 (2020: increase/decrease by HK$2,627,000).
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the amount
of financial guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 39. Except the
loan receivable pledged by certain interest in the subsidiary (note 21), the Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets and financial guarantee contracts.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the Company have
delegated the management to be responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit rating system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and rating
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or
based on a collective basis.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk over trade
receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers and
spread across diverse industries.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies internal
credit rating for its customers. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on
a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Credit-impaired
debtors with gross carrying amount of trade debt of HK$12,461,000 (2020:
HK$13,000,000) as at 31 March 2021 were assessed individually. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer base.

BE202153A831HLLEFE : For the year ended 31 March 2021:
FEU

S5kieg EiREEE hiLt] WS
Gross trade Range of E81EX Trade
MBS ERER Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL  receivables
TFiET TFiERT TFiERT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
I E AR Very low risk* 686,581  0.01%-0.29% 842 685,739
ERER Low risk 122,170 0.30%-1.00% 930 121,240
— AR Average risk 353,939 1.01%-3.50% 11,735 342,204
hERLR Moderate risk 30,855  3.51%-50.0% 2,257 28,598
1,193,545 15,764 1,177,781

*  NAFE29,833,0000 T2 FEMEHE -

*  Excluded bills receivables amounting to HK$29,833,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

ZEIRBM @

Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

35. EMTH =

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

SREMEEBREREER @) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
155/ 7 B it (A1 (42) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
HEE ERELBIENER () Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer (continued)
BZE202043A31HIEFE « For the year ended 31 March 2020:
EieEE EBERXEE TEER FEMETR
Gross trade Range of FEBK Trade
NEMSEFTAR Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL receivables
FHET FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRERR* Very low risk* 606,860  0.01%-0.29% 667 606,193
gy Low risk 78,936 0.30%-1.00% 651 78,285
—REE B Average risk 75,743 1.01%-3.50% 2,251 73,492
hERLR Moderate risk 38,558  3.51%-50.0% 9,143 29,415
800,097 12,712 787,385

*  NAFE23,681,0005 702 M -
EESarhat: o

BEBERRE, RAHTENRRIFDE
M Bk Ry Reg R Y

o
EER RBUTRNARE B

R RETE R A ER -

M—fEk, BEBARERIABREERE
IR BEEEREEHE -

ThERE BIBAERE MR E R
BMERBEREERRBT]
IR LUSRERE LTt -

Mk, BRBRETEEHREER
@ o

(EETEBBRRDEN BRI IE F A E R #ER
PSR M LHEBNHBLRAHNZD
BRI SHIRIIEERHMEH A - BB BT HERN
B DUERBENS ERBURTEEER R

BRA ©
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*  Excluded bills receivables amounting to HK$23,681,000.

Quality classification definitions:

“Very low risk": The counterparty has a very low risk of default due to
strong financial background and a prompt payment
pattern.

“Low risk”: The counterparty has a low risk of default with strong
financial background but occasionally repays after due
dates.

“Average risk": Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle
in full.

“Moderate risk”:  There have been significant increases in credit risk

since initial recognition through information developed
internally or external resources.

“High risk": There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

2 HATEEA
2 HITEEA {EEIBX
{EHIEX (HIREE
(BIERREE) iR{E)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- BET
impaired) impaired) Total
T FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7201944818 As at 1 April 2019 14,072 10,152 24,224
SRR Currency realignment (710) (102) (812)
FREBEZ Net impairment loss (reversed)

([E188) e recognised (622) 7,342 6,720
FHEHoRAREIRIA Amounts written off as uncollectible (28) (4,392) (4,420)
F202093A31H K As at 31 March 2020 and

20204F481H as at 1 April 2020 12,712 13,000 25,712
=gk Currency realignment 1,006 (270) 736
TFREEE R Net impairment loss recognised 2,046 589 2,635
FHEH AR BE O WERIE Amounts written off as uncollectible - (2,605) (2,605)
720214E3H31H As at 31 March 2021 15,764 10,714 26,478

HEENBARNEBARNNREY BN - HEER
LI S FIER TR (AMEB ABUEBREA
WAL » AEBEGMIEERER - 12202143
A3AEE CHEFEREZEBRETRES
2,605,00057T (20204F © 4,392,0007T) °

ERERNRBNAREERAN  E2ERE
BAEBWEINZENEBRARIN—F - WE
RABRIT I INRETARSE AT - SR AEE2021
F3A31HM2020463A31HIELEE - KEER
FPEBRERNAEEERRARERK -

IR B ENIRIE

EHEREEB AN BT SMELNRCEU
FEWEFERRRVATE - (A5t EERERMIE
BB BN EETIRAER - BiE20214F3H31H
F2020F3H31HIEFE - ERERAAEEF
MBEURBEMNTASEERARER - FIRAE
IR BE M

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. During the year 31 March 2021, credit-impaired
debtors with gross carrying amount of trade debt of HK$2,605,000 (2020:
HK$4,392,000) was written off.

Bills receivables

In determining the ECL for bills receivables, the management has considered
the bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less than one year
and have been individually assessed based on external rating of relevant banks,
and concluded that for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the credit
inherent in the Group’s outstanding bills receivables is insignificant.

Non-current receivables

The management estimates the estimated loss rates of loan receivable and the
early relocation subsidy based on financial background and historical payments
records of the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged to the
loan receivable. For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the management
considers that the ECL of the Group’s non-current receivables is insignificant and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
ZEIRBM @

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables, non-current rental deposits and dividend receivable

In determining the ECL for other receivables, non-current rental deposits and
dividend receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$184,984,000 (2020:
HK$231,043,000), the management has made periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of these balances based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also forward-looking information, as appropriate. The
management has considered the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with relevant counterparties, and concluded the credit risk inherent
in these amounts is insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Amounts due from associates

As at 31 March 2020 and 2021, for purpose of impairment assessment, the
amounts due from associates are considered to have low credit risk as there has
been no significant increase in the risk of default on the receivables since initial
recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment assessment for the
asset, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL.

In determining the ECL, management has taken into account the financial
position of the associates, adjusted for factors that are specific to the associate
and general economic conditions of the industry in which the associates
operate, in estimating the probability of default as well as the loss upon
default. Management determines the amounts due from associates is subject to
immaterial credit loss and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed with various banks with good credit ratings
and there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Financial guarantee contracts
For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount represents the
maximum amount the Group has guaranteed under the respective contracts.

The Group is also exposed to the credit risk in respect of guarantees given
to banks relating to banking facilities utilised by associates (note 39). The
management periodically reviews financial position of the associates and
considers that the associates has strong financial position and the Group has
adequate monitoring procedures to reduce the credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its operations by using a combination of bank and other
loans and equity. Adequate lines of credit are maintained to ensure necessary
liquidity is available when required. The management monitors the liquidity
position of the Group on a periodical basis to ensure the availability of sufficient
liquid funds to meet all obligations. With reference to the existing unutilised
facilities of approximately HK$1,542 million as at 31 March 2021 and newly
obtained facilities up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue and after taking into account of any possible disposal
of investments and re-financing arrangements, the directors of the Company
consider the source of liquidity and capital for the daily operation are sufficient.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is

derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

RIS
#ER
ZIRH{E
BMEFag 7] Carrying
g7 —FR ZEE Raies amount at
Weighted  On demand hER RENE Total the end of
average or within Within More than  undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate 1year 2-5 years 5 years cash flows period
FEn TR TR TR TR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1202153R31H As at 31 March 2021
FETERIE Creditors 1,559,358 - - 1,559,358 1,559,358
BATER  BEEEREMET  Bank loans, import and other loans
(FHFIX) (variable rates) 282 2,738,275 - - 2,738,275 2,702,597
BHER(RE) Short-term loan (interest free) - 8,107 - - 8,107 8,107
BOIREMED (FEFX) Bank and other loans (variable rates) 277 - 1,153,168 - 1,153,168 1,047,933
HEEE Lease liabilities 461 84,157 162,185 86,025 332,367 287,924
UBERAD () Financial guarantee contracts (note) 16,377 - - 16,377 -
4,406,274 1,315,353 86,025 5,807,652 5,605,919
TEIE-358 Derivatives - net settlement
INEEEAN Foreign currency forward contracts 5,979 - - 5,979 5,979
GilEeEiEr Interest rate swap contracts 843 - - 843 843
HREHEH Forward commodity contracts 300 - - 300 300
71122 - - 1,122 1,122
1202053A31H As at 31 March 2020
FENRIE Creditors - 963,808 - - 963,808 963,808
STER  BEEEREMER  Bank loans, import and other loans
(FFIX) (variable rates) 382 3,208,983 - - 3,208,983 3,087,259
BAREMES (FEFE) Bank and other loans (variable rates) 368 - 364,800 - 364,800 349,644
HE&E Lease liabilities 44 66,985 99,300 938 167,223 156,371
UBERAD () Financial quarantee contracts (note) - 16,335 - - 16,335 -
425,111 464,100 938 4721149 4,557,082
TETIE-3E58 Derivatives - net settlement
INEEEAN Foreign currency forward contracts 2,594 - - 2,594 2,594
FlzEEAN Interest rate swap contracts 3,927 - - 3,927 3,927
BRERaN Forward commodity contracts 3 - - 3 3
6,554 - - 6,554 6,554

et - DA B IER A NOFRBREA KRB AW EREE
RBEERTHEHSATMRERAREB 2
BRIRCERANEER - RREHEER  A5H
BRRR A REFRBER YN HEAZA -
PR E IR AT B RBURNE 5 BB R B
BEYGIREZ EERAMREERRE AL

o

BFRE + T EIRIR T A AR -

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty which suffers credit losses on the financial receivables and claims under
the guarantee.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are subject

to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of
various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are

[EXEESTYSENN 6=k determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
EENFAER TURZBARESE
SHEE/ DFERE /HERIR BARE RFEZEE
EHEE DTEER TEGABRIER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ AFE Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) to fair value
2021 2020
TR TH
HK$'000  HK$'000
1. DERIATEHARENS o BABFNATENRAERENS (X5  TER Em
RATEN FikAES BARER) BRERIREN(L -
Listed equity securities classified as - 5882 Level 1 The fair value of the equity securities is N/A N/A
equity instruments at FVTOC estimated by the price quotation available
on the Emerging Market Board in Taiwan,
which does not trade actively.
2 DERMUATESAER 4 BABFNATENRXEROESRS  TER TER
BATEN EhRAES FRBERREME
Listed equity securities classified as 7455 - Level 1 The fair value of the equity securities is N/A N/A
equity instruments at FVTPL estimated by the price quotation available
on the New York Stock Exchange in
United States.
3. ABRITESRTEMMNE & 8E EIR EFRENE i TEA
ERAN
RRESRENENPAEELTRAE
R (R BRN RSB EENES
BEMG) RAfRHES  DERRg
R EERRE ERE R -
Foreign currency forward contracts Liabilities Liabilities ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative financial 5,979 2,5%
instruments Future cash flows are estimated based on

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021

closing forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rate at

the end of the reporting period) and
contracted forward rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

EENTARE FAREEARRE

EREE/ ATEHE/ERIR BANE DTEZRE
SMERE ATEER FTEGRABRIER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ ATE Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) to fair value
2021 2020
TEn T
HK$000 HK$'000
4 HERTESBIEMIE af BE 2R FRADN - TER TER
=Han (R
&:hE) RERSRDENEENE (RFEHR 2
TREBERHREL) RETHHE
REREREER CH AP EAE
B ERER (MER)) et -
Interest rate swap contracts Liabilities Liabilities ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative 843 (under
financial instruments hedge Future cash flows are estimated based on
accounting) forward interest rates (from observable
3,927 yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at an applicable discount
rate taking into account the credit risk of
the counter-parties and of the Group as
appropriate.
5. AEANTESRTENHRES af BE 2R BRRER - TER TER
Gl
RERERENRBENEER (HFEHR
L EERRRESEER) MANES
ER LRRERZHFEEARME
REETE -
Forward commodity contracts Liabilities Liabilities ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative financial 300 33
instruments Future cash flows are estimated based on

closing price (from observable forward
price of related metals at the end of the
reporting period) and contracted forward
price, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR

135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

ZEIRBM @

Year ended 31 March 2021
35. EMITR =)

BE2021F38318LELEE
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EMTEATEE @) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
RN FEFEZFEEZZHNEERZME Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
BZAFE @) measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)
TABSEAREE
F - NEEHEEERER EENFAESR DFEZER
SHEE ATEER IEGAREZER BABE Relationship of
Financial assets/ AEE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ Significant unobservable - unobservable input(s) to
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) fair value
2021 2020
TEn  TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000
6 DATEAEMRENES 2= BEiE - BEARNER - 22021 SEHANTEERES
BATR £38310  B8THK  ATERES
ERARNATEERERLEMARE HER  REMSEE
NIERERET - BRATDNTEER FEHBEE - Ltk
BEIEBRERLT N ERARME % R ALt ERIR S (6
ERNATEETER NBERE  BER
2R BRS)
SR OARES
B BINEE (BE
457,038/ 258,372
F7T) < (20204
THAKIBAUAREZ
59,188 AR (HER
41,9988 TT264,710/8
7))
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 48,704 44824 level3 Asset-based approach. Price per square meter. The higher the price per
Using market direct square meter, the higher
The fair value of the target company was comparable and taking the fair value.
determined by the asset-based approach into account of location
using the adjusted net asset value. Net and other individual
asset value of the target company was factors such as size,
adjusted through fair value adjustments building facilities,
held by the target company primarily by levels, age of building,
the direct comparison approach. etc., which is ranged
from RMB48,109 to
RMB49,234 (equivalent
to HK$57,038 to
HK$58,372 (2020:
RMB38,414 to
RMB59,188 (equivalent
to HK$41,998 to
HK$64,710)) per square
meter as at 31 March
2021.
7. DATES A2 2= i ° RTMSRBILTIRE  RETmERBEHTNES
ZIRATR EAELBARMLE . ATERGE -
REMSE  BRECBEBREEEL
MBS AR RRLE (© BREEES  ATEIE
EEEERGAS 308  EMNR me
ERMENE  PXBERAIBRAS
ARERMER LR - HEE) Bl
BEERE  URRZTERENMT
DlFAE -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 8,109 3815 Level3 Market approach. The discount of lack of The higher the discount of
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The market approach was used to
determine the valuation by the average
estimated values using the following
multiples: enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation ratio, enterprise value to
earnings before interest, taxes ratio
and price to earning ratio of selected
comparable listed companies in a similar
business and similar business model and
adjusted for the lack of marketability.

marketability and applied
multiples.

lack of marketability, the
lower the fair value.

The higher the applied

multiples, the higher the
fair value.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

TARSEAREE
EHEE/ NEEHE /ERIER EENFAESR DFEZER
SMERE ATEER IERAREZER BABE Relationship of
Financial assets/ AEE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ Significant unobservable - unobservable input(s) to
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) fair value
2021 2020
TEn T
HK$'000  HK$'000
8. DIATEFALMZENRGE 2= AftERER ML « BRTMARBETIRE  RIhSRBEHTNES
BATR EABHRARMNEE . ATERME -
REERL  BRERARRRZTER
BUMTURRKAIEREETAR BBLENE  ATEIE
NANATE - RRAMSE - BERE Be
BRATRENAETARNATEN
REERAINTERE - TARAT
BERETBXBREHREIENA
BN AR EELE (P EER
BELE - PREBESKIRA SR
BRMGLE) EEhE  ARHT S
B FLEEE -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 3,252 3,892 Level3 Combination of asset-based approach and ~ The discount of lack of The higher the discount of

marketability and applied
multiples.

market approach.

The fair value of the target company was
determined by the asset-based approach
using the adjusted net asset value with
adjustments for the lack of marketability.
Net asset value of the target company was
adjusted through fair value adjustments
of each sub-entity held by the target
company primarily by the market
approach using enterprise value to sales
ratio or enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes ratio of selected
comparable listed companies in a similar
business and similar business model and
adjusted for the lack of marketability.
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lack of marketability, the
lower the fair value.

The higher the applied
multiples, the higher the
fair value.
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Year ended 31 March 2021 & ZE20214F3H31H
35. EMITR =)

IEFE
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EMITEAFEEHE &) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

EHEEFIBAFEEE Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets
UAFEEEA
Hith2muis
ZBETHE
Equity instruments
at FVTOCI
FHTT
HK$'000
2019F481H At 1 April 2019 65,886
ERE Currency realignment (3,590)
FFAEMEERESCBEL Fair value loss in OCl (9,765)
7R202093H31H At 31 March 2020 52,531
=g ke Currency realignment 3,784
T A2 EWaR 2 Wt Fair value gain in OCI 3,750
20214%E3H831H At 31 March 2021 60,065

EHib2mKE A EIEEN AR E R D E R
NFEFAZERFEAT B2 IE EHRAE
%5882 /A (AW 53,750,000 7T ( 20204F :
9,765,000 T K) » BRAWSRINERERM
RERRIE -

REZE2021F 420203831 HEERE » AFE
Bk EEeE -

AEEETSRTARUATVEFFEFVEREM
% - BEHEATRTERRGEENGBMAERML
TEMABIR -

BT ATE - AEEFATSAHRER TS
AER - BRABIRNE2RNBAZIE - A%
EEFEeERINSEEMETRRER - EHE
HAERINESEEMI LABMER ELER
BEEEHNESREHEGR MRS BULE

AEFGF A B R EETNFECHEER
EHEECATFE

Hibt&REEMSRE ENATETIREFEREL
BREREMMN—RABEBEENEE - A
AEERAZTEHEEN SR A BELICHEK
RIVIRZ BRIEME SAF(EARAY -
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Included in OCl is an amount of HK$3,750,000 gain (2020: HK$9,765,000 loss)
relating to unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI
reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve.

There is no transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The management of the Company is responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management
reports the valuation to the directors of the Company regularly to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with general accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis. The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of these financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate their fair values.



36. iB{KiEFIEHE

AEERBEEBREELABES ORI Y —HR
HIEATESFE (TRESETE) - REBARESE
2 EFNESHAFLHNR  REEHRARE
BREEANEZSY%  FHERERFBHTCER
BEEHANE LRA30,000%7T » 2014468
BB - thoh - BEREERBITAE B

=
K °

PBTESEEME - REFHAFTERBIMEHTR
H2YRBENES - MBARHREENEMRE
BREEAEANSRRII BBEGEE -

FEFRF2EAEEN TR EE BT
B zREEERRE - AEEESANEAE
THMETERLFERET . EREHBUEA
EAREERRAEIRRRE TZRNENEE -
B ARt AEENERS T o BERHR
FERBRRANGEEMEE -

LESh - RATED N EE R RELINZ BN
AR ZEMBEMBEERERILPRAES
&) ZEFE RN EMREE -

REZE2021F3A31HIEFE  AREXMH
46,433,000787T ( 20204F :57,363,000/87T) 2 1R
RIBFIMER -

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in a mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Under the MPF scheme, both the employer and its employees
are required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
effective from June 2014 for the MPF scheme. In addition, the employer and its
employees may make voluntary contributions at their discretions.

For the MPF scheme, all mandatory contributions made by the employers are
fully vested with the employees, while any unvested benefits of employees
arising from voluntary contributions would be forfeited and reverted to the
employers.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of the respective
municipal government in various places in the PRC where the Group operates.
The Group makes monthly contributions calculated as a percentage of the
monthly payroll costs and the respective municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of
the Group. The Group has no other obligations for the payment of pension and
other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the above contribution
payments.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company outside Hong Kong and the
PRC participate in central provident fund schemes established by the relevant
authority in their respective countries which are defined contribution plans.

The Group contributed an aggregate amount of HK$46,433,000 (2020:

HK$57,363,000) to the above retirement benefit schemes during the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
37. MEEEZEEHIRR

BE2021F38318LELEE
37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

FEBEREEL CBEREFBEIRAT
BERENFREED - MEEENEEAE
BERIARRESRANAERGERSRERSD
BRMEMEL ZRESRNER -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

SBITEN
BEEER
HfthfER & 7S RS
$RITRRELft EFR (BIEEEM (BIEEER
Bank loans, EftzA) Eftsm)
HE import and Interest Dividend
=1 other loans payable payable
Lease and bank and (included in (included in &k
liabilities other loans  other payables) other payables) Total
FET BT FAT THT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R20195471H At 1 April 2019 122,561 3,407,436 17,464 1,678 3,549,139
RERSNRE Financing cash flows (69,010) 142,355 (163,898) (70,763) (161,316)
HHE HERR New lease entered/lease modified 100,971 - - - 100,971
BERE Currency realignment (4,589) (125,863) (2,097) - (132,549)
EREE Dividend declared - - - 71,603 71,603
HBBA Finance costs 6,438 - 174,383 - 180,821
PIER—NUFEE Front-end fee amortisation of
pd i bank loans - 12,975 (12,975) - -
2020438316 At 31 March 2020 156,371 3,436,903 12,877 2,518 3,608,669
RERSHE Financing cash flows (81,798) 220,530 (129,189) (86,768) (77,225)
HeRs Rent concession (4,406) - - - (4,406)
FHE HERE New lease entered/lease modified 194,030 - - - 194,030
B Currency realignment 12,227 92,825 4,617 - 109,669
SRKE Dividend declared - - - 85,938 85,938
BIRERA Finance costs 11,500 - 125,482 - 136,982
BITER—AUFEE Front-end fee amortisation of
pd; ! bank loans - 8,379 (8,379) - -
7#202143A31H At 31 March 2021 287,924 3,758,637 5,408 1,688 4,053,657

38. ERFHRERS

REZE2021FE3831HIEEE  AEERER
HERE BMELBRERBIA AR —
FEA+F(2020F | —FEZEXF) NWHHEER
B o MIRERIIAE - AEERESR 194,535,000
7t (20204F : 137,886,000 7T) FIfE FEE E M
194,030,0003# 7T ( 20204F : 100,971,000 7T)

HEER(E -
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38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group entered into new lease
arrangements for the use of leasehold buildings, machinery and equipment
and motor vehicles for 1 year to 10 years (2020: 1 year to 6 years). On
the lease commencement, the Group recognised HK$194,535,000 (2020:
HK$137,886,000) of right-of-use asset and HK$194,030,000 (2020:

HK$100,971,000) lease liabilities.



39.

40.

41.

HARE

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2021 2020
FiET Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEE ARRITERIER Guarantees given to banks in respect of banking
facilities to associates 16,377 16,335
Hi Others 12,476 11,614
ik 40. COMMITMENTS
2021 2020
TFERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EENEREFEUEREBRE Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
BRBEYE  BMERREZ property, plant and equipment contracted for
BRI but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 19,258 14,404

EBxRHES

{ERLEE

FR - LEYZEBESUAS13,000/5T( 20204

802,000#7T)

HEZREBUTHET

41. OPERATING LEASE

As lessor

during the year was HK$813,000 (2020: HK$802,000).

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Rental income from investment properties classified as held for sale earned

2021 2020

TiEx FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FER Within one year 844 778
F_ERA In the second year 844 778
F=FER In the third year 844 778
FENER In the fourth year 246 778
FHER In the fifth year - 227
2,778 3,339
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Year ended 31 March 2021
42. B3RS ek

BE2021F38318LELEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

REERAEE CBENTETUTERRS ¢ The Group entered into the following significant transactions with its associates
of the Group:
2021 2020
Fi&rx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERHZSAT Purchases from associates 470,209 420,585
HETH S AT Sales to associates 140,134 132,686
BEMEARCEBERA Management fee income received from

associates 3,067 1,832

NIEPEER  REBRANTHEBENTH At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following balances with

BUNERER DI PR R R B L fth FE W IR TE M FaAY
MR REMRBEEBERN -

its associates included under trade and other receivables and prepayments and
creditors and accrued charges:

2021 2020

TFERT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

YN = 6 Trade receivables due from associates 61,283 77,254

Efhpeigses AR IE Other receivables due from associates 8,969 7,566

ENEBEARER Trade payables due to associates 102,532 73,645

Hib N BE /AR 2 RIE Other payables due to associates 995 1,116
FE WUk N R ELA SR IE AN FE AT B A R LA R IE Other receivables due from associates and other payables due to associates are

RIFBIME ~ B - MERMNBEREREER - non-trade nature, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

THE AR RITERIERSIFMIEE39 © Guarantees given to banks in respect of banking facilities to associates is

FTEEHEEREANRESE  AFEFMFD
NGRS

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021

disclosed in note 39.

The key management personnel includes solely the directors of the Company
and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 9.



43. EATZEIFERRER 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

ANEFR20214E K% 202043 A 31 H 2 & a0 The financial information of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 as
I follows:
2021 2020
TFERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JERENEE Non-current assets
L ER IS Property, plant and equipment 3,856 3,758
FREEE Right-of-use assets 27,181 37,284
Fra B AR L Interests in subsidiaries 1,434,741 1,434,741
EREIEE Non-current deposits 5,008 4,971
1,470,786 1,480,754
mENEE Current assets
Hfth R TE R T RIE Other receivables and prepayments 6,811 7,321
MEARIRER Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,235 876
RITHEG ~ B RERS Bank balances, deposits and cash 12,836 46,715
21,882 54,912
nBgafE Current liabilities
EIRIBENRER Creditors and accrued charges 55,152 16,059
HEaE Lease liabilities 11,765 9,889
R BARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 302 1,574
RITER Bank loans 336,323 281,564
403,542 309,086
mENBERE Net current liabilities (381,660) (254,174)
HEERERESEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,089,126 1,226,580
FEREEE Non-current liabilities
AT REMER Bank and other loans 180,641 272,941
HEE&E Lease liabilities 16,225 27,792
196,866 300,733
BERE Net assets 892,260 925,847
BEXRfElE Capital and reserves
A (BIsE33) Share capital (note 33) 921,014 921,014
fte (BT Reserves (note) (28,754) 4,833
s Total equity 892,260 925,847
R2021FE6B28HAESHMABE  WHMUTES Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2021
K&ESR: and are signed on its behalf by:
FEhE R Victor LO Chung Wing Brian LI Yiu Cheung
2 ZF Director Director
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Year ended 31 March 2021
43. ZNF)ZHFBRRE =)

BE2021F38318LELEE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

PRE - Note:
RE &R
=8 (E518)
Dividend Retained a8t
reserve profits (loss) Total
FHBT FBT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7201948 1H At 1 April 2019 19,617 442 20,059
2EHA Profit for the year - 20,085 20,085
EIRER S Dividend paid
—2019FRHKE — 2019 final dividend (19,617) - (19,617)
—20205FFRHAE S — 2020 interim dividend - (15,694) (15,694)
72020938 31H At 31 March 2020 - 4,833 4,833
2B Loss for the year - (33,587) (33,587)
72021F3H31H At 31 March 2021 - (28,754) (28,754)
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44. TEMBLE

(a) FHEARINI—RREH

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

AANTIR20214E K 202093831 B TEK

(a) General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 and 2020

BARFENT are as follows:
FREBERTREZ
i3I/ &Mt S BT HEMERAE BENERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
REABRE incorporation/ issued share/  interest attributable ~ EE%7
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
75
Electronics division
EREXARAR BE HK$496,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EKIRE
Bowden Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
CIH Limited Hn S$1,473,666 85.55% 85.55% ERE
Singapore Investment holding
Famingo Pte Ltd. % $$2 85.55% 85.55% EKEE
Singapore Investment holding
GP Acoustics Limited REHRRES US$57,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EKIERE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
GP Acoustics (HK) Limited B HK$20,000,000 85.55% 85.55% H#HE  FERDHBERK
Hong Kong BYEM
Marketing, retailing and
distribution of acoustic and
electronic products
GP Acoustics International Limited & HK$148,000,000 85.55% 85.55% H#HE  FERDEBERRK
Hong Kong BYEM
Marketing, retailing and
distribution of acoustic and
electronic products
GP Acoustics (Middle East) frE g United Arab Emirates - 85.55% HENIMEEEBRREFER
DWC-LLC United Arab Emirates Dirham ("AED") Marketing and distribution
300,000 of acoustic and electronic
products
RESLEEERAT BE NT$1,500,000 85.55% 85.55% HEERDHSGERBNETER
GP Acoustics (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Marketing and distribution
of acoustics and electronic
products
GP Acoustics (UK) Limited W £12,500,000 85.55% 85.55% RIS AT HER
United Kingdom HEBBELETER
Investment holding, design,
marketing and trading of
acoustic and electronic
products
GP Electronics and Acoustics Co., Ltd. Z=E] TBH220,000,000 43.63% 4363% ERGERNETER
Thailand Manufacturing of acoustic and
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ZEREMETI@®

Year ended 31 March 2021  E(ZE2021FE3831HLEFE

4. TEMBLE @)

(a) MBATM—MIRER =)

44, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

FRERGRITREZ
i3 EEMB T BT /EEMERAE BRERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
REAERE incorporation/ issued share/  interest attributable ~ FEE7
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
7=
Electronics division (continued)
2MET (FE) BRAT B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% HERRIRE
GP Electronics (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
SIET (BE)BRAT B HK$50,000,000 85.55% 85.55% HERHEEEEMR
GP Electronics (HK) Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading of audio
products
BmEIlETERAR g HK$170,000,000 85.55% 8555% EHRGERNBTEMR
GP Electronics (Huizhou) PRC Manufacturing of acoustic and
Co., Ltd." electronic products
GP Global Marketing Corporation ~ FIE# S US$1,501,060 85.55% 85.55% {FHRIE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
GP Global Marketing Limited b HK$23,500,000 85.55% 85.55% mHHE
Hong Kong Marketing
GPT~ H s $$286,306,915 85.55% 85.55% KA
GP Ind® Singapore Investment holding
S TEEFERAT 0 HK$21,000,000 85.55% 85.55% IEENHESETHHR
GP Industries Marketing Ltd Hong Kong BAREEEER
Marketing and trading of quality
parts and components and
hygienic and health care
products
SHETEFERAT B HK$1,000,000 85.55% 85.55% RS
GPE International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
BEMSILBRRBEERAR e US$4,093,000 85.55% 85.55% HERAERMR  BEEN
Huizhou GP Wiring Technology Ltd."  PRC ERHA
Manufacturing of automotive
wire harness, transformers and
switching mode power supply
KEF Celestion Corporation HEHE US$400,000 85.55% 85.55% HAEMEIE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
KEF Japan, Inc. Ax JPY50,000,000  85.55%  85.55% SHEEEES
Japan Trading of acoustic products

146 | Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



44. FEMBAE =) 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) MEBATM—MRER = (a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
FREELRITREZ
RE3LEEMRt TS BT /MR AE BHERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
REAERE incorporation/ issued share/  interest attributable ~ FEE
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
Zita
Batteries division
EalIE=y I $$251,312,000 85.55% 85.55% HERRIRE
GP Batteries Singapore Investment holding
REBHENERAR FE HK$109,000,000 85.55% 8555% ERBM
Dongguan Chao Ba Batteries PRC Manufacturing of batteries
Co Ltd"
GP Batteries (Americas) Inc. Ed=] US$105,800 85.55% 85.55% HERHESEM
United States of America Marketing and trading in
batteries
SIBCIE (BN BRAT HEl US$4,400,000 85.55% 85.55% ERBH
GP Batteries (China) Limited" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd BXRAS RM70,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EHEM
Malaysia Manufacturing of batteries
& LEHERAR HE HK$110,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EHBM
GP Batteries (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (U.K.) Limited HE £2,191,011 85.55% 85.55% HERHESEM
United Kingdom Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Batteries (Vietnam) Limited i) VND275,624,000,000 81.28% 81.28% EHBM
Liability Company Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
BHREOERAT B HK$2 85.55% 8555% HENHEESH
GP Battery Marketing (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Korea) Limited 5% 150,000,000 85.55% 76.99% HERHESEH
South Korea Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Malaysia) Sdn B2k Figa RM100,000 85.55% 85.55% MHENMHESM
Bhd Malaysia Marketing and trading in
batteries
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ZEREMETI@®

Year ended 31 March 2021 & ZE2021F3A31HLEEE
44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

44. TEMBLE @)

(a) MBATM—MRER =)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

FRERGRITREZ
AV £ Y] BT RMiRAE BRERE
Place of Nominal value Effective equity
REAERE incorporation/ of issued share/  interest attributable ~ FEEFH
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
Zita )
Batteries division (continued)
GP Battery Marketing (Singapore) N $$800,000 85.55% 85.55% HERIHESEH
Pte Ltd Singapore Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery (Poland) Sp. z.0.0. i PLN26,041,500 85.55% 85.55% HEEREESH
Poland Marketing and trading in
batteries
SIENTIE (BE)BRAT B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% HRARE
GP Battery Technology (HK) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
GPIEIBARAR e HK$120,000,000 85.55% 85.55% HENMHESH
GPI International Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading in
batteries
GPPD Pte. Ltd. HTINS USD15,000,000 59.88% 59.88% RHEE
Singapore Investment holding
GPPD Energy Company Limited Hirg UsD 15,000,073 59.88% 50.88% EHKHESHM
Vietnam Manufacturing and trading of
batteries
BIBBEEMERATC e RMB32,067,000 76.99% 76.99% EENHESH
Huizhou Chao Ba Batteries Co Ltd® PRC Marketing and trading in
batteries
BENHRBHERAR I US$9,400,000 85.55% 8555% EHBM
Huizhou Modern Battery Limited" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
ERERBNERAT® Bl RMB30,000,000 61.60% 61.60% EHEM
Ningbo Fubang Battery Co Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
BREFERERARC I US$24,600,000 76.99% 76.99% ERBM
Ningbo GP Energy Co., Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
FIE (PE) BRAR B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% #RILE
Sylva Industries (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
FEBXERAT B HK$1,200,000 85.55% 85.55% EHBM
Sylva Industries Limited Hong Kong Manufacturing of batteries
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44. FEMBAE =) 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) MEBAIM—MRER = (a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
FREELRITREZ
AT £33 Y BT RmiRAE BHERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
REAERE incorporation/ issued share/  interest attributable ~ FEE
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
a2
Batteries division (continued)
GP Technology & Innovation Limited & HK$38,441,393 85.55% 85.55% FrAAImEE
(formerly known as Vectrix Hong Kong Holding of intellectual properties

International Limited)

BB IEARAT B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% IERRIRE RIRIEMIRSIR
Whitehill Electrochemical Hong Kong Investment holding and provision
Company Limited of logistic support
TR (%) BHERAR I Us$35,000,000 59.88% 59.88% EHEBM
Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co. Ltd®  PRC Manufacturing of batteries
AtRE
Other investments
Makinen Properties Limited® KBHBEREE US$1 100% 100% #EIHEE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
°  WHEARRNRPBIEF TEMEILZRIEE @  These companies are established as sino-foreign joint ventures registered under
- the PRC law.
b REARRPPBIEG R 2N E " These companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprises registered
Bl under the PRC law.
& BWEARARATEERE - TEEMKEA A These companies are directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are
ARANARBERE - indirectly held by the Company.
FRISFRB A E B ST AR AR - AA Except for the companies established in the PRC with registered capital, the
AMFEUEABMBITZRMIEL B classes of shares held by the Company in the above companies are ordinary
s shares issued by these companies.
ERBINAABZWBAR » EFRAZE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
NRAFBEFERFEZEENERAERE of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or constituted
E—EEEHNN - EFRREIIEMIEA a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
A FH B ERRRER subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

FREWES - ERFEE A FRFESELLR Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
MBS A TN RAT A BB E S © outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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A=)

el

44. TEMBLE @)

(b) MBABZHEREERES)

()

REZE2021F3831HLIEFE - REBEWE
GP Battery Marketing (Korea) Ltd. 10% = %8
SMEE - R{ER348,00058 7T o (A FEUEE
EAT B 348,000 T BL A TR 2 2 FE 1 i 18
367,000 JT [E 2 Z %8 19,0008 ST H # 1R
EXREERER -

RELZE2021E3A31HIEEE » GPTEM
2EWBAT LBVLFEEMERAR T
- BAEER2,453,00058TTE AR LA o

REE2020F3A31HIEEE GPTHEH
B79.6%MHBARSIISRERERNE
RATIGESEAM  MIEEERKRESZNRS
6,651,000/ (20214F : =HTT) ©

REZE2020F3831HILFE » AEEK
ZIGP T2 5 51% B9 37 B 32 [fY /& /2 = GP
Electronics and Acoustics Company Limited
HIFRFZ IR IR R V3R < & 5827,144,0008 7T
(20214 * FHIT) »

MREE20203831HILEE » AEEE
i & A 1L U4 B GP Battery (Vietnam) Limited
Liability Company £8 #h # %% 13.73% ( 2021
£ R) o MRS - FEEARRE 4,407,000
BTEEEERFETRER (20214 - T8
JT)°

BEEXFEREGNIFZERBR AR ZH
1%
REEFBERFFRERNE2ENBA
Al BEIIEAT

[DAVE: YD ~3
FESEMS
Place of
incorporation and

BE2021F38318LELEE

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Change in ownership in subsidiaries

(9]

ownership interests

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group acquired additional
interest of 10% in GP Battery Marketing (Korea) Ltd. for a consideration of
HK$348,000. As a result of the acquisition, the difference of HK$19,000
between the consideration paid of HK$348,000 and the amount of non-
controlling interests adjusted of HK$367,000 was directly recognised in
capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 Shanghai Biba Batteries Co. Ltd. a
wholly owned subsidiary of GP Ind, was deregistered and the capital reserve
of HK$2,453,000 was transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Gold Peak Industries (Taiwan)
Limited (“GPIT"), a 79.6% owned subsidiary of GP Ind, was deregistered
and paid cash of HK$6,651,000 (2021: nil) to non-controlling shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group received cash
contribution of HK$27,144,000 (2021: nil) from non-controlling
shareholders of GP Electronics and Acoustics Company Limited, a 51%
owned newly formed subsidiary of GP Ind, as a result of capital injection
during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired additional
interest of 13.73% (2021: nil) in GP Battery (Vietnam) Limited Liability
Company through capitalisation. As a result of the acquisition, the amount
of non-controlling interests adjusted of HK$4,407,000 (2021: nil) was
directly recognised in capital reserve.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

IR ERERMN

HRERRRELS

Proportion of

REFIEERED T BEIEE L

MEAREE principal place and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Fign FHAT Fign FHAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GPT R
GP Ind Singapore 14.45% 14.45% 26,269 16,288 359,086 302,629
iR (BR) BERAR FE
Zhongyin (Ningbo)
Battery Co., Ltd. PRC 30.00% 30.00% 56,249 48,532 376,173 348,363
Hith NER @R TER
Others N/A N/A N/A 3,676 5,575 150,134 163,855
86,194 70,395 885,393 814,847
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44. FEMBAE =) 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(0 BEEXFEHIESMIFZEMBATZEF

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

\-1¢)) controlling interests (continued)
GPT¥# GP Ind
2021 2020
Fign FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TENEE Current assets 4,194,720 3,407,898
FRBEE Non-current assets 4,474,816 3,657,507
neas Current liabilities 4,497,738 4,231,972
JEREEaE Non-current liabilities 1,224,692 282,685
JEFER R Non-controlling interests 526,307 512,218
GPIL B AEM 2 Equity attributable to owners of GP Ind 2,420,799 2,038,530
S Revenue 6,706,177 6,051,511
T~ EfhiaF REE Expenses, other gains and losses 6,466,301 5,886,517
2EFRF] Profit for the year 239,876 164,994
EENRAATHEE A& Profit attributable to owners of the Company 153,682 94,599
BB GP T ZEFFIE e 2 it Al Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind 26,269 16,288
BRENEME AR IEZEBER 2T Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
other subsidiaries 59,925 54,107
2EFRF] Profit for the year 239,876 164,994
FENANTHEE A HAih Other comprehensive income attributable
2EW R to owners of the Company 29,773 24,756
BN GP T FIER s Other comprehensive income attributable to
Hith2mEa the non-controlling interests of GP Ind 4,720 3,873
FREBNEMNB AR JEZEEAER 2 HM  Other comprehensive income attributable to
EJE 6 the non-controlling interests of other subsidiaries 9,690 4,249
2EEMPEME Other comprehensive income for the year 44,183 32,878
BERAATFEEACEHENGEZE  Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company 183,455 119,355
RGP I IS 2MEa  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
FELE] non-controlling interests of GP Ind 30,989 20,161
BENEMNB AR TR ER Total comprehensive income attributable to the
2 HWAAERR non-controlling interests of other subsidiaries 69,615 58,356
2 EREW LR Total comprehensive income for the year 284,059 197,872
EFERRER RS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (85,938) (36,292)
REEBEECHESFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 70,097 329,127
KEEBFERZIRES TR Net cash used in investing activities (160,810) (438,626)
RIESEBIEE (FF) RS FE Net cash inflow from (used in) financing activities 112,259 (31,996)
HERA CRH) 38 Net cash inflow (outflow) 21,546 (141,495)

M BERFIBREI I E 5 5 P i8us

Bz GPTEFIRPINEE ©

The details of the financial information were disclosed in GP Ind’s annual

report which is available on the website of the Singapore Stock Exchange.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
44. TEMBAE =)

(o) BREXIFFEFHEDNIFZERBEATZH

B
iR (Eig) EBRAE

BE2021F38318LELEE

44, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

controlling interests (continued)

Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co., Ltd.

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

2021 2020
Figx Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEVEE Current assets 1,406,136 883,017
FRBEE Non-current assets 1,447,249 1,434,313
mEaE Current liabilities 1,598,827 1,153,730
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 641 2,395
FEIE = Non-controlling interests 376,173 348,363
S EMEEE AL ER Equity attributable to owners of GP Batteries 877,744 812,842
e Revenue 2,886,899 2,284,826
T~ EfhinF REE Expenses, other gains and losses 2,699,397 2,123,080
2R A Profit for the year 187,502 161,746
BENARATHEE AR Profit attributable to owners of the Company 112,287 96,853
BRI GP LI FIEp i a2 5 Al Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind 18,966 16,361
HERHIR (2R BRERAR Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
e g Syl Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co., Ltd. 56,249 48,532
2R A Profit for the year 187,502 161,746
BENRAATEE A EM2E Other comprehensive (expense) income
(&) Wiz attributable to owners of the Company (16,880) 22,886
SRBGPT 2 Fi st o HAM2M  Other comprehensive (expense) income
(i) Was attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind (2,851) 3,864
BERTR (k) BNERAT Other comprehensive (expense) income attributable to
IEFER R R B2 () B the non-controlling interests of Zhongyin (Ningbo)
Battery Co., Ltd. (7,125) 11,461
2EHMPE () W Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year (26,856) 38,211
BERAATEEACEHENGEZE  Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company 95,407 119,739
RGP LI ss 2 EUz  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
R non-controlling interests of GP Ind 16,115 20,225
BN IR (B ) SMERAR Total comprehensive income attributable to the
IR R 2 2 AR HR%E non-controlling interests of Zhongyin (Ningbo)
Battery Co., Ltd. 49,124 59,993
2 ERHEWERETR Total comprehensive income for the year 160,646 199,957
EFERRER RS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (85,938) (20,154)
REEBREECIRESFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 64,968 238,897
WEXEBES (BH) 2BEF8E Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 70,715 (162,646)
BEEE (FH) BEECIRS S5 Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities (117,076) 59,298
REMNFE Net cash inflow 18,607 135,549
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45. T EBENE 45. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

AREER2021F 420203831 H 2 EEHEN Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as

BT follows:
FEERGRTRE
BEIL St ZENERE
BEQTRE Place of incorporation/  Effective equity interest ~ TE¥7
Name of associate registration attributable to the Group  Principal activities
2021 2020
EFH
Electronics division
Julong Technology Limited REBEBRES 25.66% 25.66% IERIERE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
BELEBRAT BE 32.62% 32.62% PERRE  EREELER
Linkz Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and manufacturing
of electronic cables and wires
FETERNBRAT =l 17.34% 17.34% F% - RERHEESBRLK
Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan YEEMR
Development, manufacturing and
marketing of acoustic and
audio-visual equipment
EEREBERAT BB 25.66% 2566% EREENCERRES
Wisefull Technology Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and trading of
metallic products
HEREARAT RBERRES 25.66% 25.66% 1ERIEE
Youjia Technology Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Ay
Batteries division
AZ Limited AT 34.22% 34.22% HEENRHESEH
Russia Marketing and trading in batteries
FNEFENERAT B 34.22% 34.22% EHRBM
Changzhou Lithium Batteries Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries
SETXBRAT BB 35.50% 35.50% HEEMEESH
Gold Yi Industries Company Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Germany) ZE 42.77% 42.77% EEFIHESH
GmbH Germany Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Middle East) Limited (FZC) BaBtes 42.77% 42.77% FEEREESH
United Arab Emirates Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Thailand) Co Ltd Z=H 41.92% 41.92% HEENEESH
Thailand Marketing and trading in batteries
GWA Energy, Inc = 35.08% 35.08% HEEMHESH
Taiwan Marketing and trading in batteries
Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company i) 41.92% 41.92% EEEH
Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
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ZEIRBM @

BZE202143A31HILEEE
45. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021
45. TEBENT »)

FEERLHTRE
DAV td s bzl ZENERE
- UNSIE4 Place of incorporation/  Effective equity interest ~ FEEH
Name of associate registration attributable to the Group  Principal activities
2021 2020
Tittaf =)
Batteries division (continued)
A BEEBERAR B 41.92% 2851% HEMEERMER
Lichton International Ltd Hong Kong Marketing and trading in lighting
products
BREREMBRAT B 27.38% 27.38% HEMEESOYR
Ningbo Fengyin Battery Co. Ltd PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
materials
HEARBRRNDERAT BE 25.43% 25.73% EHESHARSHER
STL Technology Co., Ltd Taiwan Manufacturing of battery packs
and products
RINEO T (FE) BRAHF e 36.36% 36.36% EREBM
T.G. Battery Co (China) Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries
RIUEHOIE (B8) ERAT s 42.77% 4277% EREENIREMRIE
T.G. Battery Co (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and provision of

EERBENREERCNERITEERTED -

1

DI EFrAHE R BME AT BARTBERTSE -
FrEME AR EBTEER B ML Ei
73 o L EFBARYRMAEREEAT -

RETEMENRZRE  AhDEHEERIN
KEEER -

FRBINAFEBECHMENT  EFRREHZAE
NABERFENMZFARNERTEAFEZ
EENBUAEEFEE—EEERD - EFR
REIHMBE AR FBURREBREILE

HE20216F3A31HIEFE  FEDBERNA
IRAFRETRITH - ARBITERN  A5H
P EDBER B BRAR IR G #EE
25.43%(20204F : &) -

REFE2020F3831HILEE - AEBERIELST
BENBFEDRERABERARERARET
BRI EAEE LSRR S ATAR L - Eit
REBPAH B DR RN A IRA T AL LL 51 2
SEZ25.73%(20214F 1 &) o

REZE2020F3A31HIEFE - KEBELDIRSRK
814,124,000 JTfE A Hanoi Battery Joint Stock
CompanyfJZaIMERR16.26%( 20214 + &) o

REZE2020F3831ALEE - AEBLUBSA
E2,960,00058 LB A S ZE T 25 RABAIZES
HE#59.84%(20214F + &) -
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logistic support

Significant influence is exercised through representative on board of directors of
all the above associates.

All associates indicated above are indirectly held by the Company. All associates
operate principally in their respective places of incorporation/registration. All of
the above companies are limited liability companies.

The investments in associates are solely for shares of results and no strategic
purpose is involved.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group exercised significant influence and principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, STL Technology Company Limited,
issued new shares to employees. As a result of the share issuance, the
shareholding of the Group is diluted to 25.43% (2020: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, STL Technology Company Limited,
the unlisted associate of the Group, applied for an initial public offering and
successfully listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. As a result of the
listing, the shareholding of the Group is diluted to 25.73% (2021: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired additional interest
of 16.26% in Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company for a cash consideration of
HK$14,124,000 (2021: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired additional interest
of 9.84% in Gold Yi Industries Company Limited for a cash consideration of
HK$2,960,000 (2021: nil).
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COMPARATIVE FIGURES

To conform with current year's presentation, upfront fees paid by the Group
which were directly attributable to bank loans in the prior year has been
reclassified from prepayments to bank and other loans.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 May 2021, GP Ind entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Time Interconnect Investment Limited (the “Purchaser”), which is a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group associates, Linkz Industries Limited, and is a
connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, GP Ind conditionally agreed
to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to buy, the entire issued share
capital of GP Industries Marketing Limited ("GP Marketing”) at the initial
consideration of HK$69,000,000 (subject to adjustment), subject to the terms
and conditions of the sales and purchase agreement. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2021. As at the date
of the authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the transaction
has not yet completed.

SUNTXEBBERAT —FRE_F_-FFR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED

GPIXERATMEHE
SeEeR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BE3A3HILFE Year ended 31 March
2021 2021 2020 2020
TENETT Fi&x*  TIIET FET*
$$'000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
EER Revenue 1,182,101 6,706,177 1,062,358 6,051,511
FREL AR A Profit before taxation 56,281 319,288 51,164 291,446
#HE Taxation (13,998) (79,412) (22,199) (126,452)
PRI R A Profit after taxation 42,283 239,876 28,965 164,994
IR Non-controlling interests (10,563) (59,925) (9,499) (54,107)
2ERA Profit for the year 31,720 179,951 19,466 110,887
SeHBRRE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R3A31H At 31 March
2021 2021 2020 2020
TERNET Fi#x*  TIIET T
$$'000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
M2~ BB NERIE Property, plant and equipment 386,321 2,230,770 336,061 1,829,548
RREE Right-of-use assets 44,206 255,263 25,696 139,891
B NTRER Interest in associates 304,316 1,757,242 270,887 1,474,736
BUATFERT AR MZ2E Equity instruments at fair value
Wit AT R through other comprehensive income 1,968 11,364 2,496 13,589
IERENEULERIE Non-current receivables 14,924 86,177 15,318 83,392
EIERIEE E Deferred tax assets 4,812 27,786 3,833 20,867
e RIENTIE Deposits and prepayments 5,843 33,740 3,879 21,118
B EE Intangible assets 12,551 72,474 13,660 74,366
MEBEE Current assets 726,434 4,194,720 625,980 3,407,898
WEE Total assets 1,501,375 8,669,536 1,297,810 7,065,405
FErRBEE Non-current liabilities 212,090 1,224,692 51,925 282,685
TEEE Current liabilities 778,910 4,497,738 777,350 4,231,972
=ty Total liabilities 991,000 5,722,430 829,275 4,514,657
FEE Net assets 510,375 2,947,106 468,535 2,550,748
EENAREE AER Equity attributable to owners
of the company 419,230 2,420,799 374,448 2,038,530
i g Non-controlling interests 91,145 526,307 94,087 512,218
510,375 2,947,106 468,535 2,550,748
mi{E MARKET CAPITALISATION 273,486 1,579,220 237,183 1,291,247

* PIWELE BB ETEBENREEFE e RiEE  * The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are converted at
the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.
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